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1. Letter to Shareholders 
Dear Shareholders:  
 

1.1 Year 2010 performance (All in NT$) 
1.1.1 Operating results 

In 2010, we successfully grew both revenue and profit compared with 2009. Consolidated 
sales revenue improved by 12.03% to $60,437,316,000. Net profit also rose 9.58%, to 
$3,650,068,000. 

1.1.2 Financial highlights and profitability analysis 

a.Financial highlights 

Units: thousands  

Item 2010 2009 
Increase 

(decrease)
Operating profit 3,145,187 4,035,648 (22.06%)

Net profit after tax 3,650,068 3,330,918 9.58%
Average total assets 34,940,959 30,694,710 13.83%
Average shareholder equity 14,164,634 10,871,158 30.30%

b.Profitability 
Item 2010 2009 

Return on average assets (%) 10.72 11.31 
Return on average shareholder equity (%) 25.77 30.64 

Operating profit on end-of-period 
shareholder equity (%) 

50.27 68.25 

Net profit margin (%) 6.05 6.19 
Earnings per share (EPS)  6.27  6.2* 

*The 2009 EPS is unadjusted by employee bonus and plowback funding, which 
would affect stockshare numbers.  

 

1.1.3 Research and development 

In 2010, Chicony spent approximately $1.4 billion on product development, product value 
analysis and value engineering, process improvement, productivity improvement, quality 
conformity rate, and personnel training. To stay on top amongst the fierce competition, we 
will continue to invest in highly functional keyboards and input devices that combine 
wireless communication, internet, and multimedia capabilities. To meet the coming market 
demands, we are committed to developing better computer peripherals and digital imaging 
products with higher picture quality. 
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1.2 Year 2011 outlook 
1.2.1 2011 goals and outlook 

According to economic forecasts from various research institutes, the US, Europe, and Asia 
Pacific regions will all see growth in GDP, with most Asian countries gaining between 5% 
and 10%. Shipments of global computer peripheral and digital video products are also 
expected to grow by 10% to 15%. Nonetheless, Chicony maintains a careful approach as 
uncertainties still abound, including high oil prices, rising costs of raw materials, labor 
shortages in China, growing labor costs, and materials supply instability following Japan’s 
earthquake.  
Facing the challenges in the consumer market, raw material costs, and the Chinese labor 
environment in 2011, our team remains optimistic about the global outlook. We aim to 
integrate all resources and continue to further our development in keyboard, mouse, digital 
video, and power supply products.  To maintain our growth and revenue, we will also 
expand into LED lighting and PV inverter products (solar energy converters)through our 
subsidiary, Chicony Power Technology Co., Ltd.  The combined sales volumes are 
estimated to reach 227.11 million units in computer peripherals, and 85.37 million units in 
consumer electronics and other electronic goods. 

1.2.2 Business strategies 

Guided by the principle of “No Quality, No sales”, we are committed to providing the most 
satisfactory services and maintaining growth in revenue and profit, which enable us to 
reward our shareholders and staff.  Our strategies for products, production, marketing, R&D, 
human resource, and finance are explained as follows: 

a. Products 

(I) To continue developing in keyboard, mouse, digital video, power supply, and high 
value-added products and related categories, in order to grow profitability. 

(II)To expand our product scope and revenue with developments in LED illumination and 
PV inverter products. 

(III)To enhance automation and vertical integration to increase Chinony’s industry status 
and profitability. 

(IV)To develop new products that meet market needs. 

b. Production 

(I) To retain a competitive advantage in keyboard, digital video, and power supply 
products, increase production capacity, and closely monitor product quality. 

(II)To quickly react to customer needs by enhancing flexibility in delivery, stocking, and 
production. 

(III)To raise overall productivity and reduce human resource requirements through 
strengthened automation. 
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(IV)To enhance greater bargain power and efficiently reduce material costs, by 
integrating group procurement resources. 

(V)To continue to find key material suppliers for vertical integration. 

(VI)To develop new production processes to enhance productivity. 

c. Marketing 

(I) To integrate the product range and  satisfy customer needs with a “one-stop shopping” 
approach, and maximize profitability while minimizing marketing resource 
requirements. 

(II)To change product portfolios and increase the sales ratio of high value-added products 
to generate greater profit. 

(III)To expand the Chinese domestic market for each product category. 

(IV)To enforce better control of accounts receivable. 

d. Research and development 

(I) To collaborate with major international hardware/software providers to co-develop new 
products with patent values. 

(II)To increase the number of product patents to create technological advantage. 

(III)To continue VA/VE (value analysis/value engineering) and improve product design to 
increase product efficiency and reduce the costs of production. 

(IV)To expand recruitment of professionals and academic elites to enhance overall R&D 
capabilitiy and capacity. 

e. Human resources 

(I) To grow the level of revenue per employee and profitability with strengthened human 
resource strategies. 

(II)To gain insight into government human resource policies in Asian countries and 
globally, and form strategies for optimal mutual benefit. 

(III)To develop professionals with global views, and deepen and internationalize staff 
training and provide educational courses covering various fields of expertise, including 
management and English. 

(IV)To help each business unit and subsidiaries reach annual profit goals by computerized 
human resource systems, and increase administrative efficiency, and effectively use 
human resource management system indicators. 

(V)To implement corporate social responsibility and incorporate related issues into 
management systems and form policies accordingly; and to help each management tier 
understand the actions required. 

f. Finance 

(I)To conduct stricter budget control and management of accounts receivable, inventory, 
and cash turnover. 
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(II)To plan the public listing of Chicony Power Technology Co., Ltd. 

(III)To improve the debt ratio continually. 

(IV)To adequately hedge against fluctuations in exchange rates and raw material costs. 

1.2.3 Important production and marketing policies 

(I) To meet customer demand and reduce production costs, we will build a new plant under a 
100%-owned subsidiary of Chicony in Jiangjin District, Chongging City. The factory will 
be dedicated to the production of computer keyboards, camera modules, power supply, and 
LED illumination products. 

(II)Continue to concentrate resources on the top 10 global brands of personal computers, 
notebooks, webcams, digital video peripherals, and mobile phone. By increasing our share 
among these growing companies, we aim to expand our global market share and strengthen 
our position. 

(III)Regularly monitor changes in raw material prices, labor costs, and exchange rates, and 
reasonably reflect such variances in our pricing according to the consumer market 
situation. 

(IV)Continue to establish just-in-time supply warehousing to shorten product delivery time 
and gain advantages over competitors. 

(V) Establish just-in-time supply warehousing to enhance overall material delivery efficiency 
and reduce inventory. 

(VI)Build competitive advantages based on the Group’s consolidated sales and material 
purchases.  

(VII)Integrate and strengthen the computer information management of headquarter and 
subsidiaries globally to provide the management with effective real-time data. 

 

 
 
 
Chairman: Kent Hsu 
Vice President and General Manger: MK Lin 

Accounting Manager: Molly Lin  
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1.3 The company’s development strategies are subject to the external competitive, regulatory, and 
overall business environments： 

Details are provided in the 2011 Outlook.  All operation details provided are in accordance with 
laws and related regulations under the ROC government.  None of the company’s operations are as 
yet affected by policy changes. 



2. Company Profile 
2.1 Date of founding:  February 22, 1983 

2.2 Company milestone 

1983 – Chicony was founded by former vice chairman Mr. Mark Lee and former vice 
president Mr. Frank Lu, and registered with $ 2 million capital for computer 
peripheral product trading.  

1985 – Current chairman Kent Hsu joined the company. Production of APPLE and 
IBM compatible keyboards began. 

 – 
– 
 

Incremental capital of $14 million was invested to expand facilities. 
Sales reached $39 million 

1986 – Sales reached $293 million, approximately 7.5 times the level of the previous 
year. 

1987 – A project was established to develop mobile personal computers. 
 – Incremental capital of $47 million was invested to expand facilities. 
 – Business units were introduced into the organization (including two major 

business units for mobile products and keyboards). 
 – Purchased HP-3000 computers from Hewlett Packard for computerization. 
 – Annual revenue doubled to $585 million over 1986. 
1988  – PC Clones Magazine listed Chicony as one of the world’s top five computer 

keyboard companies. 
 – Ministry of Economic Affairs (MOEA) officially approved the investment in 

Chicony Electronics (Thailand) Co., Ltd. 
 – An additional $57 million capital was generated from cash and earnings. 
 – Mass production of LT3400 model laptops began. 
 – Annual earning reached $801 million, up 37% from a year ago. 
1989 – Keyboard KB-5581 (keyboard with tracking ball) won the Design Award for 

Excellent Product. 
 – Production in Thailand plant officially began, the company’s first oversea 

production expansion. 
 – Acquired 4500 ping of space for the Taoyuang Plant in Nankan, Taoyuang. 
 – To meet the demands of rapid sales growth, incremental capital of $78 million 

was invested, bringing the total paid-in capital to $198 million. 
 – Established the motherboard business unit. 
 – Annual sales doubled from the previous year and reached almost $1.6 billion. 
 – MOEA approved the establishment of Chicony Overseas Inc (COI), dedicated 

to personal computer products and peripherals, and established to enhance 
oversea sales network and customer service.  
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1990 – Hipro Electronics (Taiwan) Co., Ltd was established to specialize in the 
production and sales of power supplies. 

 – The company’s trade performance was ranked in the top 100 in Taiwan. 
 – The company’s use of its own brand for exports won the Minister of 

Economy’s Award. 
 – The company officially invested in Chicony Overseas Inc (COI) with a 100% 

stake. To establish a complete oversea sales and production network, further 
investments were made through COI in distributors in the USA (Chicony 
America Inc., CAI) , Europe (Chicony Electronics GmbH, CEG), and the 
production unit in Thailand (Chicony Electronics (Thailand) Co., Ltd (CET).

 – The Nankan plant in Lujhu Township, Taoyuang, officially began operation. 
 – Additional capital of $ 802 million was raised through a public offering, 

approved by the SEC, bringing the total paid-in capital to $1 billion. 
1991 – General manager, Mark Lee was awarded the Golden Business Award in the 

46th Taiwan Excellent Businessman Award. 
 – Senior vice president M. K. Lin was awarded the Excellence in Taiwan 9th 

Outstanding Production Manger Award. 
 – Construction began on the head quarter in Wugu Industrial Park. 
 – Additional capital of $120 million was made from earnings. 
1992 – Plans for the motherboard manufacturing plant in Thailand were developed. 
 – Keyboard model KB-5591 won the National Product Image Award. 
1993 – Chicony’s headquarters in Wugu were officially opened. 
1994 – The first keyboard manufacturing plant in China officially opened for 

production. 
1995 – An incremental capital investment of $380 million was approved by SEC, 

bringing the total amount of paid-in capital to $1.5 billion. 
1996 – Motherboard business unit was discontinued. 
 – A capital reduction and an increment of capital in cash was made, at $ 300 

million. 
 – An investment was made in Chicony Electronics (UK) Ltd through Chicony 

Overseas Inc. to enable the sales of keyboards. 
1997 – Hipro Electronics Co., Ltd was listed in Thailand. 
 – Keyboard model KWD-601 won Best Product Award from Chip Magazine, 

German Edition. 
 – Mark Lee was voted as the vice-chairman by the Board, and M.K. Lin was 

promoted to general manager from executive vice president. 
1998 – Monthly keyboard sales reached 2.5 million units, ranking number one in the 

world. 
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 – Investment was made into Chicony Electronic (Dong Guan) Co., Ltd through 
Chicony Overseas Inc. to set up the production and sales of keyboards 

 – Capital increased by $324.8 million from earned surplus (including employee 
bonuses) and capital reserves, approved by the SEC, bringing the total paid-in 
capital to over $1.82 billion. 

1999 – Chicony was publicly listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange main board on 
January 5th. 

 – Increased capital by $397 million from earned surplus (including employee 
bonuses), approved by the SEC, bringing the total paid-in capital to over 
$2.22 billion 

2000 – Relisted Hipro from the Stock Exchange of Thailand, and shares were bought 
back through Chicony Overseas Inc., increasing the company’s shareholding 
on Hipro from 32.29% to 75.33%. 

 – Digital camera business unit established. 
 – Laptop computer business unit was discontinued. 
2001 – Invested in Chicony Electronic (Suzhou) Co., Ltd through Chicony Overseas 

Inc. for the production and sales of computer keyboards in the China market.
2002 – Increased the shareholding in Hipro to 99.8%. 
 – Increased capital by $273.3 million from earned surplus (including employee 

bonuses), approved by the SEC, bringing the total paid-in capital to over 
$2.49 billion. 

 – Founded Chicony Electronics CEZ s.r.o. to better serve the European market.
2003 – Mark Lee resigned as the vice chairman. The Board voted M.K. Lin as the 

vice chairman and general manager. 
 – Increased capital by $492.32 million from earned surplus (including 

employee bonuses), approved by the SEC, bringing the total paid-in capital 
level to $2.99 billion. 

2004 – Increased capital by $747.2 million from earned surplus (including employee 
bonuses), approved by the SEC, raising the total level of paid-in capital to 
over $3.73 billion. 

 – Invested in optical lens company Newmax Electronics Co., Ltd through 
Unikey Electronics Co., Ltd, obtaining a 28.31% stake. 

2005 – Monthly sales of laptop computer keyboards exceeded 1 million units. 
 – Capital increased by $415 million from earned surplus (including employee 

bonuses), approved by the SEC, bringing the total paid-in capital to $4.15 
billion. 

2006 – Achieved the worldwide number one position in sales of built-in laptops 
camera modules and webcams. 
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 – Webcam monthly sales exceeded 1 million units. 
 – Capital was increased by $275.5 million from earned surplus (including 

employee bonuses), approved by the SEC, bringing the total paid-in capital to 
almost $4.43 billion. 

2007 – Laptop computer keyboard monthly sales exceeded 3 million units. 
 – A capital increment of $583.5 million was made from earned surplus 

(including employee bonuses), approved by the SEC, bringing the total 
paid-in capital over $5 billion. 

 – Chicony Electronics (UK) Ltd. ceased operation. 
2008 – Chicony was ranked 73rd among the world’s top 100 technology companies 

by Business Week, US. 
 – Capital was increased by $561 million from earned surplus (including 

employee bonuses), approved by the SEC, bringing the total level of paid-in 
capital to $5.57 billion. 

2009 – Chicony stock was selected as part of the MSCI Taiwan Index. 
 – For organization restructuring, Hipro Electronics, a 100%-owned subsidiary 

of Chicony, was merged with Chicony Power Technology Co., Ltd. 
(including full transfer of assets and liabilities), under the Enterprise 
Acquisition Law.  Additional capital of $2.08 billion was also invested in 
Chicony Power Technology Co., Ltd., bringing the company’s ownership to 
70.39%. 

 – A capital increment about $342 million was made from earned surplus 
(including employee bonuses), approved by the SEC, bringing the total 
paid-in capital to over $5.9 billion. 

2010 – Upon approval of registration changes from Ministry of Economic Affairs, 
the remaining treasury stock reserved for none collateral convertible bond 
was canceled.  A capital decrease of $108,820.  

 – A capital increment about $343 million was made from earned surplus 
(including employee bonuses), approved by the SEC, bringing the total 
paid-in capital to over $6.2 billion. 

 – Established LED business unit under Chicony Power Technology Co., Ltd, in 
which Chicony Electronics holds a 69.73% stake. 

 – Newmax Technology Co., Ltd listed in Taiwan OTC market. The company 
mainly produces and sells optical devices. Chicony Electronics has a 26.6% 
stake. 

 

-8- 



 

3.
 C

or
po

ra
te

 G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

3.
1.

 O
rg

an
iz

at
io

n 

       
 

 

3.
1.

1 
O

rg
an

iz
at

io
n 

St
ru

ct
ur

e 

Research & Development 

Sales 

Dongguang Plant 

D
ig

ita
l I

m
ag

e

Factory Affairs 

Digital Product B.U. 

QA and Lab of Headquarters 

QA of Dongguang Plant 

QA of Suzhou Plant 

Q
ua

lit
y 

C
on

tro
l

QA of Czech Plant 

Desktop Keyboard 

Portable Keyboard 

Digital image 

Camera Module 

Pr
oc

ur
em

en
t 

Research & Development 
 

Factory Affairs 

Sales 

C
am

er
a 

M
od

ul
e

Dongguang Plant 

Suzhou Plant 

Sales 

Research & Development 

Factory Affairs 

D
es

kt
op

 C
om

pu
te

r 
K

ey
bo

ar
ds

 

Dongguang Plant 

Suzhou Plant 

Portable Keyboard B.U. 

Research & Development 

Factory Affairs 

Automation  

Project Management Unit 

Po
rta

bl
e 

K
ey

bo
ar

d 

Dongguang Plant 

Suzhou Plant 

Investment Management 

Finance 

Accounting 

Import/Export 

Fi
na

nc
e 

Desk Top Keyboard B.U. 
M

ar
ke

tin
g 

an
d 

Sa
le

s

G
en

er
al

 M
an

ag
er

 O
ffi

ce
, 

O
ve

rs
ea

 M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

M
IS

, 
Le

ga
l o

ffi
ce

, a
nd

 A
dv

an
ce

d 
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

 C
en

te
r 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 

Sh
ar

eh
ol

de
rs

 
M

ee
tin

g 

B
oa

rd
 o

f D
ire

ct
or

s 

C
ha

irm
an

 

V
ic

e 
C

ha
irm

an
 a

nd
 

G
en

er
al

 M
an

ag
er

 

Human Resource 

General Affairs 

Industrial Safety and Health 
Unit 

A
dm

in
ist

ra
tio

n

-9- 



3.1.2 Major Corporate Functions 
 

Business Units               Description                                       

Desktop Keyboards Business Unit Desktop keyboard material procurement, production 
management, marketing, sales management, after service, and 
new product development  
 

Mobile Keyboards Business Unit Portable keyboard product procurement, production 
management, marketing, sales management, research and 
development, and after service  
 

Digital Image Business Unit Production management of digital image products, marketing, 
sales management, after service, and new product research and 
development  
 

Camera Module Business Unit Camera module production management, marketing, sales, 
after service, and new product research and development  
 

Procurement IT peripheral product and image product material procurement
 

Quality Control Quality control, after service and customer relationship 
maintenance. 
 

Finance Finance, accounting, shareholding affairs, customs clearance, 
and imports/exports for the headquarters and subsidiaries. 
 
 

Administration  Human resource, general affairs, corporate social 
responsibilities and industrial safety and health for headquarter 
and subsidiaries 
 

Internal Audit Review and evaluate internal control system and policy 
implementation 
 

MIS IT planning 
 

Legal Corporate legal affairs, contract drafting ,and reviewing, 
litigation, patents and intellectual property management.  
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a. Directors and Supervisors Information (2):  
Meet One of the Following Professional 

Qualification Requirements, Together with at 
Least Five Years Work Experience 

Criteria (Note) 

        Criteria 

 

Name 

 

An instructor 
in or a higher 
position in a 
department of 
commerce, 
law, finance, 
accounting, or 
other academic 
department 
related to the 
business needs 
of the company 
in a public or a 
private junior 
college, 
college, or 
university 

A judge, public 
prosecutor, 
attorney, 
certified public 
accountant, or 
other 
professional or 
technical 
specialists who 
has passed a 
national 
examination and 
been awarded a 
certificate in a 
profession 
necessary for the 
business of the 
company 

Have work 
experience in 
the area of 
commerce, 
law, finance, 
or 
accounting, 
or otherwise 
necessary for 
the business 
of the 
company 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 

Number of 
Other Public 
Companies 
Concurrently 
Serving as an 
Independent 
Director 

Chairman: Kent Hsu   ˇ   ˇ   ˇ ˇ ˇ ˇ  
Vice Chairman and GM: 
M.K. Lin   ˇ   ˇ   ˇ ˇ ˇ ˇ 1 

Director: Roger Lu   ˇ  ˇ ˇ   ˇ ˇ ˇ ˇ  
Director: James Wei   ˇ  ˇ ˇ   ˇ  ˇ ˇ  
Director: Simon Tsai   ˇ  ˇ ˇ   ˇ ˇ ˇ ˇ  
Director: Zhih-jian Lin   ˇ ˇ  ˇ ˇ ˇ ˇ ˇ ˇ ˇ ˇ  
Director: Jia-sheng Liu   ˇ ˇ  ˇ ˇ ˇ ˇ ˇ ˇ ˇ ˇ  
Supervisor: Jing Yuan 
Investment Co., Ltd. 
Legal representative: 
Chin-shun Huang 

  ˇ ˇ  ˇ ˇ ˇ ˇ ˇ ˇ ˇ   

Supervisor:Hua Tai 
Investment Co., Ltd. 
Legal representative: 
Su-cheng Chang 

  ˇ ˇ  ˇ  ˇ ˇ ˇ  ˇ   

Supervisor:Dong Ling 
Investment Co., Ltd.  
Legal representative: 
Chi-hsuang Ku 

  ˇ ˇ  ˇ ˇ ˇ ˇ ˇ ˇ ˇ   

Not e :  “ ”  i n  th e  b ox es  i n d i c a t e  t h a t ,  du r i n g  t h e  t wo yea r s  b ef or e  t h e  e l ec t ed  p os i t i on  or  d u r i n g  t h e  t e rm o f  o f f i c e ,  
d i rec t o rs  a n d  su p e rv i s o rs  m eet  t h e  fo l l o wi n g  c r i t e r i a :   

1 .  Not  a  h i r ed  emp l o ye e  o f  t h e  c omp a n y a n d  i t s  a ff i l i a t es .   

2 .  Not  a  d i rec t or  or  supervisor  of  th e compan y or  an y of  i t s  a ff i l i a t e .  Thi s  d oes  not  app ly in  cases  wh ere th e  
p erson  i s  an  ind ep endent  d i rec t or  of  th e  compan y,  i t s  pa ren t  compan y or  an y subsid ia ry in  wh ich  th e  compan y 
h olds ,  d i rec t ly or  ind i rec t ly,  more than  50% of  th e vo t ing sha res .   

3 .  Not a natura l  person shareholder who holds  shares ,  together  with  those held by the person’s spouse,  minor 
chi ld ren,  or held by the person under others’ names,  in an aggregate amount of 1% or  more of the tota l  number 
of  outstanding share of  the company or ranking in  the top 10 in holdings.   

4 .  Not  a  sp ou s e ,  r e la t i v e  wi t h i n  t h e  s ec on d  d e gr e e  o f  k i n sh i p ,  o r  l i n ea l  r e la t i v e  wi t h i n  t h e  f i f t h  d e gr e e  o f  
k i n sh i p ,  o f  a n y of  t h e  p e rs on s  i n  t h e  p rec ed i n g  t h r e e  su b p a rag ra p h s .   

5 .  Not a di rec tor,  supervisor,  or employee of  a  corporate/ inst i tut ional shareholder  that  di rec t ly holds  5% or more 
of  the tota l number of  outstanding shares  of the company or  that  holds shares ranking in the top  f ive in 
holdings.   

6 .  Not  a  di rec tor,  supervisor,  or  off icer  or  a  shareholder  holding 5% or more of  the shares of  a  speci fied  company 
or  inst i tut ion that  has  a  financia l  or business  rela t ionsh ip with  the company.   

7 .  Not a p rofessional ind ividual  who,  or  an owner,  partner,  di rector,  supervisor,  or off icer of  a  sole p roprietorship,  
partnership ,  company, or  inst i tut ion that ,  p rovides commercia l,  lega l ,  financia l ,  accounting services or  
consu ltat ion to the comma or  to any affi li ate of  the company, or  a  spouse thereof .   

8 .  Not having a mari ta l rela t ionship ,  or a  relat ive with in the second degree of kinship to any other di rector of the 
company;   

9 .  Not  b een  a  p er son  or  a n y c on d i t i on s  d ef i n ed  i n  Ar t i c l e  3 0  of  t h e  C omp a n y La w.   

1 0 .  Not  a  go v ern m en t a l ,  j u d i c i a l ,  p er s on  o r  i t s  r ep r es en t a t i v e  a s  d ef i n ed  i n  Ar t i c l e  2 7  of  t h e  C o mp a n y La w.   
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b. Directors, Supervisors, Institutional Shareholder Representatives, and the Main Shareholder of 
 Institutional Shareholders  

                           April 12, 2011 

Institutional Shareholder Name 
The Main Shareholder of the Institutional 

Shareholder 
Percentage of Shareholding (%)

Kent Hsu 50% 

Teh-yi Wu 18.33% 

Yue-sen Hsu 10% 

Yue-yuan Hsu 5% 

Feng-chu Lin 5% 

Kun-yuan Hsu 5% 

Yue-eh Hsu 5% 

Dong Ling Investment Co., Ltd. 

Weng-hsin Hsu 1.67% 

Dong Ling Investment Co., Ltd. 50% 

Teh-yi Wu 22.33% 

Yue-sen Hsu 7% 

Yue-yuan Hsu 5% 

Kun-yuan Hsu 5% 

Feng-chu Lin 5% 

Yue-eh Hsu 5% 

Jing Yuan Investment Co., Ltd. 

Weng-hsin Hsu 0.67% 

Kun-yuan Hsu 20% 

Feng-chu Lin 20% 

Yue-yuan Hsu 16% 

Fu-long Lin 16% 

Teh-yi Wu 12% 

Ying-tao Hsu-Chen 10% 

Yue-eh Hsu 4% 

Hua Tai Investment Co., Ltd. 

Weng-hsin Hsu 2% 

c. Directors, Supervisors, Institutional Shareholder Representatives, and the Main Shareholder of Institutional Shareholders  April 12, 2011 

The Main Shareholder of the Institutional Shareholder The Main Shareholder 
Percentage of Shareholding (%)

 

Kent Hsu 50% 

Teh-yi Wu 18.33% 

Yue-sen Hsu 10% 

Yue-yuan Hsu 5% 

Feng-chu Lin 5% 

Kun-yuan Hsu 5% 

Yue-eh Hsu 5% 

Dong Ling Investment Co., Ltd. 

Weng-hsin Hsu 1.67% 
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d. Employee Bonus Sharing Granted to Management Team  
December 31st, 2010 

 Title Name Stock (Fair 
Market Value) 

Cash Total Employee 
Bonus Sharing 

Total Employee 
Bonus Sharing Paid 

to Management 
Team as a % of 

2010 Net Profit (%)
Vice Chairman and General 
Manager 

M.K. Lin 130,118,000 0 130,118,000 3.56%

Executive Vice President, 
CMO, and head of DKB 
Business Unit 

Roger Lu     

Special Assistant and head of 

DCD Business Unit 

James Wei     

Head of CM Business Unit Sherman Wei      

Head of MKB Business Unit Hank Liu     

Head of DSC Business Unit Allen Huang     

GM of Chicony America Bruce Chang      

GM of Chicony GmbH Ronnie Chen     

Vice President of MKB R&D 

Unit 

Jensen Tsai     

Vice President of Advanced 

Technology Center Unit 

K.Y. Huang     

VP of CM Sale Unit Daniel Chou     

Associate VP of DSC R&D Unit Mandy Tsai     

Vice President of DKB R&D 
Unit 

Denny Yang      

Appointed GM of XAVi 

Technology Co., Ltd. 

Jerry Lin      

Associate VP of Finance 

Department 

Molly Lin      

Associate VP of Oversea 

Management Unit 

Swallow Chuang     

Associate VP of CM R&D Unit Maxwell Liu     

Special Assistant of Headquarters Amos Chang     

Associate VP of DSC&CM 

Quality Control Unit 

Hans Chan 

Associate VP of MKB R&D 
Unit 

Eric Tseng  

  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Associate VP of Audit Office Woody Chou 

    

Note: Bonus sharing stock value is proposed based on employee bonus sharing stated in company policy.  
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3.2.4 Analysis of 2009 and 2010 Remuneration Package Paid to Directors, Supervisors, 
 General Manager, and Vice Presidents: Remuneration Ratio Against Net Profit of Two 
Years and Relations with Future Risks 

 
a.The policy, standard, and package comprising the remuneration; the relation between remuneration 

procedures and operation performance.   
(I)Directors and supervisors: the remunerations for directors comprises director/supervisor 

compensation, base compensation, bonus, profit sharing, and pensions, which are funded 
according to applicable law. Remunerations for supervisors are director/supervisor 
compensation.        
(1)Director/Supervisor compensation: the Board would, in accordance with the Company’s 

Policy Article 18, decide a total remuneration amount for all directors and supervisors at the 
Annual General Meeting each year. Referencing the authorized amount generally practiced in 
the industry, the ratio of proposed bonus to be distributed to each director and supervisor is 
then determined by level of participation and contribution. The chairman has full right to the 
compensation amount. 

(2)Salary, bonus, and pension: when a director also acts as an employee of the company 
or its subsidiary and participates in the company operation, the chairman is authorized 
by the board to decide the compensation, with considerations to the industry 
compensation level according to one’s contribution, and propose to the Board to 
recognize such amount before end of April the year after.   

(II)General Manager and Vice President: packages paid to the general manager and vice-president 
currently comprise base compensation, bonus, employee bonus sharing, and pensions funded 
according to applicable law. The chairman, authorized by the Board, determines the amount for 
general managers and vice presidents of each unit, based on individual participation, 
contribution, position, seniority, experiences, and potential contributions to the company, with 
considerations to the industry level. The amount is proposed to the Board for approval before 
the end of April the year after. .   

b.2010 net profit exceeds the amount of 2009 by $319,150K. Hence the remuneration distributed to 
directors, supervisors, general managers and vice presidents also increases. The remunerations of 
2009 and 2010 and the ratios to the net profit in both years are listed as follows:  

Unit: 000’s 

Total Remunerations Ratios of Remunerations to Net Profit 

2010 2009 2010 2009 

 

From 
Chicony 

From All 
Consolidated 

Entities 

From 
Chicony

From All 
Consolidated 

Entities 

From 
Chicony

From All 
Consolidated 

Entities 

From 
Chicony 

From All 
Consolidated 

Entities 

Directors 30,281 35,399 28,033 28,033 0.83% 0.97% 0.84% 0.84% 

Supervisors 6,159 6,159 5,919 5,919 0.17% 0.17% 0.18% 0.18% 

General 
Manager and 

Vice President 
166,051 259,186 136,635 205,998 4.55% 7.10% 4.10% 6.18% 

Note:2010 profit sharing for directors and supervisors is an estimate based on the actual distributions in 2009. The 2010 

employee bonus sharing for general managers and vice president is an estimate based on company policies.  
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3.3 Corporate Governance Operation  

3.3.1 Board of Directors Meeting Status 
Ten meetings were convened between 2009 and March 31, 2010 (A). Directors’ attendance was 
as follows:  

Ti t l e  Name 
At tend ance in  

Person  (B)
By P roxy 

At tend ance Rate  in  
Person  (%) [B/A]  

Notes  

(4  meet ings  were  
held  fo r  th e  9 t h  
Annu al  Bo ard  
Conference;  6  
meet in gs  were  held  
fo r  the  10 t h Annual  
Board  Con ference 
a ft er  June  6 ,  2010 . )

Chairman Kent Hsu 9 0 90%  
Director M.K. Lin 10 0 100%  
Director Roger Lu 8 0 80%  
Director James Wei 

Representative of Dong Ling
Investment Co., Ltd. 

4 0 
100% As a  9 t h  Annual  

Ins t i tu t ion  
Represen t a t i ve  
Directo r  

Director James Wei 6 0 
100% Elected  as  

ind ividua l  d i r ector  
dur ing 10 t h  Annu al  
Board  Con ference.  

Director Simon Tsai 

4 0 67% 

Newly e lect ed  as  a  
d i rector  dur in g 10 t h  
Annu al  Bo ard  
Conference 

Director Zhih-jian Lin 7 0 70%  
Director Jia-sheng Liu 10 0 100%     

Annotat ions :   

 a .There  were  no  indepen dent  d i r ec tors  a s  p er  Secu r i t ie s  and  Exchan ge Act  Ar t ic l e  14-3 ,  to  express  a
d issen t in g op in ion  or  qual i f i ed  op in ion ,  which  sh al l  be  no ted  in  th e  minu tes  o f  the  d i r ec tors
meet in g.  

 b .Th ere  were  no  r ecu sal s  o f  Directors  du e to  con fl i c t s  o f  in te res t s  in  2010 .  

 c .Measures  t aken  to  s t r engthen  th e  fun ct ional i t y  o f  the  Bo ard :   

( I )Bo ard  Po l ic i es  were  amended  on  Apr i l  7 ,  2008 ,  to  s t r engthen  th e  funct ional i t y o f  the  Bo ard .   

( I I )Between  2010  and  March  31 ,  2011 ,  a l l  bo ard  meet ings conten ts ,  p rocedures ,  and  pr incip l es  were
implemented  in  accord ance wi th  Board  Po l ic ies .   
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3.3.2 Board Participation of Supervisors: no audit committee is applicable 
 

Board Participation of  Supervisors 
Ten meetings were convened between Year 2010 and March 31, 2011 (A). Attendance was as 

follows:  

Ti t l e  Name 
Actu al  At tend ance

（Ｂ）  
At tend ance Rate(%)  

（Ｂ /Ａ）  

Notes  
(4 meetings were held 
for the 9th Annual 
Board Conference; 6 
meetings were held for 
the 10th Annual Board 
Conference after June 
6, 2010. 

Supervisor Chin-shun Huang 
Representative of Jing Yuan 
Investment Co., Ltd. 

8 
80%  

Supervisor Su-cheng Chang Representative 
of Hua Tai Investment Co., Ltd. 

7 70%  

Supervisor Chi-hsuang Ku 

3 

75% 9 t h  Annual  Board  
Conference 
Ins t i tu t ion  
Represen t a t i ve  
Directo r  

Supervisor Chi-hsuang Ku 
Representative of Dong Ling 
Investment Co., Ltd.:  

3 
50% Newly e lect ed  as  

a  d i r ecto r  dur in g 
10 t h  Annual  Bo ard  
Conference 

Annotat ions :   
a .Supervi sor  co mpos i t ion  and  responsib i l i t i es :   

(1 )  Descr ip t ions  o f co mmunicat ion  b etween  supervi sors  and  sh areholder s  (e .g .  channels  and
method s) :  in fo rmat ion  i s  co l lec ted  b y d epar tment s  o f  ad minis t ra t ion ,  f in ance,  and  audi t  
to  p resen t  to  sup ervi sors ,  who would  make ind epen dent  judgments  on  the  in format ion
hereo f ,  and  i f  necessa ry,  t hey would ,  d i r ec t l y  o r  ind i rect l y,  co mmunicat e  wi th  emplo yees
and  sharehold ers .   

(2 )  Co mmunicat ion  among su pervisor s ,  in t ern al  aud i to r,  and  CPA (e .g .  co mmun ica t ions ,  
method s ,  and  r esu l t s  re l a t i ng to  co mpan y f inan ce and  sal es) .   

 
Th e in t ernal  audi t  d epar tment  r egu lar ly  co l l ect s  audi t ing r epor t s  on  f in ance,  sa les ,  
p roduct ion ,  and  hu man resource  in  accord ance wi th  co mpan y po l ic ies  and  presen ts  to  
supervi sors .   In  cases  o f  abnormal i t i e s  found ,  o ra l  p resen t a t ions  are  held  in  addi t ion  to  
wr i t t en  r epor t s .   Wh en  su pervisor s  n eed  fu r ther  det a i l s  o r  would  l i ke  to  make  
reco mmend at ions  regard in g to  co mp an y f inan ce,  sa l es ,  p roduct ion ,  hu man r esource ,  o r  
in tern al  aud i t  sys tem,  th e  audi t  dep ar tment  may be co mmiss ioned  to  conduct  fu r ther  aud i t s  
o r  to  requ est  impro vement s  to  each  uni t .   
 
Wh en  the  CPA revi ews th e  in tern al  aud i t ing  process ,  p rob lems d i sco vered  or  
reco mmend at ions  are  presen ted  to  each  supervisor,  a s  wel l  a s  ser ious  abnormal i t i e s  found  in
fin anc ia l  repor t s ,  i f  an y.   
 
Wh en  the  CPA co mp let es  audi t ing the  f inan cia l  repor t ,  the  Board  would  then  send  the  resu l t s
to  each  sup ervi sor  fo r  revi ewin g.  The repor t  would  o n ly be  re leased  wi th  sup ervi sor  
approval .  

 
b .Th ere  were  no  wr i t t en  or  o therwi se  recorded  r eso lu t ions  on  which  a  d i r ector  h ad  a  d i ssen t ing

opin ion  or  qual i f i ed  op in ion .   
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3.3.9 Execution Status of Internal Control Systems:  
a. Statement of Internal Control Systems 

 

Chicony Electronics Company Limited 

Statement of Internal Control Systems 

 Date: April 7, 2011 
 
Based on the findings of a self-assessment, Chicony Electronics Company Limited states the following with 

regard to its internal control system during the year 2010: 

1.  The Company is fully aware that establishing, operating, and maintaining an internal control system are the 

responsibility of its Board of Directors and management. The Company has established such a system 

aimed at providing reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of objectives in the following 

categories: effectiveness and efficiency of operations (including profitability, performance, and 

safeguarding of assets), reliability of financial reporting, and compliance with applicable laws and 

regulations. 

2.  An internal control system has inherent limitations. No matter how perfectly designed, an effective internal 

control system can provide only reasonable assurance of accomplishing the three objectives mentioned 

above. Moreover, the effectiveness of an internal control system may be subject to changes of environment 

or circumstances. Nevertheless, the Company’s internal control system contains self-monitoring 

mechanisms, and the Company takes corrective actions whenever a deficiency is identified. 

3.  The Company evaluates the design and operating effectiveness of its internal control system based on the 

criteria provided in the Regulations Governing the Establishment of Internal Control Systems by Public 

Companies (herein below, the “Regulations”). The criteria adopted by the Regulations identify five 

components of internal control based on the process of management control: (1) control environment, (2) 

risk assessment and response, (3) control activities, (4) information and communication, and (5) monitoring. 

Each component further contains several items. Please refer to the Regulations for details. 

4.  The Company has evaluated the design and operating effectiveness of its internal control system according 

to the aforesaid criteria. 

5.  Based on the findings of the evaluation mentioned in the preceding paragraph, the Company believes that, 

on December 31, 2010, its internal control system (including its supervision and management of 

subsidiaries), as well as its internal controls to monitor the achievement of its objectives concerning 

operational effectiveness and efficiency, reliability of financial reporting, and compliance with applicable 

laws and regulations, were effective in design and operation, and reasonably assured the achievement of the 

above-stated objectives. 

6.  This Statement will be an integral part of the Company’s Annual Report for the year 2010 and Prospectus, 

and will be made public. Any falsehood, concealment, or other illegality in the content made public will 

entail legal liability under Articles 20, 32, 171, and 174 of the Securities and Exchange Law. 
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Chicony Electronics Co., Ltd.  

 

 

Chairman: Kent Hsu 

 

  General Manager: MK Lin 

 

 

 

b. The disclosure of the external auditors’ opinion on the Company’s internal control is not applicable. 

 
3.3.10 Between Year 2009 and March 31st, 2010, Any Punishment Incurred for the 

Company and its Employees Violating Laws, and Any Punishment, Fault and 
Improvement Occurred for the Company’s Employees Against the Regulations of 
Internal Audit System: None. 

 

7.  This Statement has been passed by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on February 15, 2011, with 

none of the seven attending directors expressing dissenting opinions, and the remainder all affirming the 

content of this Statement. 
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3.4 Audit Fees 
3.4.1 Audit Fee Brackets: 

Audit Fee Information 

Accounting Firm Name of CPA Audit Period Remarks 

PwC Taiwan  Wang, 
Huei-Shyang Michael Lee 

1st January 2010 to 31st 
December 2010 

 

 
Unit: 000’s 

                 Item 
Bracket Audit Fee Non-audit Fee Total 

1 Under 2,000  V V 
2 $2,000～$4,000    
3 $4,000～$6,000    
4 $6,000～8,000 V  V 
5 $8,000～10,000    
6 Over $10,000    

 
3.4.2 Information Regarding the Company’s Independent Auditor 

1. No non-auditing fees paid to the CPA, the accounting firm of the CPA, and its related affiliates accounted for 

more than 25% of the total of auditing fees.  

2. No annual auditing fee increases resulted from change of appointed accounting firms.  

3. No auditing fees were reduced by more than 15% than the previous year 

3.5 Change of CPA 

Changes of CPA due to accounting firm restructuring over the past 2 years until March 31, 2011 are listed as follows:  

1. From March 31 2010, Michael Lee and Wong, Shi-Jung were changed to Michael Lee and Wang, Huei-Shyang.  

2. From March 31, 2011, Wang, Huei-Shyang and Michael Lee were changed to Wang, Huei-Shyang and Lin, Chun-Yao 
 

3.6 Chairman, Directors, or Managers Responsible for Finance or Accounting 
Employed by the Appointed Accounting Firm or Affiliates in the Past Year: None. 
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3.7 Increase/Decrease of Shareholding and Net Changes in Shares Pledged Among 
Chairman, Supervisor, Managers and Shareholders with over 10% Shareholding 

 
2010 1st January to 12th April, 2011 

Title Name 
+/- of 

shareholding 

 

+/- of pledge 

shares 

 

+/- of 

shareholding 

 

+/- of pledge 

shares 

 

Chairman Kent Hsu (Note 1) 3,503,664 (2,000,000) - -

Vice Chairman and General Manager M.K. Lin (Note 2) 1,298,790 - -

Director, Executive Vice President, 

CMO, and head of DKB Business 

Unit 

Roger Lu (Note 2) 

45,702 - - -

Director, Special Assistant, and Head 

of DCD Business Unit 

James Wei (Note 2) 
79,848 - - -

Director Simon Tsai (Note 3) -  

Director Zhih-jian Lin 89,020 (1,110,000) - -

Director Jia-sheng Liu 25,339 - - -

Supervisor Jing Yuan Investment 

Co., Ltd. 

Legal representative: 

Chin-shun Huang 

1,039,736 - - -

Supervisor Hua Tai Investment Co., 

Ltd. 

Legal representative: 

Su-cheng Chang 

611,332 - - -

Supervisor Dong Ling Investment 

Co., Ltd. 

Legal representative: 

Chi-hsuang Ku 

1,035,790 - - -

Head of CM Business Unit Sherman Wei (Note 2) 28,546 - - -

Head of MKB Business Unit Hank Liu (Note 2) 682 - - -

Head of DSC Business Unit Allen Huang (Note 2) (376,800) - (53,000) -

General Manager of Chicony 

America 

Bruce Chang (Note 2) 
33,537

-
(500) 

-

General Manager of Chicony GmbH Ronnie Chen (Note 2) 98,238 - - -

Vice President of MKB R&D Unit Jensen Tsai (Note 2) 4,278 - - -

Vice President of Advanced 

Technology Center 

K.Y. Huang (Note 2) 
37,671

-
(10,000) -

Vice President of CM Sales Unit Daniel Chou (Note 2) 45,081 - - -

Vice President of DSC R&D Unit Mandy Tsai (Note 2) 3,368 - - -

Vice President of DKB R&D Unit Denny Yang (Note 4) - - - -

Associate Vice President of Finance 

Department 

Molly Lin (Note 2) 
(49,601)

-
- -
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2010 1st January to 12th April, 2011 

Title Name 
+/- of 

shareholding 

 

+/- of pledge 

shares 

 

+/- of 

shareholding 

 

+/- of pledge 

shares 

 

Associate Vice President of Oversea 

Management Unit 

Swallow Chuang (Note 2)
(10,274)

-
- 

-

Associate Vice President of CM R&D 

Unit 

Maxwell Liu (Note 2) 
4,681

-
(20,000) -

Special Assistant of Headquarters Amos Chang (Note 2) (17,700) - - -

Associate Vice President of DSC&CM 

Quality Control Unit 

Hans Chan (Note 2) 
12,770

-
- 

-

Associate Vice President of MKB 

R&D Unit 
Eric Tseng (Note 5) 12,600

-
- -

Associate Manager of Audit Office Woody Chou 1,902 - - -
Note 1: a major shareholder with over 10% shareholding 
Note 2: shareholding includes trusted shares under reserve by the holder.  
Note 3: Simon Tsai came onboard on June 9, 2010. The changes listed above is between June 9, 2010 to April 12, 2011 
Note 4: Denny Yang came onboard on May 17, 2010.  The changes listed above is between May 17 2010 and April 12, 2011 
Note 5: Eric Tseng came onboard on April 1, 2010.  The changes listed above is between April 1, 2010 to April 12, 2011. 

 
Sharehold in g t r ansfe rs  and  p ledge sh ares :  th e  counte rpar t i e s  ar e  none r e l a ted  t o  the  above d i r ec tors ,  
supervi sors ,  and  man ager s ;  hence no  det a i l s  a re  l i s ted .   
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3.8 Top Ten Shareholders and Relationships 
April 12, 2011Unit: Shares；% 

Shareholding (Note 1) Spouse & Minor 
Shareholding 

Shareholding by 
Nominee 

Arrangement 

Names and Relations of Top 10 
Shareholders Who Are of 

Counterparties Defined in The 
Statement of Financial Accounting 

Standard No.6, Spouses, and Relatives 
Within the Second Degree of Kinship 

RemarksName 

Shares % 
(Note 2) 

Shares % 
(Note 2)

Shares % 
(Note 2)

Names Relationship  

Kent Hsu 73,576,950 11.95% 3,625,314 0.59% - - CLEVO 
Co.  

Company chairman 

    UniKey 
Electronics 
Co., Ltd 

Legal 
Representative 
Director 

    Epoque 
Co.,Ltd.  

Company chairman 

    Hipro 
Electronics 
Co., Ltd 
  

Company chairman 
(Legal 
Representative 
Director) 

    Yue-yuan 
Hsu 

Sister 

    Dong Ling 
Investment 
Co., Ltd. 

Company Director 

    Jing Yuan 
Investment 
Co., Ltd. 

Company Director 

CLEVO 
Co., Ltd. 

26,621,297 4.32% - - - - Kent Hsu Company chairman 

Chairman: 
Kent Hsu 

   M.K. Lin Legal 
Representative 
Director 

    Dong Ling 
Investment 
Co., Ltd. 

Legal Supervisor of 
the Company 

Standard 
Chartereed 
Customers 
in Asia 
managed 
KGI Asia 
Financial 
Accounts 

20,291,529 3.30% - - - - - - 

UniKey 
Electronics 
Co., Ltd 

19,088,716 3.10% - - - - Kent Hsu Legal 
Representative 
Director 

Chairman: 
M.K. Lin 

    100% Owned 
Subsidiary of 
Chicony 

    M.K. Lin Company Chairman 
(Legal 
Representative) 
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April 12, 2011Unit: Shares；%
Shareholding (Note 1) Spouse & Minor 

Shareholding 
Shareholding by 

Nominee 
Arrangement 

Names and Relations of Top 10 
Shareholders Who Are of 

Counterparties Defined in The 
Statement of Financial Accounting 

Standard No.6, Spouses, and Relatives 
Within the Second Degree of Kinship 

RemarksName 

Shares % 
(Note 2) 

Shares % 
(Note 2)

Shares % 
(Note 2)

Names Relationship  

Epoque Corp. 15,868,00
0 

2.58% - - - - Kent Hsu Company Chairman 

Chairman: 
Kent Hsu 

  Yue-yuan 
Hsu 

Company Director 

Hipro 
Electronics 
Co., Ltd 

14,594,39
3 

2.37% - - - - Kent Hsu Company Chairman 
(Legal 
Representative) 

Chairman: 
Kent Hsu 

   100% Owned 
Subsidiary of 
Chicony 

   - - - - M.K. Lin Company Vice 
Chairman 
(Legal 
Representative) 

Yue-yuan Hsu 13,011,335 2.11% 1,353,682 0.22% - - Kent Hsu Brother 
   Epoque 

Co., Ltd. 
Company Director 

   Hipro 
Electronics 
Co., Ltd 

Legal Supervisor 
Representative 

   Dong Ling 
Investment 
Co., Ltd. 

Company Chairman 

   Jing Yuan 
Investment 
Co., Ltd. 

Company Chairman 

M.K. Lin 11,177,141 1.82% 746,482 0.12% - - UniKey 
Electronics 
Co., Ltd  

Company Chairman 
(Legal 
Representative) 

   CLEVO 
Co. 

Legal Representative 
Director 

Dong Ling 
Investment 
Co., Ltd. 

10,071,00
0 

1.64% - - - - Kent Hsu Company Director 

Chairman: 
Yue-yuan Hsu 

  Yue-yuan 
Hsu 

Company Chairman 

   CLEVO 
Co., Ltd. 

Legal Supervisor of 
the Company 

   Jing Yuan 
Investment 
Co., Ltd. 

A major shareholder 
with 50% company 
shares 

Jing Yuan 
Investment 
Co., Ltd. 

9,834,459 1.60% - - - - Kent Hsu Company Director 

Chairman: 
Yue-yuan Hsu 

  Yue-yuan 
Hsu 

Company Chairman 

   Dong Ling 
Investment 
Co., Ltd. 

A major shareholder 
with 50% company 
shares 

Note 1: The above excludes shares under trust with discretion reserved under the holder and the spouse 
Note 2: Th e  c a lcu la t i on  on  p erc en t a g e  of  sh a r eh o ld i n g :  sh a r e s  h e ld  ÷  6 1 5 , 6 1 4 , 39 8  sh a res  ( t o t a l  ou t s t a n d i n g  sh a r es  l es s  

c a n c el l ed  t r ea su r y  s t ock  a f t e r  c a p i t a l  r ed u c t i on )  ;  t h e  a fo r e men t i on ed  c a p i t a l  r ed u c t i on  wa s  a p p ro ved  on  Ap r i l  
1 8 ,  2 011  b y M i n i s t r y of  Econ omi c  Affa i r s ,  u n d er  o f f i c i a l  l e t t e r  n u mb e r :  Sh a n g  1 0 0 0 1 0 71 9 4 0 .  
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3.9 Investments Made in the Same Outside Enterprise by the Company, its Directors, 
Supervisors and Directly/indirectly Controlled Affiliates.  Number of Shares 
Acquired Jointly and Combined Share Percentage 

Date: 31st March 2011     Unit: Shares；％ 

Company Investment 

Direct or Indirect Investment from 
Directors, Supervisors, and 

Managers 
 

Combined Investments 
Subsidiaries 

Shares % Shares % Shares % 

Chicony Overseas Inc. 

 

1,000 100
- - 

1,000 100

Chicony Global Inc. 

 

1,000,000 100
- - 

1,000,000 100

Chicony Electronics 
(Thailand) Co., Ltd. 

 

322,427 15.27 1,789,148 84.73 2,111,575 100

Chicony Power 
Technology Co., Ltd. 

159,137,000 65.87 36,988,900 15.31 196,125,900 81.18

Hipro Overseas (BVI) 
Inc. 

 

12,560,000 100

- - 

12,560,000 100

Hipro Electronics Co., 
Ltd. 

4,660,000 100
- - 

4,660,000 100

Unikey Electronics Co., 
Ltd. 

15,000,000 100
- - 

15,000,000 100

XAVi Technology Co., 
Ltd. 

20,456,557 68.19 3,863,369 12.88 24,319,926 81.07

Had Eri Iou Industrial Inc. 15,076,445 50.25 - - 15,076,445 50.25

 
Note: long term investments of the Company 
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4. Fund-raising Status 
4.1 Capital and Shares 

4.1.1 Capitalization 
Unit: Share/NT$ 

Remark Authorized Share Capital Paid-up Share Capital Sources of Capital 

Month / 
Year 

Issue 
Price 
(Per 

share) Shares Amount Shares Amount 
Capital 

Replenishment 
by Cash 

Capital 
Replenishment 

by Retained 
Earnings 

Capital 
Replenishment 

by Capital 
Surplus 

Total 

Capital 
Increase 

by 
Assets 
Other 
than 
Cash

Other

Aug/2002 10 250,000,000 2,500,000,000 249,545,000 2,495,450,000 - 273,250,000 - 273,250,000 None Note 1
Aug/2003 10 300,000,000 3,000,000,000 298,777,000 2,987,770,000 - 492,320,000 - 492,320,000 None Note 2
Jul/2004 10 500,000,000 5,000,000,000 373,500,000 3,735,000,000 - 747,230,000 - 747,230,000 None Note 3

Aug/2005 10 500,000,000 5,000,000,000 415,000,000 4,150,000,000 - 415,000,000 - 415,000,000 None Note 4
Jun/2006 10 500,000,000 5,000,000,000 442,550,000 4,425,500,000 - 275,500,000 - 275,500,000 None Note 5
Jun/2007 10 600,000,000 6,000,000,000 500,900,000 5,009,000,000 - 583,500,000 - 583,500,000 None Note 6
Jun/2008 10 600,000,000 6,000,000,000 557,000,000 5,570,000,000 - 561,000,000 - 561,000,000 None Note 7
Jun/2009 10 700,000,000 7,000,000,000 591,277,832 5,912,778,320 - 34,277,832 - 34,277,832 None Note 8
Jan/2010 10 700,000,000 7,000,000,000 591,266,950 5,912,669,500 - (10,882) - (10,882) None Note 9

Jun/2010 10 700,000,000 7,000,000,000 625,614,398 6,256,143,980 - 34,347,448 - 34,347,448 None Note 
10 

Apr/2011 10 700,000,000 7,000,000,000 615,614,398 6,156,143,980 - (10,000,000) - (10,000,000) None Note 
11 

Note 1: Approved by Ministry of Finance, Securities and Futures Commission Statutory Letter dated on 11th June, 2002 Tai Tsai Zhen (I) No. 0910131507. 
Note 2: Approved by Ministry of Finance, Securities and Futures Commission Statutory Letter dated on 18th June, 2003 Tai Tsai Zhen (I) No. 0920126987 
Note 3: Approved by Ministry of Finance, Securities and Futures Commission Statutory Letter dated on 27th May, 2004 Tai Tsai Zhen (I) No.0930123567 
Note 4: Approved by Executive Yuan, Financial Supervisory Commission Statutory Letter dated on 21st June, 2005 Gin Guan Zhen (I) No.0940124681 
Note 5: Approved by Executive Yuan, Financial Supervisory Commission Statutory Letter dated on 20th June, 2006 Gin Guan Zhen (I) No.0950125028 
Note 6: Approved by Executive Yuan, Financial Supervisory Commission Statutory Letter dated on 25th June, 2007 Gin Guan Zhen (I) No.0960031854 
Note 7: Approved by Executive Yuan, Financial Supervisory Commission Statutory Letter dated on 24th June, 2008 Gin Guan Zhen (I) No.0970031272 
Note 8: Approved by Executive Yuan, Financial Supervisory Commission Statutory Letter dated on 19th June, 2009 Gin Guan Zhen Fu No.0980030579 
Note 9:Treasury Stock Nullification for 10,882 shares; Approved by Ministry of Economic Affairs Statutory Letter dated on 27th January, 2010 Jing Shou Shang Tsi No. 

09901019670 
Note 10: Approved by Executive Yuan, Financial Supervisory Commission Statutory Letter dated on 21st June, 2010 Gin Guan Zhen Fu No.0990031695, 
Note 11: Treasury Stock Nullification for 10,000,000 shares; Approved by Ministry of Economic Affairs Statutory Letter dated on 18h April, 2011 Jing Shou Shang Tsi No. 
10001071940 
 
As of 12th April, 2011 Unit : Share 

Authorized Share Capital Type of Stock 
Shares outstanding 

(Note) 
Unissued shares Total 

Remark 

Common stock 615,614,398 84,385,602 700,000,000 Listed Company 
shares 

Note:Above-mentioned shares outstanding refers to the number of shares after nullification of treasury stocks 
followed by capital reduction; the preceding capital reduction has been approved and documented by 
Ministry of Economic Affairs Statutory Letter dated on 18th April, 2011 Jing Shou Shang Tsi No. 
10001071940. 

Shelf Registration: None
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4.1.2 Composition of Shareholders 
As of 12th April, 2011 

     Type of Shareholders 

 

Quantity 

Government 

Agencies 

Financial 

Institutions

Other Judicial 

Persons 

Foreign 

Institutions and 

Natural Persons

Domestic 

Natural Persons 
Total 

Number of Shareholders 2 22 117 229 28,817 29,187

Shareholding 200,108 22,136,371 137,656,043 117,073,751 338,548,125 615,614,398

Holding Percentage (Note) 0.03% 3.60% 22.36% 19.02% 54.99% 100.00%

Note:Holding percentage is computed as shareholding divided by total number of issued common stock of 615,614,398 
shares after the Company nullified its treasury stocks followed by capital reduction; the preceding capital 
reduction has been approved and documented by Ministry of Economic Affairs Statutory Letter dated on 18th April, 
2011 Jing Shou Shang Tsi No. 10001071940. 

 
 

4.1.3 Distribution Profile of Share Ownership 
Face value at NT$10 per share As of 12th April, 2011 

Shareholder Ownership 
Number of 

Shareholders 
Shareholding Holding Percentage

1 to 999 5,381 1,081,070 0.18%

1,000 to 5,000 17,052 36,846,880 5.99%

5,001to 10,000 3,378 26,440,385 4.29%

10,001to 15,000 1,058 13,288,257 2.16%

15,001to 20,000 634 11,747,408 1.91%

20,001to 30,000 552 13,914,901 2.26%

30,001to 40,000 252 9,077,766 1.47%

40,001to 50,000 169 7,868,612 1.28%

50,001to 100,000 321 22,679,424 3.68%

100,001 to 200,000 166 23,063,571 3.75%

200,001 to 400,000 82 23,081,260 3.75%

400,001 to 600,000 42 21,086,275 3.43%

600,001 to 800,000 23 15,781,541 2.56%

800,001to 1,000,000 13 11,633,112 1.89%

1,000,001 or above 64 378,023,936 61.41%

Total 29,187 615,614,398 100.00%

Note:Holding percentage is calculated as shareholding divided by total number of issued common stock of   
615,614,398 shares after the Company nullified its treasury stocks followed by capital reduction; the 
preceding capital reduction has been approved and documented by Ministry of Economic Affairs 
Statutory Letter dated on 18th April, 2011 Jing Shou Shang Tsi No. 10001071940. 
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4.1.4 Major Shareholders: Shareholders with shareholdings over 5% of total shares 
 outstanding or top 10 holding percentages 

As of 12th April, 2011 
Share

 
Major Shareholders 

Shareholding Holding Percentage (Note 1)

Kent Hsu 73,576,950 11.95%
Clevo Co. 26,621,297 4.32%

Standard Chartered Customers in Asia 
Managed KGI Asia Financial Accounts 

20,291,529 3.30%

Unikey Electronics Co., Ltd. 19,088,716 3.10%

Epoque Co., Ltd. 15,868,000 2.58%
Hipro Electronics (Taiwan) Co., Ltd. 14,594,393 2.37%
Hsu, Yue-Yuan 13,011,335 2.11%
M. K. Lin(Note 2) 11,177,141 1.82%
Dong Long Investment Co,. Ltd.  10,071,000 1.64%
Jing Yuan Investment Co., Ltd.  9,834,459 1.60%

Note 1: Holding percentage is calculated as shareholding divided by total number of issued common 
stock of 615,614,398 shares after the Company nullified its treasury stocks followed by capital 
reduction; the preceding capital reduction has been approved and documented by Ministry of 
Economic Affairs Statutory Letter dated on 18th April, 2011 Jing Shou Shang Tsi No. 
10001071940. 

Note 2: This table does not include the shares under trust where the decision on executing them is 
exclusively reserved by the holder. 
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4.1.5 Market Price per Share, Net Worth, Earnings and Other Relevant Information: 
Year 

 

Item 

2009 2010 As of 31st March, 2011

Highest 82.30 90.90 67.00 

Lowest 29.35 57.00 48.75 

Market 
Price Per 

Share 
Average 61.36 73.34 58.39 

Before Distribution 20.69 22.70 31.83 Net Worth 
Per Share After Distribution (Note 5) 16.37 18.07 31.83 

Weighted Average Shares  536,838,000 shares 581,750,000 shares 581,931,000 shares 

Before Adjustment 6.20 6.27 1.68 

Earnings 
Per Share Earnings Per 

Share After Adjustment 
(Notes 1 & 5) 

5.85 6.27 1.68 

Cash Dividends (Note 1)   3.50  4.00 NA 

Dividend Distribution 
by Retained Earnings 

0.5000000086 0.3500000011 NA Shares 
Dispensed 

free of charge 
(Note 1) 

Dividend Distribution by 
Capital Surplus 

NA NA NA 

Dividends 
Per Share 

Accumulated Unpaid Dividend (Note 6) 0 (Note 7) NA 

Price/Earnings Ratio (Notes 1 & 2) 9.90 11.70 NA 

Price/Dividend Ratio (Notes 1 & 3) 17.53 18.34 NA 

Return on 
Investment 

Cash Dividend Yield Rate (Notes 1 & 
4) 

5.70% 5.45% NA 

Note 1: Figures for Year 2009 were filled in accordance to the status of dividend distribution determined by the 
resolution of the 2010 General Annual Shareholders’ Meeting. 

Note 2: Price/Earnings Ratio = Current Year Average Market Price Per Share / Earnings Per Share (Before 
Adjustment) 

Note 3: Price/Dividend Ratio = Current Year Average Market Price Per Share / Cash Dividend Per Share 
Note 4: Cash Dividend Yield Rate = Cash Dividend Per Share/ Current Year Average Market Price Per Share 
Note 5: Number of shares issued for Employee Stock Bonus of 2010 is computed based on the basis of closing 

market price prior to the holding of the Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting and takes into 
consideration the impact from cash dividend and stock dividend shares; thus, the above listed figures 
for net worth per share after distribution and adjusted earnings per share have not yet reflected the 
number of shares paid out for Employee Stock Bonus Dividends. 

Note 6: Issuing conditions for equity securities stipulate that current year dividends unpaid may accumulate to 
years where there are earnings, and should respectively disclose cumulative unpaid dividends as of the 
end of the current year. 

Note 7: Earnings distributions of 2010, after resolution by Board of Directors to distribute cash dividend per 
share of NT$ 4, estimated cash dividends as NT$ 2,462,457,592. Preceding earnings distribution 
proposal of 2010 has not yet passed Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting resolution. 

 
4.1.6  Dividend Policy of the Company and Status of Dividend Distribution Proposed by 
 Latest Shareholders’ Meeting: 
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a. Dividend policy: 
In line with the long-term financial planning of the Company, to achieve sustainable business 
objectives, future dividend policy is stipulated under the Company’s Articles of Incorporation 
Article no. 19 as follows: 
As the Company is in the developing stage of the electronics industry, the dividend policy 
should take into account the need for funding of new products where increasing the return on 
investment by the shareholders is an objective. Thus, at least 50% of annual total earnings 
available for dividend distribution will be allocated as shareholders’ dividends, of which at 
least 30% shall be cash dividends. 
However, if the total amount available for dividend distribution is less than NT$ 0.5 per share, 
then the ratios in the preceding paragraph shall not be subjected to restrictions. 

b. Status of dividend distribution of 2010 proposed by Shareholders’ meeting in 2011: 
(I)Cash dividend is distributed as NT$ 4,000 per one thousand shares: NT$ 2,462,457,592 from 

retained earnings was set aside for cash dividend distribution. 
(II)Stock dividend is dispensed at free of charge at 50.00000016 shares per one 

thousand shares: NTD$ 307,807,200 from retained earnings was set aside to increase 
capital and to issue new stocks for 30,780,720 shares 

 
4.1.7 Impact to Business Performance and EPS Resulting from Stock Dividend Distribution 
 at Free of Charge as Proposed by Latest Shareholders’ Meeting: Not applicable. 

 
4.1.8. Employee Bonus Sharing and Directors’ and Supervisors’ Compensation: 

a. The Company’s Articles of Incorporation Article no. 18 stipulates that “1% of annual financial 
net earnings (net income after deductions for income tax, 10% contribution to legal reserves, 
and contribution to special reserves as required by regulation) shall be allocated as 
compensation for Directors and Supervisors, and 16% as a bonus to employee.  

b. The Company adopted the proposal of the 7th session of the 10th Annual Board of Directors’ 
Conference of 7th April, 2011 to allocate a cash bonus to employees of NT$ 133,000,000, a 
stock bonus to employees of NT$ 392,609,747 (with the number of shares allocated in the 
stock bonus being calculated based on the closing market price prior to the holding of the 
Annual General Shareholders’ meeting and taking into consideration impacts from cash 
dividends and stock dividend shares), and compensation to Directors and Supervisors of NT$ 
32,850,609. 
The amount of employee bonus and Directors and Supervisors’ compensation as proposed by 
the Board of Directors’ meeting totaled NT$ 558,460,356, and was identical to the amount 
estimated in the annual financial report of 2010.  

c. Status of the Company’s actual allocation and distribution of Directors and Supervisors’ 
compensation and employees’ bonus from earnings of 2009 in 2010 is as follows: 
(I)Actual distribution of Directors and Supervisors’ compensation was NT$ 30,388,421 and 
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employees’ bonus was NT$ 486,214,728, identical to the original amount of distribution 
approved by the Board of Directors’ meeting. The employees’ bonus consists of a stock bonus 
of NT$ 363,334,716, being a new stock allotment of 5,284,100 shares, and a cash bonus NT$ 
122,880,012. The number of stocks allotted as a bonus to employees was 15.38% of the total 
number of shares transferred for capital replenishment from 2010 earnings. Persons receiving 
the allotment were employees of the Company and employees of the subsidiaries with in which 
the Company has a shareholding of more than 50%. 
(II)The amount of employee bonus and Directors and Supervisors’ compensation as proposed 
by the Board of Directors’ meeting totaled NT$ 516,603,149, and was identical to the amount 
estimated in the annual financial report of 2010. 

 
4.1.9 Status of the Company’s Treasury Stock: 

The Company had previously from 13th February, 2008 to 12th March, 2008 reacquired 10,000 
thousands shares of its own stock for transferring to its employees. Due to failure to conduct the 
transfer to employees on time, and in accordance with the provisions of the Securities Exchange Act 
Article no. 28-2, the Company had nullified the 8th reacquisition of its common stock intended for 
transfer to its employees of 10,000 thousand shares of treasury stocks and initiated capital reduction. 
Paid-in capital after the capital reduction was NT$ 6,156,143,980.  

 

4. 2 Issuance of Corporate Bonds: The Company did not issue any corporate bonds. 

4. 3 Issuance of Preferred Stocks: The Company did not issue any preferred stocks. 

4.4 Issuance of GDR: The Company did not issue any GDR. 

4.5 Status of Employee Stock Option Plan: The Company did not adopt any Employee Stock 
Option Plan. 

4.6 Status of New Share Issuance in connection to Mergers or Acquisitions: The 
Company did not engage in activities of new share issuance in connection to mergers or acquisitions.  

4.7 Status of financing plans and implementation: 

4.7.1 As of 31st March, 2011, Status of Previous Respective Issuances including Pending 
Securities Private Placements or Undisclosed Benefits of Completed Plans for the Most 
Recent Three Years: None. 

 
4.7.2 According to the Purposes of the Various Plans of the Preceding Paragraph, Comparison 
 of the Outcomes of Their Execution and Originally Projected Benefits: None. 
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5. Operation Highlights 
5.1. Business Activities 

5.1.1 Business Scope 

a. The Company’s major business operations: 
(I) Design, development, manufacturing and trading of desktop keyboards, portable 

keyboards, mouse and input devices for computers, and camera products.  
(II) Design, development, manufacturing and trading of digital cameras, built-in camera 

modules for notebook computers, camera modules for mobile phones, and other digital 
image products. 

(III)Agents of domestic and foreign manufacturers for the sale of digital cameras, digital 
video cameras, projectors, large output devices, and other digital products. 

b. Product Mix: 
2010  Unit: NT$ 000’s 

Products Amount Proportion 

Computer peripheral products 8,713,653 43.2％ 

Consumer electronic products 
and other electronic products 

10,769,100 53.4％ 

Other operating income 679,259 3.4% 

Total 20,162,012 100％ 

c. The Company’s current products and services: 
(I)PC Keyboard 
(II)Notebook Keyboard 
(III)2.4G Individual Multi-finger Control Keyboard Touch Pad 
(IV)2.4G Bluetooth Wireless Keyboard, Mouse 
(V)IC Smart Card, IA and Game Keyboard 
(VI)Backlit Game Keyboard 
(VII)Low Profile Computer Keyboard 
(VIII)Wired Optical Mouse and Laser Mouse 
(IX)2.4G Optical Mouse and Laser Mouse 
(X)Wireless Portable Bluetooth iPad, Tablet PC Keyboard, Wireless Portable Bluetooth 

Mobile Phone Keyboard 
(XI)Multimedia Computer Remote Control 
(XII)Digital Camera, Computer Camera 
(XIII)Network Camera 
(XIV)Mobile Phone Camera Module, Notebook Computer Built-in Camera Module, Tablet 

PC Built-in Camera Module, LCD Monitor Camera Module 
(XV)Auto-Focus Camera Module 
(XVI)Computer Components and Peripheral Products 
(XVII)3D Stereoscopic Image Module 
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(XVIII)After-services for the above-mentioned products 

d. New products and services planned for development 
(I)Colorful Keyboard and Mouse 
(II)Ultra-thin Bluetooth Foldable Keyboard 
(III)Touch Keyboard 
(IV)Portable Scanner with Mouse Function 
(V)Ultra-thin Bluetooth Portable Mouse 
(VI)2.4G Solar Keyboard 
(VII)Intelligent Network TV Remote Controller 
(VIII)Low Cost, Low Power Consumption Notebook Keyboard 
(IX)Multifunctional Notebook Keyboard Combining Network and Communication 

Functions 
(X)Antibacterial Medical Notebook Keyboard 

(XI)Portable Wireless Bluetooth Keyboard with Functions and Availability for e-reader 
Connection 

(XII)Multifunctional PC Keyboard Combining Network and Communication Functions 
(XIII)12X Optical Digital Zoom Digital Camera 
(XIV)3D Digital Video Camera 
(XV)3m Waterproof, Drop-resistant Digital Video Camera  
(XVI)WiFi Wireless Digital Video Camera 
(XVII)Android Digital Video Camera 
(XVIII))Panoramic High Resolution Digital Camera 
(XIX)WiFi Wireless Computer Camera 
(XX)H.264 Computer Camera 
(XXI)Low Cost HD Computer Camera 
(XXII)Game-Dedicated Video Module 
(XXIII)Technical support and services for the above-mentioned products 

 
5.1.2 Industry Overview 

The main products manufactured and sold by the Company are keyboards, computer 
cameras, digital video cameras, built-in camera modules of notebook computers, mobile phone 
camera module products, and power supply which are manufactured and sold by its 69.73% 
owned subsidiary company Chicony Power Technology Co., Ltd.. All of these products are 
closely linked with the global economy, and applications and growth of personal computers, IT 
products, digital home appliances, and mobile phones. 

Various studies have shown that the USA, Europe, and Japan as a whole experienced 
gradual mild economic recovery, while China, India and other emerging Asian countries had 
relatively stronger growth. Due to this economic recovery, consumer willingness to spend 
increased, leading to estimates that shipments of PCs, mobile phones, digital cameras, and other 
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consumer products would also grow in 2011. Emerging markets are considered to still be the 
major source of demand for consumer products. However, as the level of competition in the 
entire industry intensifies, shrinking profit margins, the business management skills displayed by 
manufacturers in lowering costs and improving efficiency, service quality, and the speed of 
launching new products that meet market demands will become more important. 

Research institutions forecast 2011 global shipments of PCs to reach 375 million units, an 
8.4% increase over 2011. This consists of Desktop shipments of 154.7 million units, an 5.1% 
increase over 2010, and Portable PC shipments (including Notebook, Netbook and Tablet PC) 
totaling 220.3 million units, an increase of 10.8% compared with 2010. The overall PC market in 
2011 is expected to follow the trend of 2010 in being focused on Portable PCs such as Notebooks 
and Tablet PCs, although increasing consumer use of the iPad and other Tablet PCs is expected 
to depress the sales of home PCs and replacements of PCs. 

Growth of Portable PCs was mainly driven by Notebooks and Tablet PCs. Notebooks are 
forecast to grow by 14%, benefiting from the ongoing effects of Desktop substitution, demand in 
Asia Pacific and new emerging markets, and from being a necessity in work and learning. 
However, the global Notebook market is expected to reach maturity starting from 2011, with 
growth in following years possibly being lower than 15%. Meanwhile, Tablet PC shipments are 
forecast to accelerate in 2011 and 2012, and are projected to bring growth of 15% to overall 
Portable PC shipments, driven by Tablet PC’s multi-touch interface and user-friendliness, 
declining retail prices, ultra-thin and attractive design, the convenience of mobile networking, 
and other competitive advantages. In contrast, Netbooks are expected to be impacted by the 
substitution effect of Tablet PCs and would experience negative growth. The Netbook market is 
nonetheless expected to survive due to limitations in the extent to which Tablet PCs such as iPad 
can replace Netbook’s word-processing functions, low-price competition, and the transfer of 
development to India, Southeast Asia, Brazil, Middle East, and new emerging markets. Finally, 
Desktop growth mainly comes from the business market, an increase in replacements driven by 
Windows 7, high value-added products focused on audio and video features, and expanding 
demand for All-in-one PCs. 

According to research reports, the global handset market, despite gradually reaching 
maturity, was expected to grow by 6.9% in 2011, similar to 2010’s growth rate, with projected 
shipments reaching 1.55 billion units, driven by recovery in the global economy and growth 
from new users and handset replacements. Key factors driving market growth are increased 
consumer acceptance of smart phones, promotions by telecommunications carriers, new 
operating platforms, and continuous reductions in prices. Smart phone shipments were projected 
to reach 440 million units in 2011, accounting for 28.4% of the total volume of handset 
shipments. Camera phones were expected to continue to make up approximately 80% of 
handsets. 

In regards to other digital image products, a mild global economic recovery and the 
growing popularity of digital home technology, network TV, multimedia, and mobile 
communications benefited the sales of video imaging products used in computer-related products 
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such as computer cameras, digital video cameras, network cameras, and digital photo frames.  
 
5.1.3 Technology and R&D Overview 

a. R&D Expenditure for Past Two Years and 1st Quarter of 2011 
                                                       Unit: NT$ 000’s 

Year  
2009 2010 1st Quarter  

of Year 2011 

Amount 569,394 667,178 179,800 

 

b. R&D accomplishments in 2010 
(I)Ultra-thin Bluetooth Keyboard 
(II)Ultra-thin Desktop Keyboard 
(III)Touch Keyboard 
(IV)Ultra-thin Portable Bluetooth Mouse 
(V)Intelligent Network TV Remote Controller 
(VI)Ultra-thin Notebook Keyboard 
(VII)Tablet PC Keyboard 
(VIII)Antibacterial Notebook Keyboard 
(IX)23X Optical Digital Video Camera 
(X)5X Optical Digital Video Camera 
(XI)Horizontal Fixed Focus Analog Lens Digital Video Camera 
(XII)8 Megapixel Ultra-thin Digital Video Camera 
(XIII)ODM Flatbed Digital Video Camera 
(XIV)ODM Computer Camera 
(XV)Image Module for Remote Controller  
(XVI)High-quality HD Image Module 
(XVII)GPS Camera Module 
(XVIII)Tablet PC Built-in Camera Module 
(XIX)Smart Phone Built-in Camera Module 

 

c. Future R&D plans 
(I)Keyboard 

．2.4G Wireless Joystick 
．2.4G Gaming Mouse 
．2.4G High Security Keyboard 
．Multifunctional Display Keyboard 
．Gaming Mouse 
．Portable Scanner with Mouse Function 
．2.4G Solar Keyboard 
．Multi-finger Touch Pad 
．Intelligent Network TV Remote Controller 
．Bluetooth Foldable Ultra-thin Keyboard 
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．2.4G Keyboard, Mouse, Remote Controller, Headset Microphone Set 
．Ultra-thin Backlit Keyboard Module  
．Low Power Consumption, Low Cost Backlit Laptop Keyboard 

(II)Computer Camera / Digital Video Camera 
．IPCAM Network Camera 
．Full-featured Android Flatbed Digital Video Camera 
．DLNA-enabled Digital Video Camera 
．Skype TV Digital Image Telephone 
．Built-in Optical Zoom Flatbed Digital Video Camera 
．Mini Projector 
．USB3.0 Computer Camera 
．LCOS Auto-Focus Computer Camera 

(III)Camera Module 
．5 Megapixel Camera Module 
．IP Camera Module 
．3D Image Camera Module 
．TV Video Module 
．Optical Zoom Auto-Focus Camera Module 
．High-quality Full HD Image Module 
．Video Conferencing Image Module 

 
5.1.4 Short and Long Term Business Development Plans 

a. Short-Term Business Development Plans 
(I)To focus on OEM/ODM businesses – in addition to increase sales orders for new models 

and new products lines among existing customers, to also aggressively seek new customers, 
and continually grow market share, enabling stable growth in the Company’s sales volume. 

(II)To sustainably increase the contribution to sales from high value-added products, and 
enable stable growth in the Company’s sales volume and profitability. 

(III)To expand business in Mainland China, India, Korea, and other emerging markets.  
(IV)To develop LED lighting and PV inverter (solar energy converter) green energy products 

business through the Company’s subsidiary company Chicony Power Technology Co., Ltd. 
(V)To continuously consolidate the entire group’s marketing, manufacturing, and global 

logistics resources to maximize efficiency.  
(VI)To develop business in “Blue Ocean” product areas. 

b. Long-Term Business Development Plans 
(I)To continue recruiting talented personnel to strengthen marketing, R&D, manufacturing, 

and global logistics capabilities, in order to sustain the overall competitiveness of the 
Company. 

(II)To aggressively develop Non-PC related electronic peripheral products business.
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5.2 Market, Production and Sales Overview 

5.2.1 Market Analysis 

a. Major Markets for Product Sales 

Status of main markets and distribution channels for main products and services: 

Main Products Main Markets Method of Distribution and Channels

Computer IT Peripheral 

Products 

USA, Europe, Asia Domestic Sales, Exports, Indirect 

Exports 

b. Market Share 

The Company sells a wide range of computer IT peripheral products, mainly consisting of 
keyboards, computer cameras, digital video cameras, mobile phone camera modules, notebook 
computer built-in camera modules etc. Based on 2010 annual data provided by the Company 
and clients, Chicony is the world’s largest manufacturer of keyboards, computer cameras, 
notebook computer built-in camera modules, and CMOS digital video cameras. Chicony’s 
shipment volume for mobile phone camera modules is approximately the third to fourth largest 
in Taiwan. 

c. Future Market Demand and Supply and Market Growth 
Currently, the main application of the primary products manufactured and sold by the 

Company (keyboards, computer cameras, notebook built-in camera modules, and power supply  
products which are manufactured and sold by the Company’s 69.73%-owned subsidiary  – 
Chicony Power Technology Co., Ltd.) is in PC products. Portable PC product applications 
(including Notebooks, Tablet PCs, Netbooks, and other related devices) are estimated to 
account for 45%~50% of the Company’s projected 2011 consolidated operating income. 
Research reports indicate that although PC consumer markets were still nearly saturated in the 
USA and Europe, the sales volumes for the USA and Europe still accounted for nearly 60% of 
global shipment volumes. In terms of market demand by product category, Portable PC 
products (such as Notebook, Tablet PC, etc.) accounted for 58.9% of total PC shipments. 
Despite the overall PC industry maturing, with projected growth for 2011 being only 8.4%, the 
Portable PC category is still estimated to be able to achieve double-digit growth of 14%. 
Separately, it is estimated that approximately 80% of Notebooks will contain built-in camera 
modules. In regards to suppliers, there were an average of two to three leading manufacturers 
for each key product category, namely keyboards, computer cameras, notebook built-in camera 
modules, and power supply units for PC use.  

Global mobile phone handset growth in 2011 was estimated to be 6.9%. Although the 
proportion of camera phones among total handsets was seen to have little room for further 
growth, having already reached 80%, shipments of mobile phone camera modules were was 
expected to grow in line with global mobile phone shipments in 2011. In terms of suppliers, 
there were two to three leading manufacturers of mobile phone camera modules. Currently, no 
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research institutions have predicted the status of the supply of digital image products such as 
digital video cameras, computer cameras, etc.. However, the Company forecasted that the 
market demand would increase relatively as a result of global economic recovery. In regards to 
suppliers of digital video cameras and computer cameras, there were two to three leading 
manufacturers in Taiwan. 
 

d.The Company’s Competitive Niche, Favorable and Adverse Factors Influencing the Future  
Development of the Company 

(I)Competitive Niche and Favorable Factors: 

 Economies of Scale 
The Company’s various products have all achieved economies of scale and a high 
standing in the industry. By shipment volumes, the Company is the largest global 
supplier of desktop keyboards, computer cameras, notebook built-in camera 
modules, and CMOS digital video cameras; the second-largest supplier of 
notebook keyboards, and the third-largest supplier of Notebook power supply 
units through its subsidiary company Chicony Power Technology Co., Ltd. For 
the last five years, the annual consolidated operating income compounded growth 
rate has average approximately 17%, driven by continuous growth in sales, 
assisting achieving economies of scale in production but also forming a barrier to 
entry in the industry.  

 Extensive ODM/OEM products manufacturing experience 
The Company has accumulated 20 years of experience in manufacturing 
ODM/OEM products, quality control, and global real-time logistics to meet 
customers’ needs, which is valued by our customers.  

 Strong Customer Portfolio 
The main customers of the Company’s keyboards, notebook computer built-in 
camera modules, and power supply units from the subsidiary company Chicony 
Power Technology Co., Ltd were all global top ten computer manufacturers and 
designated assembly factories. The main customers of computer camera products 
were domestic and international well-known computer and systems 
manufacturers; sales to these customers accounted for approximately 65%~70% 
of the Company’s global sales revenue. In addition to stabilizing the Company’s 
operating income and profitability, this also enabled the Company to enhance the 
level of product research and development. 

 Continuous Launch of High Value-added New Products 
The Company’s keyboards, computer cameras, notebook computer built-in 
camera modules, CMOS digital video cameras, and notebook power supply units 
were ranked among the top three in the industry. The Company continues to 
cooperate with global large-scale manufacturers, and to continuously develop 
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high value-added products. The Company also maintains stable cooperation and 
relationships with globally renowned customers for digital cameras, mobile phone 
camera modules, and other digital image products. In addition to meeting 
customers’ needs, the Company would continue to take into account consumer 
market demand, and remain dedicated to the development of high value-added 
products. In addition to enabling growth in the Company’s performance and 
profitability, this would also contribute to the natural formation of barriers to 
entry in the relevant product technologies. 

 Provide Customers One Stop Shopping Services 
The main customers of the Company’s keyboards, notebook computer built-in 
camera modules, and power supply units from subsidiary company Chicony 
Power Technology Co., Ltd were mostly identical. Therefore, the Company can 
concurrently provide One Stop Shopping Services to all of these customers, 
which not only provides procurement cost savings to the customers and improves 
efficiency, but can also increase the Company’s operating incomes. 

 Complete Global Logistics Support System 
Since 1996, the Company has developed Just-in-time delivery warehouses to 
meet ODM/OEM customers’ needs, beginning in the USA and Europe. As the 
number of ODM/OEM customers has grown, the Company has gradually 
increased its supply warehouses world-wide. Currently, a total of 36 global 
delivery warehouses have been built to  provide complete functionality 
within the global logistics system and to cooperate with customers to maintain 
close interdependent relationships. 

 Strong Management Team 
The management team of the Company consists of professional managers with 
more than 15 years of relevant experiences in manufacturing, sales, management, 
research and development, finance, and accounting. On average, they have over 
10 years of service with the Company, and with their thorough academic 
backgrounds and experiences, provide a strong focus on core business and stable 
management.  

(II)Adverse Factors and Countermeasures: 
 Declining prices amidst intense competition in the computer and digital image 

products industry – competitive pressure leads to further lowering of sales prices. 
 Demographic changes in China – a lack of manpower for medium and long-term 

requirements, and upward pressure on labor costs. 
 International crude oil and raw material prices continue to rise. 
 NT dollar appreciates, along with long-term appreciation pressure on RMB, 

affecting gross profit. 
 Possible shortage of components and materials resulting from rising cost pressure 

and lack of labor in Mainland China. 
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 Following the global economy recovery, the governments of various countries, 
depending on their economic growth and inflation circumstances, may raise 
interest rates. 

 Impact of Japan earthquake on supply of some raw materials. 
Countermeasures: 

 To develop new technologies, new design capabilities, seek for alliances from more 
suppliers, and to have volume procurement – to not only reduce the Company’s 
product costs, but also help stabilize suppliers’ operating incomes and 
profitability. 

 To develop high value-added products, to increase their contribution to sales, and to 
sustainably expand market share in order to maintain operating income and 
profitability. 

 To take into account consumer market circumstances and monitor product sales 
prices reasonably. 

 To enhance vertical integration, and increase the rate of in-house production of major 
components and parts – to not only stabilize the source of supplies but also 
increase gross profit margins. 

 To continue to expand the scale of operation to achieve economies of scale. 
 To increase the proportion of automated production, and plan to gradually relocate 

the major production base to Chong Qing, Mainland China, in order to ensure 
stable labor supply and lower production costs. 

 To attempt to enlarge the dollar liability positions of subsidiaries in Mainland China, 
to increase foreign exchanges gains, in order to offset the impact of RMB 
appreciation on gross margins. 

 To strengthen the relationships with suppliers, and maintain relationships with at 
least two to three suppliers for each type of raw materials and components, to pay 
close attention to suppliers’ situations, and provide timely assistance when needed, 
to minimize the impact to the Company’s production.  

 To expedite the collaboration with customers on the certification of raw materials 
from non-Japan suppliers, to minimize the impact on the raw materials supply 
chain from the Japan earthquake.  

 To continue stringent inventory control, reduce accounts receivables and capital 
expenditures on fixed assets – in addition to lowering the Company’s 
consolidated debt ratio, this will also save on overall interest costs, and also 
increase the cash flow of the Company. 
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5.2.3 Status of Key Raw Material Supplies 

To achieve the objective of lowering production costs, keyboards, computer cameras, mobile 
phone camera modules, Notebook built-in camera modules, and digital video cameras were 
manufactured by the Company’s 100% owned subsidiaries – Chicony Electronics (Dongguan) Co., 
Ltd, Chicony Electronics (Suzhou) Co., Ltd, and Mao Rui Electronics (Dongguan) Co., Ltd. The 
main raw materials required for the products are determined by the head office’s procurement unit, 
which also negotiates prices. Purchase quantities are then specified by each subsidiary company 
through purchase orders. Sound and stable interdependent relationships have been established with 
the main suppliers of key raw materials, on the basis of long-term strategic cooperation. There are at 
least two suppliers providing each type raw materials. Thus, even when there is an inbalance 
between market supply and demand, all suppliers can supply raw materials to the Company as 
scheduled, according to ordered quantities and prices. This contributes to the long term development 
of the Company. 

Keyboard 
Key Raw Materials Suppliers 

Key top Mao Rui, Maoqun, LexTar 

Membrane FarWin, Jiangxi Anda, Jaiguanhua Electronics, Wenpher, Goda, SOE 

Rubber pad Fitivision, Bornsun, Zslims 

IC Sinowealth, EST, Sosun, Avant-Com, Alltek, HST, Edom 

Digital Video Camera, Computer Camera and Camera Modules 
Key Raw Materials Suppliers 

Sensor Panasonic, Aptina, OmniVision,  Samsung, Pixart, Sony, Seti, Hynix,
Himax 

DSP / ASIC Zoran, Sonix, Ambarella, Vimicro, Realtek, Alcor 

LCD AU Optronics, Giantplus, Wintek, Sharp 

Lens Largen, Newmax, Ability Opto-Electronics, Phenix Optics 

DDR Samsung, Hynix 

Flash Samsung, Hynix, MXIC, PLASH  
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5.2.5 Production Output and Value 
Unit: million units/ NT$ 000’s 

Year 2009 2010 
Production Output

and Value
Main Products 

Capacity Output Output 
Value

Purchase 
Volume

Purchase 
Value Capacity Output Output 

Value 
Purchase 
Volume 

Purchase 
Value 

Computer Peripheral 
products - - - 28 5,891,943 - - - 38 7,346,146

Consumer Electronic s 
Products and other 

Electronics Products 
- - - 23 8,059,160 - - - 14 9,824,745

Total - - - 13,951,103 - - -  17,170,891

 
5.2.6 Sales Output and Value 

Unit: million units/ NT$ 000’s 
Year  2009 (Note 1) 2010 (Note 2) 

Domestic Sales Exports Domestic Sales Exports Sales Output 
and Value

Main Products Volume Value Volume Value Volume Value Volume Value 

Computer Peripheral 
products - 140,575 27 6,855,229 - 61,037 37 8,652,616

Consumer Electronic s 
Products and other 

Electronics Products 
- 1,785,520 23 7,690,245 - 2,162,256 14 8,606,843

Others - - - - - - - -
Total  1,926,095 14,545,474 2,223,293 17,259,459

Note 1: Annual domestic sales and exports amount in 2009 totaled NT$ 16,471,569,000, excluding other operating income 
of NT$ 1,274,719,000. 
Note 2: Annual domestic sales and exports amount in 2010 totaled NT$ 19,482,752,000, excluding other operating income 
of NT$ 679,260,000. 

5.3 Percentage of Number of Personnel Engaged, Average Service Years, Average 
Age and Educational Background Distribution 

Number of personnel for the last two years and as at 31st March, 2011 

Year  2009 2010 31st March 2011 

Direct Labor 0 0 0 

Indirect Labor 559 594 608 
Number of 
Personnel 

Total 559 594 608 

Average Age 36.33 36.99 37.15 

Average Service Years 4.75 3.17 3.08 

Ph.D 0.18 0.17 0.49 

Master 27.01 28.28 28.13 

Bachelor 68.52 67.68 67.43 

High School 3.4 3.03 2.96 

Educational 
Background 
Distribution 
Percentage 

(%) Below High School 0.89 0.84 0.99 
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5.4 Information on Environmental Expenditures 

5.4.1 Losses of the Company caused by environmental pollution in 2010 and as at 31st March, 
2011: None 

5.4.2 Countermeasures: 

The main products and services of the Company are research and development, 
manufacturing, and sales of computer peripheral equipment, and are therefore non-
polluting. Furthermore, the Company has fully implemented the specifications of the 
EU’s Restrictions of Hazardous Substances (RoHS) Directive since July 2006. The 
Company’s overseas manufacturing sites have completed the acquisition and installation 
of inspection test equipment, ICP, which are capable of examining the composition of 
materials, relevant personnel training, and have also achieved certification by local 
government. In addition, monitoring software systems have been introduced to ensure 
control of related operations. 

As of 31st March, 2011, the Company’s products have been manufactured using raw 
materials that are required to comply with international environmental protection 
standards and customers’ requirements. 

Additionally, the management of the Company has always attached great importance to 
the maintenance of the quality of the surrounding environment of manufacturing plants, 
and promoting health and safety. A dedicated unit has been established to oversee these 
efforts to maintain a clean environment and safeguard the health of employees. In 
upholding the entrepreneurial spirit of a social mission, while pursuing business growth, 
greater emphasis on environmental protection can improve the overall corporate image. 

5.4.3 Forecast Future Major Capital Expenditure on Environmental Protection: None. 
 

5.5 Labor Relations 

5.5.1 Welfare Measures: 

(a)In addition to welfare measures required by the Labor Standard Act and relevant 
regulations, the Company also provides employees with extra welfare measures to enable 
employees to fully devote themselves to their roles and responsibilities. These measures 
include group insurance (including life insurance, medical insurance, cancer insurance, 
accident medical insurance, and accident insurance), regular health check-ups, educational 
training subsidies, and emergency relief funds. 

(b)An Employees Welfare Committee has been set up in accordance with employee welfare 
regulations. In addition to regularly organizing local and oversea travels, community 
activities, and birthday celebrations, various subsidies are also provided to employees for 
emergency relief, injury at work, marriage, death, sickness, and birth. 

(c)Social activities are regularly held for all employees, to allow physical and mental relief 
and enhance cohesion among the Company’s employees. 
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(d)Various trainings are provided on professionalism, management, and languages according  
to the needs of employees’ work. 

5.5.2 Pension Scheme: 

(a)The Company recognizes pension expenses every month according to the net pension fund 
cost provided by the actuarial assessment report, and sets aside 2% of total payroll into a 
Designated Pension Fund Reserve Account at Bank of Taiwan as a pension fund reserve. 
Since July, 2005, in line with the implementation of the Labor Pension Act and in 
accordance with the provisions of the relevant regulations, the Company has set aside 6% 
of employees’ personal accounts for employees who elected to join the new scheme, as 
regulated by the Bureau of Labor Insurance Regulatory Commission. 

(b)Standards and methods of payment upon pension fund application are handled in 
accordance with the Labor Standards Act and provisions of the new pension scheme. 

5.5.3 Other Important Agreements: 
Rights and obligations of employees and employer are handled in accordance with the 
working manual and various provisions of the Personnel Administration rules and 
regulations of the Company. (The working manual and content of the Personnel 
Administration rules and regulations of the Company are stipulated in accordance with 
the Labor Standards Act and relevant rules and regulations; the working manual has been 
reported to the local competent authority for approval.) 

5.5.4The Company has maintained harmonious relations with its employees since its 
founding on 22nd February, 1983, and has hence never suffered loss from labor 
disputes. In order to sustain these harmonious relations between employees and 
employer, the various management levels of the Company place high importance 
on smooth communication channels between employees and employer, and having 
a human-oriented management system, upholding principles of respect, trust, 
quality, and innovation, implementing the enhancement of quality and new 
products development, developing a team-focused workforce to accomplish the 
Company’s operating goals, and work hand-in-hand to create a better future.  

5.5.5Net loss suffered from labor disputes of the Company (including affiliated companies) 
from 2010 to 31st March, 2011 and from the future: None.
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5.6.Major Contracts 
No. Nature of 

Contract 
Involved Parties Start and end dates 

of Contract 
Main Content Restrictions 

1 Sales 
Contract 

International 
Business 
Machines Corp. 
(Levono 
(Singapore)Pte 
Ltd. 
 Levono (Beijing) 
Limited 
Levono (United 
States) Inc. 
Levono 
International ) 

1st October, 2003 
｜ 

30 days’ notice in 
advance 

‧To purchase the Company’s 
products, relevant details are 
stipulated under relevant 
contracts and sales orders. 

‧The contract between IBM and 
Lenovo will be transferred 
along with the relevant 
contracts as PCD business unit 
was sold to Lenovo. 

Confidentiality of the 
content is in accordance to 

the contract. 

2 Procurement 
Contract 

Compal 
Electronics Inc. 
and Compal 
Group 

20th December, 
2006 
｜ 

90 days’ notice in 
advance 

‧To purchase the Company’s 
products, relevant details are 
stipulated in the main contract 
and purchase orders. 

 

Confidentiality of the 
content is in accordance to 

the contract. 

3 Cross-
licensing 
Contract 

MINEBEA CO., 
LTD. 
 

18th December, 
2006 
｜ 

Patent Expiry Date

‧Cross-licensing of certain 
patents. 

 

Confidentiality of the 
content is in accordance to 

the contract. 
 

4 Materials 
Sales and 
Purchases 
Agreement  

ASUSTeK 
Computer Inc. 

1st September, 2007
｜ 

Termination by both 
parties 

‧To purchase the Company’s 
products, relevant details are 
stipulated in the main contract 
and purchase orders. 

 

Confidentiality of the 
content is in accordance to 

the contract. 

5 Materials 
Sales and 
Purchases 
Agreement 

Pegatron Corp. 1st November, 2007
｜ 

Termination by both 
parties 

‧To purchase the Company’s 
products, relevant details are 
stipulated in the main contract 
and purchase orders. 

 

Confidentiality of the 
content is in accordance to 

the contract. 

6 Materials 
Sales and 
Purchases 
Agreement 

Pure Digital 
Technologies Inc.  
(This company 
was acquired by 
Cisco Consumer 
Products PTE in 
May 2009.) 

7th  November, 
2005 
｜ 

Termination by both 
parties 

‧To purchase the Company’s 
products, relevant details are 
stipulated in the main contract 
and purchase orders. 

Confidentiality of the 
content is in accordance to 

the contract. 
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No. Nature of 
Contract 

Involved Parties Start and end dates 
of Contract 

Main Content Restrictions 

7 Syndicated 
Loan 

Agreement 

E. SUN 
Commercial 
Bank, Ltd. / 
Land Bank of 
Taiwan / 
Taiwan 
Cooperative Bank/ 
Hua Nan 
Commercial Bank/ 
Chang Hwa 
Commercial  
Bank / 
Fubon Commercial 
Bank/ 
Mega 
International 
Bank / 
Taiwan Business 
Bank 

Three years period 
from date of first 
loan drawn down. 
(Contract signed on 
23rd January, 2009) 
(Date of first loan 
drawn down: 
Item A – 23rd 
February, 2009; 
Item B – 6th April, 
2009) 

Item A: Full loan amount as NT$ 
2.4 billion, may split into 
several times on draw down 
but not as revolving line; of 
the un-utilized amount, NT$ 
0.7 billion had reached the 
expiration deadline for draw 
down.  

Item B: Full loan amount as NT$ 
1.6 billion, may be used as 
revolving line. 

Portion of qualified 
accounts receivables 
claims of the Company, 
from the date of signing 
the syndicated loan 
agreement was transferred 
to the managing bank, and 
the amount of qualified 
accounts receivables 
claims plus balance in 
designated bank account 
should exceed 100% of the 
credit facility amount of 
item B. 

1.Current Ratio to maintain at 
100% (inclusive) or above. 

2.(Financial liabilities less 
cash and cash equivalents / 
Tangible Net Worth) to 
maintain at 140% 
(inclusive) or below.  

3.Interest Coverage Ratio to 
maintain at 3 times 
(inclusive) or above.  

4.Maintain a minimum 
Tangible Net Worth at NT$ 
6 billion (inclusive) or 
above. 

5.Debt Ratio (Liabilities / 
Tangible Net Worth). 30th 
June, 2009, 31st December, 
2009 and 30th June, 2010 
maintain at 320% 
(inclusive) or below. 31st 
December, 2010 and 30th 
June, 2011 maintain at 
300% (inclusive) or below; 
31st December, 2011 
(inclusive) and thereafter 
maintain at 250% 
(inclusive) or below. 
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6. Financial Highlights 
6.1 Condensed Balance Sheet for the Past Five Years 

6.1.1 Condensed Balance Sheet 
Unit: $000’s 

Year
Item 

Financial Information for the Past Five Years (Note 1) 

Item 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 Q1, 2011 

Current Assets 4,001,394 3,954,920 5,636,985 7,042,950 7,542,579 7,471,266

Funds and Investment 5,454,832 7,181,824 9,358,574 12,723,690 15,118,483 21,931,278

Fixed Assets 320,179 304,614 324,306 1,676,522 1,774,608 1,840,194

Intangible Assets - - 35,139 42,842 39,512 32,474

Other Assets 25,869 28,578 61,015 105,116 80,026 68,743

Total Assets 9,802,274 11,469,936 15,416,019 21,591,120 24,555,208 31,343,955

Before 
Distribution 3,238,771 3,148,529 5,835,781 6,703,726 7,995,409 11,696,609

Current 
Liabilities After 

Distribution 4,126,383 4,854,551 7,165,781 8,738,160 (Note2) (Note 2)

Long-term Liabilities - 300,000 950,848 2,800,000 2,530,000 0

All Reserves 21,756 21,756 21,756 21,756 21,756 21,756

Other Liabilities 303,318 323,750 313,637 41,992 30,970 30,765

Before 
Distribution 3,563,845 3,794,035 7,122,022 9,567,474 10,578,135 11,749,130

Total Liabilities 
After 

Distribution 4,451,457 5,500,057 8,452,022 11,601,908 (Note2) (Note2)

Capital Stock 4,425,500 5,009,000 5,570,000 5,912,778 6,256,144 6,256,144

Capital Surplus 169,242 138,644 304,429 547,067 1,189,030 1,209,663

Before 
Distribution 2,304,305 3,505,336 4,139,103 5,874,021 7,199,022 8,175,838

Retained 
Earnings After 

Distribution 833,193 1,238,314 2,543,103 3,548,954 (Note2) (Note2)

Unrealized Gain/Loss on
Financial Instruments      45     (7,685)   (466,896)   267,676   755,203 5,177,141

Cumulative Transaction
Adjustments (35,424) 172,064 394,110 230,754 (637,052) (438,687)

Treasury Stock (657,010) (1,173,229) (1,678,520) (840,421) (816,568) (816,568)

Net Loss not Recognized as 
Pension cost - - - - (477) (477)

Before 
Distribution 6,238,429 7,675,901 8,293,997 12,023,646 13,977,073 19,594,825Total 

Shareholders’ 
Equities After 

Distribution 5,350,817 5,408,879 6,697,997 9,698,579 (Note2) (Note2)

Note 1: The aforesaid financial data in each fiscal year has been audited by CPA. The number for the 1st quarter in fiscal 
year 2011 has been reviewed by CPA. 
Note 2: Pending earning distribution in fiscal year 2010 for shareholders’ meeting resolution. 
Note 3: Assets has not yet been revaluated in the past five years. 
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6.1.2 Condensed Statement of Income 
Unit: $000’s 

(Except for EPS noted in NT$) 
Financial Information for the Past Five Years (Note 1) Year

Item 
2006 2007 2008 

2009  
(Note 2) 

2010 Q1, 2011 

Sales Revenues 17,879,470 16,521,707 15,803,354 17,746,288 20,162,012 3,890,774

Gross Profit 2,305,193 2,825,217 2,904,580 3,862,905 3,403,426 655,373

Operating Income(loss) 1,363,511 1,617,621 905,737 1,811,941 1,303,862 29,111

Non-operating Income 
and Gains 370,719 1,584,475 2,223,873 1,941,815 2,615,443 1,035,032

Non-operating Expenses 
and Losses (61,768) (39,635) (131,779) (78,449) (69,190) (45,951)

Income (loss) from  
Continuing Operations 
-before Income Tax 

1,672,462 3,162,461 3,015,831 3,675,307 3,850,115 1,018,192

Income (loss) from 
Continuing Operations 
Segments-after Income 
Tax 

1,533,303 2,689,952 2,900,789 3,330,918 3,650,068 976,816

Discontinued 
Operation Income 
(loss) (Note 3) 

- - - - - -

Extraordinary Income 
(loss) (Note 3) - - - - - -

Cumulative Effect of the 
Changes in Accounting 
Principles (Note 3)  

(143)     -      -      -      - -

Income (loss) for 
Current Period 1,533,160 2,689,952 2,900,789 3,330,918 3,650,068 976,816

Earnings per Share 
(NT$)  3.32 5.28 5.52 5.85 6.27 1.68

Note 1: The aforesaid financial data in each fiscal year has been audited by CPA. The number for the 1st quarter in 
fiscal year 2011 has been reviewed by CPA. 

Note 2: Retroactively adjusted for reclassification of earning distribution of profit sharing to employees in stock 
and shares of capital increase out of earnings for fiscal year 2009 that were paid in fiscal year 2010. 

Note 3: Net amount for Discontinued Operation Income (loss), Extraordinary Income (loss) and Cumulative 
Effect of Changes in Accounting Principles after deducting income tax. 
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6.1.3 Auditors’ Opinions  
  CPA names and opinions in the past five years 

Year CPA Audit Opinion 

2006 Wang, Huei Shyang,Wong, Shi-Jung An Unqualified Opinion with explanatory 
paragraph 

2007 Wang, Huei Shyang,Wong, Shi-Jung An Unqualified Opinion with explanatory 
paragraph 

2008 Michael Lee,Wong, Shi-Jung An Unqualified Opinion with explanatory 
paragraph 

209 Michael Lee,Wong, Shi-Jung An Unqualified Opinion with explanatory 
paragraph 

2010 Wang, Huei Shyang,Michael Lee An Unqualified Opinion with explanatory 
paragraph 

 Whether to change CPA in the recent five fiscal years: 
Due to reorganization in PwC Taiwan, auditors in fiscal year 2006 changed from CPA Michael Lee and 
Wang, Huei Shyang to CPA Wang, Huei Shyang and Wong, Shi-Jungin the same firm; auditors in fiscal 
year 2008 changed from CPA Wang, Huei Shyang and Wong, Shi-Jung to CPA Michael Lee and Wong, 
Shi-Jung in the same firm; and auditors in fiscal year 2010 changed from CPA Michael Lee and Wong, 
Shi-Jung to CPA Wang, Huei Shyang and Michael Lee in the same firm. 
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6.2 Financial Analysis for the Past Five Years 

6.2.1 Financial Ratio Analysis 
Financial Information for the Past Five Years 

Year
Item 

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 
Deviation 
over 20% for 
2010 vs. 2009

Reasons 
expla-
nation

Q1, 2011

Liabilities to Assets Ratio (%) 36.36 33.08 46.20 44.31 43.08 -2.78 37.48Capital 
Structure 

Analysis (%) 
Long-term Funds to Fixed Assets 
Ratio (%) 

1,948.42 2,618.36 2,850.65 884.19 930.18 5.20 1,064.82

Current Ratio (%) 123.55 125.61 96.59 105.06 94.34 -10.21 63.88

Quick Ratio (%) 99.97 111.78 88.83 96.68 84.63 -12.47 58.36
Liquidity 

Analysis (%) 
Interest Coverage Ratio (Times) 35.34 105.65 38.52 49.04 58.08 18.42 58.05

Accounts Receivable Turnover 
Rate (Times) 

7.13 6.10 6.70 6.58 5.75 -12.58 4.71

Accounts Receivable Turnover 
Days (Days) 

51.00 60.00 54.00 55.00 63.00 14.39 78.00

Inventory Turnover Rate (Times) 16.78 23.21 29.46 27.48 25.05 -8.84 17.92

Sales Turnover Days (Days) 22.00 16.00 12.00 13.00 15.00 9.70 20.00

Accounts Payable Turnover Rate 
(Times) 7.04 6.53 5.88 3.82 3.57 -6.61 2.83

Fixed Assets Turnover Rate (Times) 50.01 51.43 48.01 16.46 11.29 -31.43 1 8.28

Operating 
Performance 

Analysis 

Total Assets Turnover Rate (Times) 1.77 1.51 1.12 0.89 0.84 -5.14 0.54

Return on Total Assets (%) 16.37 25.50 22.03 18.31 16.06 -12.28 14.19

Return on Equity(%) 27.86 38.66 36.33 32.79 28.08 -14.37 23.28

Operating 
Income  

31.07 32.63 16.26 30.64 20.84 31.99 2 1.86
Ratio to Capital 
Stock (%) Net Profit 

before Tax 
37.79 63.14 54.14 62.16 61.54 -0.99 65.10

Net Profit Margin (%) 9.02 16.74 19.21 20.22 18.73 -7.36 26.12

Before 
Retroaction 

3.82 5.76 5.79 6.20 6.27 1.12 1.68

Profitability 
Analysis 

Earnings per Share 
(NT$) (Note 3) After 

Retroaction 
3.32 5.28 5.52 5.85 6.27 7.28 1.68

Cash Flow Ratio (%) 63.87 12.45 30.78 47.71 15.38 -67.77 3 －

Cash Flow Adequacy Ratio (%) 203.63 153.26 142.41 136.14 113.57 -16.58 －Cash Flow 

Cash Reinvestment Ratio (%) 24.77 -5.67 1.35 12.44 -4.82 -138.73 4 －

Operating Leverage 1.58 1.36 1.84 1.39 1.63 17.43 7.71
Leverage 

Financial Leverage 1.04 1.02 1.10 1.04 1.05 1.00 2.58
Note: 
Analysis of Deviation over 20% for 2010 vs. 2009: 

1. Average balance for this year’s Fixed Assets increased as a result of the decrease of Fixed Assets Turn Over ratio, mainly due 
to land purchase in 2009 for future operating headquarter. 

2. The decrease of Operating Profit and as a result the decrease of Operating Profit to Paid-in Capital ratio is mainly due to an 
increase in cost this year. 

3. Cash Flow ratio decreased mainly due to a decrease in Cash Flow for operating activities compared with that for the last period, 
and an increase in end short-term loan as a result of an increase of Current Liabilities. 

4. Negative Cash Reinvestment Ratio is mainly due to an increase in short-term loans as a result of negative operating funds.
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6.2.2 Consolidated Financial Ratio Analysis  
 

Financial Information for the Past Five Years (Note1) 
Year

 
Item 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 

Deviation over 
20% for 2010 vs. 
2009 

Reasons 
explanation

Liabilities to Assets Ratio (%) 65.17 65.68 69.26 60.61 58.42 -3.60Capital 
Structure 
Analysis 

(%) 
Long-term Funds to Fixed Assets Ratio (%) 208.01 202.98 146.54 206.11 224.91 9.12

Current Ratio (%) 138.37 130.85 108.28 138.75 147.59 6.37
Quick Ratio (%)  88.00 86.18 74.17 96.62 101.63 5.19

Liquidity 
Analysis 

(%) Interest Coverage Ratio (Times) 7.66 13.89 11.34 23.00 40.10 74.30 1
Accounts Receivable Turnover Rate 
(Times) 5.04 4.96 5.10 4.93 5.03 2.04

Accounts Receivable Turnover Days 
(Days) 72.00 74.00 72.00 74.00 73.00 -2.00

Inventory Turnover Rate (Times) 5.27 5.60 5.85 5.83 6.10 4.70
Sales Turnover Days (Days) 69.00 65.00 62.00 63.00 60.00 -4.49
Accounts Payable Turnover Rate (Times) 4.55 4.97 5.55 5.01 4.93 -1.58
Fixed Assets Turnover Rate (Times) 8.19 8.57 8.32 7.34 7.23 -1.59

Operating 
Performance 

Analysis 

Total Assets Turnover Rate (Times) 1.83 1.89 1.87 1.75 1.73 -1.61
Return on Total Assets (%) 9.14 13.32 12.11 11.31 10.72 -5.29
Return on Equity (%) 25.02 35.86 34.59 30.64 25.77 -15.90

Operating Income 40.69 60.33 56.49 68.25 50.27 -26.34 2Ratio to Capital 
Stock (%) Net Profit before Tax 40.31 69.11 58.62 70.27 70.68 0.58
Net Profit Margin (%) 4.40 6.56 5.99 6.19 6.05 -2.16

Before Retroaction 3.82 5.76 5.79 6.20 6.27 1.12

Profitability 
Analysis 

Earnings per Share
(NT$) 
(Note 3) After Retroaction 3.32 5.28 5.52 5.85 6.27 7.28

Cash Flow Ratio (%) 12.73 15.17 10.41 45.09 18.82 -58.26 3
Cash Flow Adequacy Ratio (%) 50.1 47.33 45.01 73.62 79.77 8.35Cash Flow  
Cash Reinvestment Ratio (%) 8.07 8.90 1.95 29.27 5.52 -81.12 4
Operating Leverage 3.01 2.34 3.05 2.74 3.43 25.19 5Leverage 
Financial Leverage 1.17 1.10 1.11 1.05 1.04 -1.12

Note: 
Analysis of Deviation over 20% for 2010 vs. 2009: 

1. The interest expense decreased and as a result interest coverage ratio increased, mainly due to a decrease in the 
average loan balance this year. 

2. The operating income to capital stock ratio decreased mainly due to an increase in costs and a resulting decrease in 
operating income. 
 

3. The cash flow ratio decreased, mainly due to a decrease of cash flow from operating activities. 
 

4. The cash reinvestment ratio decreased, mainly due to a decrease of cash flow from operating activities, and an 
increase of continuous capital expenditure for the following years’ operating efficiencies. 
 

5. Operating leverage increased, mainly due to an increase in unit costs and a resulting lack of increase in operating 
income by sales growth. 
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Note 1: The aforesaid financial data in the previous five fiscal years have been audited by CPA. The numbers for the 1st 
quarter in fiscal year 2011 have been reviewed by CPA.  

Note 2: Calculation formula for each ratio in the above table are as shown on this and the next page. 
Note 3: EPS each year is calculated using the current weighted average shares outstanding as basis and retroactively 

adjusted shares increased from reinvestment of earnings and capital surplus for the previous years.  
Note 4: Calculation formula for each important financial ratio are as shown below: 

(I) Capital Structure Analysis 
(1) Liabilities to Assets ratio = Total Liabilities/Total Assets 
(2) Long-term funds to Fixed Assets ratio= (Stockholder’s Net Equity + Long-term Liabilities)/ Net Fixed 

Assets 
(II)Liquidity Analysis 

(1) Current Ratio = Current Assets/Current Liabilities  
(2) Quick Ratio = (Current Assets –Inventories-Prepaid Expenses)/ Current Liabilities  
(3) Interest Coverage Ratio = Net Profit before Income Tax and Interest Expense/ Interest Expenses 

(III)Operating Performance Analysis 
(1) Account Receivable (including Notes Receivable from operating activities and Accounts Receivable) 

Turnover Rate =Net Sales/ Average Trade Receivables (including Notes Receivable from operating 
activities and Accounts Receivable) 

(2) Accounts Receivable Turnover Days = 365/Account Receivable Turnover Ratio 
(3) Inventory Turnover Rate = Cost of Sales/Average Inventory 
(4) Sales Turnover Days  = 365/Inventory Turnover Ratio  
(5) Account Payable (including Notes Payable from operating activities and Accounts Payable) Turnover Rate 

= Cost of Sales/ average Trade Payable (including Notes Payable from operating activities and Accounts 
Payable) 

(6) Fixed Assets Turnover Rate = Net Sales/Average Net Fixed Assets 
(7) Total Assets Turnover Rate = Net Sales/Average Total Assets 

(IV)Profitability Analysis 
(1) Return on Total Assets = [Net Income + Interest Expense * (1- Tax Rate)]/Average Total Assets 
(2) Return on Equity = Net Income/Average Net Shareholders‘ Equity 
(3) Net Profit Margin = Net Income /Net Sales 
(4) EPS = (Net Income –Preferred Stock Dividend)/Weighted Average Number of Shares outstanding  

(V)Cash Flow 
(1) Cash Flow Ratio = Net Cash Flow from operating activities/Current Liabilities  
(2) Cash Flow Adequacy Ratio = Net Cash Flow from operating activities in the past five years/five-year sum 

of Capital Expenditure; Inventory Additions and Cash Dividend  
(3) Cash Reinvestment Ratio = (Net Cash Flow from operating activities – Cash Dividend)/( Gross Fixed 

Assets + Long-term Investment + Other Assets + Working Capital) 
(VI)Leverage 

(1) Operating Leverage = (Net Sales – Variable Operating Cost and Expense)/Operating Income 
(2) Financial Leverage = Operating Income/(Operating Income –Interest Expense) 

Note 5: The above calculations incorporate the below analysis factors: 
(I) Calculation formula for EPS: 

(1) The calculation is based on the weighted average outstanding shares but not the year-end shares issued. 
(2) The outstanding period of right issues or treasury stock transaction must be taken into consideration 

while calculating weighted average outstanding shares. 
(3) Prorated retroactive adjustments must be made while calculating past and half year EPS when there are  

stock dividends. It is not necessary to consider the issuing period of the stock dividends. 
(4) When nonconvertible preferred stock is cumulative, the preferred dividend is subtracted from net 

income(or loss), whether the dividend is declared or not, when preferred stock is non-cumulative, 
preferred dividend is subtracted if there is net income but no adjustment if here is net loss.. 

(II)Cash Flow Analysis: 
(1) Net Cash Flow from operating activities refers to the cash inflow on the statement of cash flow. 
(2) Capital Expenditure refers to the cash outflow from capital investment each year. 
(3) An increase of inventory is only calculated when ending balance is more than beginning balance. If the 

ending inventory is less than the beginning inventory, this is calculated as zero. 
(4) Cash Dividends include Cash Dividend in common stock and preferred stock. 
(5) Gross Fixed Assets is Total Fixed Assets before deducting accumulated depreciation. 

(III)Each Operating Cost and Operating Expense must be classified into fixed or variable as its nature. If any 
estimation or subjective judgment is involved, the rationale must be maintained consistently. 
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6.3 Supervisor’s Audit Report in the Financial Report for Year 2010 

 

Chicony Electronics Co., Ltd 
Supervisor’s Audit Report 

 

To: Shareholders’ Meeting 2011 

 

Dear Sirs, 

 

This is to approve that no irregularities have been found in the Business Report, Disposition of Earnings, and Financial 

Statements audited by CPAs Michael Lee and Wang, Huei-Shyang in PwC Taiwan submitted by the Board Meeting. I 

hereby issue this report according to Article 219 in the Company Law.  

 

 

 

Supervisor: 

Jing Yuan Investment Co., Ltd. Legal Representative: Huang, Ching Hsun  

 

Supervisor: 

Hua Tai Investment Co., Ltd. Legal Representative: Chang, Su-Chen  

 

Supervisor: 

Dong Ling Investment Co., Ltd. Legal Representative: Ku, Chih-Hsuan 

 

7th April, 2011 
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Report of Independent Accountants

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Chicony Electronics Co., Ltd.

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Chicony Electronics Co., Ltd. and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the related consolidated statements
of income, of changes in stockholders’ equity and of cash flows for the years then ended,
expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We did not audit the 2010
and 2009 financial statements of certain wholly-owned consolidated subsidiaries and
long-term investments in investee companies accounted for under the equity method.
The total assets of those subsidiaries amounted to NT$1,590,569 thousand and
NT$1,595,434 thousand as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively, constituting
4.3% and 4.8% of total consolidated assets, and their total revenues were NT$2,933,795
thousand and NT$2,886,370 thousand for the years then ended, constituting 4.9% and
5.4% of the total consolidated revenues, respectively. The long-term investments in
these investee companies as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 were NT$573,503 thousand
and NT$375,626 thousand, respectively, and the related investment gain recognized for
the years then ended were NT$86,138 thousand and NT$33,484 thousand, respectively.
These statements were audited by other auditors whose reports hereon were furnished to
us. Our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included in the consolidated
financial statements and information disclosed in Note 11 relative to these subsidiaries
and long-term investments, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the “Rules Governing the Examination of
Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants” and generally accepted auditing
standards in the Republic of China. Those rules and standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also included assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits and the report of the other auditors provide a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

 
6.4 Consolidated Financial Statements for the Years Ended December 31, 2010 and 

2009 and Independent Auditors Report  
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In our opinion, based on our audits and the reports of the other auditors, the consolidated
financial statements referred to in the first paragraph present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Chicony Electronics Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for
the years then ended in conformity with the “Rules Governing the Preparation of
Financial Statements by Securities Issuers” and generally accepted accounting principles
in the Republic of China.

As described in Note 3, effective January 1, 2009, the Company adopted the revised
R.O.C. SFAS No. 10. “Accounting for Inventories”.

March 30, 2011

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
The accompanying consolidated financial statements are not intended to present the
financial position, results of operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting
principles and practices generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than the
Republic of China. The standards, procedures and practices in the Republic of China
governing the audit of such consolidated financial statements may differ from those
generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than the Republic of China.
Accordingly, the accompanying consolidated financial statements and report of the
independent accountants are not intended for use by those who are not informed about
the accounting principles and auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of
China, and their applications in practice.
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CHICONY ELECTRONICS CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31
(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS)

2010 2009

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 4(1))
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - current (Note 4(2))
Available-for-sale financial assets - current (Note 4(3))
Notes receivable, net
Accounts receivable, net (Note 4(5))
Accounts receivable, net - related parties (Note 5)
Other receivables (Note 4(5))
Other financial assets - current (Note 6)
Inventories, net (Notes 4(6))
Prepayments
Deferred income tax assets - current (Note 4(20))

Total current assets
Funds and Investments
Available-for-sale financial assets - non-current (Note 4(3))
Financial assets carried at cost - non-current (Note 4(4))
Long-term investments at equity (Note 4(7))
Other financial assets - non-current (Note 6)

Total funds and investments

Property, Plant and Equipment, Net (Notes 4(8) and 6)
Cost
Land
Buildings
Machinery equipment
Molding equipment
Testing equipment
Transportation equipment
Leasehold improvements
Other equipment

Revaluation increments
Cost and revaluation increments
Less: Accumulated depreciation
Construction in progress and prepayments for equipment

Total property, plant and equipment, net
Intangible assets
Computer software cost
Goodwill
Other intangible assets - other (Notes 4(10) and 6)

Total intangible assets
Other Assets
Refundable deposits (Note 6)
Deferred expenses (Note 4(11))
Deferred income tax assets - non-current (Note 4(20))
Other assets - other

Total other assets
TOTALASSETS

(Continued)
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CHICONY ELECTRONICS CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31
(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
See report of independent accountants dated March 30, 2011.

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Short-term loans (Note 4(12))
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss - current (Note 4(2))
Notes payable
Accounts payable
Accounts payable - related parties (Note 5)
Income tax payable (Note 4(20))
Accrued expenses
Other payables (Note 5)
Long-term liabilities - current portion (Notes 4(14) and 6)
Other current liabilities (Note 10)

Total current liabilities
Long-term Liabilities
Long-term loans (Notes 4(14) and 6)

Reserves
Land value incremental reserve (Note 4(8))

Other Liabilities
Accrued pension liabilities (Note 4(15))
Guarantee deposits received
Deferred income tax liabilities - non-current (Note 4(20))

Total other liabilities
Total liabilities
Stockholders' Equity
Capital (Note 4(16))
Common stock

Capital Reserves (Notes 4(13)(17))
Additional paid-in capital
Capital reserve from treasury stock
Capital reserve from long-term investments

Retained Earnings (Note 4(18))
Legal reserve
Special reserve
Undistributed earnings

Other Adjustments to Stockholders' Equity
Cumulative translation adjustments
Net loss not recognized as pension cost
Unrealized gain or loss on financial instruments (Note 4(3))
Unrealized revaluations increments (Note 4(8))

Treasury stock (Notes 4(19) and 6)
Minority interest

Total stockholders' equity
Commitments and Contingent Liabilities (Note 7)
Significant Subsequent Events (Note 9)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
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CHICONY ELECTRONICS CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31

(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS, EXCEPT EARINGS PER SHARE AMOUNTS)

2010 2009

Sales (Note 5)
Sales returns
Sales discounts

Net Sales
Other operating revenue

Total Sales
Operating Costs (Notes 4(6)(22) and 5)
Cost of goods sold

Gross profit
Realized gain from intercompany transactions
Gross profit, net
Operating Expenses (Note 4(22))
Sales and marketing expenses
General and administrative expenses
Research and development expenses

Total Operating Expenses
Operating income
Non-operating Income and Gains
Interest income
Investment income recognized under equity method (Note 4(7))
Dividend income
Rental income
Gain on valuation of financial assets (Note 4(2))
Other non-operating income

Non-operating Income and Gains
Non-operating Expenses and Losses
Interest expense
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Foreign exchange loss, net
Impairment loss (Note 4(9))
Loss on valuation of financial liabilities (Note 4(2))
Other non-operating losses

Non-operating Expenses and Losses
Income from continuing operations before income tax
Income tax expense (Note 4(20))
Consolidated net income
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
Minority interest

Before Tax After Tax Before Tax After Tax
Basic earnings per share (in dollars) (Note 4(21))
Net income
Diluted earnings per share (in dollars)
Net income

Proforma EPS data assuming the Company’s stock held by its subsidiaries are not treated as treasury stock
Net income
Basic earnings per share
Net income

Diluted earnings per share
Net income

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
See report of independent accountants dated March 30, 2011.
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CHICONY ELECTRONICS CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31
(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS)

2010 2009
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Consolidated net income
Adjustments to reconcile consolidated net income to net cash
provided by operating activities
Depreciation
Amortization
Provision for (reversal of ) allowance for doubtful accounts
Provision for inventory price decline and obsolescence(net)
Gain on valuation of financial assets
Loss on valuation of financial liabilities
Investment gain recognized under the equity method
Cash dividends from long-term investments at equity
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
(net)
Loss on impairment
Amortization of premium or discount on convertible bonds
Gain on conversion of bonds pre-redemption
Changes in assets and liabilities
Changes in financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss - current
Notes receivable
Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable, net - related parties
Other receivables
Other financial assets - current
Inventories
Prepayments
Deferred income tax assets
Notes payable
Accounts payable
Accounts payable - related parties
Accrued expense
Income tax payable
Other payables
Other current liabilities
Accrued pension liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

(Continued)
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
See report of independent accountants dated March 30, 2011.

CHICONY ELECTRONICS CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS(CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31
(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS)

2010 2009
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTINGACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of available - for - sales financial assets
Increase in financial assets carried at cost-non-current
Increase in long-term investments at equity – non subsidiaries
Proceeds from disposal of long-term investments at equity
Decrease in other financial assets - non-current
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Increase in other intangible assets
Increase in deferred expense
(Increase)decrease in refundable deposits
(Increase) decrease in other assets - other

Net cash used in investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCINGACTIVITIES
Increase (decrease) in short-term loans
Repayment of bonds payable
Increase in notes and bills payable
Increase in long-term loans
Repayment of long-term loans
(Decrease) increase in guarantee deposits received
Payment of cash dividends
Acquisition of treasury stock
Proceeds from disposal of treasury stock
Changes in minority interest

Net cash used in financing activities
Effect of change in foreign exchange rate
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW
INFORMATION
Interest paid
Income tax paid
INVESTINGAND FINANCINGACTIVITIES NOT
AFFECTING CASH FLOW
Distribution of stock dividends
Convertible bonds transferred to common stock
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CHICONY ELECTRONICS CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009
(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS,

EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE INDICATED)

1. HISTORY AND ORGANIZATION

1) The Company

Chicony Electronics Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) was incorporated in 1983 as a
company limited by shares under the provisions of the Company Law of the
Republic of China. The Company is engaged in the manufacturing and sales of
keyboards and other computer peripheral components.
The Company has been a listed company since 1999. As of December 31,
2010, the Company had approximately 590 employees.

2) Subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements and their changes
in 2010

Ownership (%)

Investor Subsidiary Main activities Dec. 31, 2010 Dec. 31, 2009 Description
Chicony
Electronics
Co., Ltd.
(CEC)

Chicony Overseas
Inc. (COI)

Sales of computer
peripherals
Management of
overseas
acquisitions &
investments

100 100

Unikey Electronics
Co., Ltd.
(UNIKEY)

Manufacturing and
sales of
computer and
computer
peripherals

100 100

Hipro Overseas
(BVI) Inc.(HOI)

Sales of switching
power supplies
and other
electronic parts
and management
of overseas
acquisitions &
investments

100 100

Hipro Electronics
Ltd.(HEC)

Sales of switching
power supplies
and other
electronic parts

100 100
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Ownership (%)

Investor Subsidiary Main activities Dec. 31, 2010 Dec. 31, 2009 Description
Chicony
Electronics
Co., Ltd.
(CEC)

XAVi Technology
Corp.(XAVi)

Researching,
manufacturing
and selling the
DSL Bridge and
Router

68 50

Chicony Elec.
(Thailand) Co., Ltd.
(CET)

Manufacturing and
sales of computer
peripherals

100 100

Chicony Global
Inc.(CGI)

Sales of computer
peripherals

100 100

Chicony Power
Technology Co.,Ltd.
(CP)

Manufacturing and
selling the plastic
goods

70 70

Had Eri Iou
Industrial Inc. Ltd.
(HEI)

Manufacturing and
selling the plastic
goods

50 50

COI Chicony America
Inc.

Sales of computer
peripherals

100 100

Chicony Electronics
GmbH.

100 100

Chicony Electronics
(Dong Guan) Co.,
Ltd. (CEM2)

Manufacturing and
sales of computer
and computer
peripherals

100 100

Mao-Feng
International Inc.
(Mao-Feng)

Sales of computer
peripherals
Management of
overseas
acquisitions &
investments

100 100

Chicony Electronics
(Suzhou) Co., Ltd.
(CEM3)

Manufacturing and
sales of computer
and computer
peripherals

100 100

Chicony Electronics
CEZ s.r.o.

Sales of computer
peripherals

100 100

Hipro Electronics
Public Company
Limited

Manufacturing and
sales of switching
power supplies
and other
electronic parts

100 100

Global Faith
Inc.(GFI)

Sales of computer
peripherals
Management of
overseas
acquisitions &
investments

60 60

Suzhou
Mao-Qun
Electronics Co., Ltd.

Manufacturing of
electronic parts,
keyboard and
plastic products

60 60
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Ownership (%)

Investor Subsidiary Main activities Dec. 31, 2010 Dec. 31, 2009 Description
COI Chicony Electronics

Japan Co., Ltd.
Sales of computer
peripherals
Management of
overseas
acquisitions &
investments

100 100

Kuang Mao
International Inc.

Sales of computer
peripherals
Management of
overseas
acquisitions &
investments

100 100

Chicony America
Group Inc.

Internet solution
for E-Commerce
solution

100 100

UNIKEY Mao-Ray
Electronics (Dong
Guan) Co., Ltd.
(Mao-Ray)

Manufacturing of
electronic parts,
keyboard and
plastic products

100 100

Real Young
Electronics Co., Ltd.

Sales of computer
peripherals
Management of
overseas
acquisitions &
investments

100 100

HOI Hipro Electronics
(Shang Hai) Co.,
Ltd.

Manufacturing and
sales of switching
power supplies
and other
electronic parts

100 100

HEC Quansun Investment
Corp. Ltd.

Investment 100 100

Qun-Jing Power
Co.,Ltd

Sales of computer
peripherals

100 100

CP Chicony Power
Holdings Inc. (CPH)

Investment
holdings

100 100

Chicony Power
International Inc.
(CPI)

Manufacturing and
sales of switching
power supplies
and other
electronic parts

100 100 Note A

Chicony Power
Technology Hong
Kong Limited
(CPHK)

Research and
development
centre

100 100 Note A
Note B
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Ownership (%)

Investor Subsidiary Main activities Dec. 31, 2010 Dec. 31, 2009 Description
CP Chicony Power

USA Inc. (CPUS)
Manufacturing and
sales of switching
power supplies
and other
electronic parts

100 100 Note A
Note C

CPHK Hipro Electronics
(Dong Guan) Co.,
Ltd.

Manufacturing and
sales of switching
power supplies
and other
electronic parts

100 100 Note A

Chicony Power
Technology
(Suzhou) Co.,
Ltd.(CPSZ)

Manufacturing of
switching power
supplies and
other electronic
parts

100 100 Note A
Note D

Quang Sheng
Electronics
(Nanchang)
Co.,Ltd. (QS)

Manufacturing of
switching power
supplies and
other electronic
parts

100 100 Note A

XAVi Directmax
International Ltd.

Management of
overseas
acquisitions &
investments

100 100

XAVi Overseas Ltd. Sales of DSL
Bridge and Router
Management of
overseas
acquisitions &
investments

100 100

Systemax
Development Ltd.

Sales of DSL
Bridge and Router

100 100

XAVi Technologies
(Suzhou) Co., Ltd.

Manufacturing and
sales of DSL
Bridge and Router

100 100

Blitzz Technology
Inc.

Wholesaler - 90 Note E

BLITZZ
Technology Corp.

Manufacturing and
sales of DSL
Bridge and Router

- 100 Note F

HEI GUIDWAY
GLOBAL
LIMITED

Sale of plastic
goods

100 100

HAD ERI IOU
INTERNATIONAL
Co., LIMITED.

Sale of plastic
goods

100 100

HOLYU
INTERNATIONAL
Co.,Ltd.

Investment 100 100

Dong Guan Had Eri
Iou Plastics
Corporation

Manufacturing and
sales of plastic
goods

100 100
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Note A The subsidiaries of HOI were transferred to HHK in 2008 due to internal
reorganization. CPHK and CPUS were transferred to CPI in 2009.

Note B Formerly Hipro Hong Kong Limited. (HHK)
Note C Formerly Hipro Technologies Inc. (HUS)
Note D Formerly Hipro Electronics (Suzhou) Co., Ltd. (HSZ)
Note E Liquidation was completed in February 2010.
Note F Liquidation was completed in September 2010.

3) Subsidiaries not included in the consolidated financial statements None

4) Adjustments for subsidiaries with different balance sheet dates None

5) Special operating risks in foreign subsidiaries None

6) Nature and extent of the restrictions on fund remittance from subsidiaries to the
parent company None

7) Contents of subsidiaries’ securities issued by the parent company: See Note 4(19)

8) Information on convertible bonds and common stock issued by subsidiaries
None.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (Collectively referred herein as the Group) are prepared in accordance
with the “Rules Governing the Preparation of Financial Statements by Securities
Issuers” and generally accepted accounting principles in the Republic of China.
The Group’s significant accounting policies are summarized below:

1) Basis for preparation of consolidated financial statements

All majority-owned subsidiaries and controlled entities are included in the
consolidated financial statements. The income (loss) of the subsidiaries is
included in the consolidated statement of income effective on the date the
Company gains control over the subsidiaries. The income (loss) of the
subsidiaries is excluded from the consolidated statement of income effective the
date on which the Company loses control over the subsidiaries. Significant
inter-company transactions and assets and liabilities arising from inter-company
transactions are eliminated. The Company prepares consolidated financial
statements on a semi-annual and annual basis.

2) Translation of financial statements of foreign subsidiaries

Assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries are translated into New Taiwan
dollars using the exchange rates at the balance sheet date. Equity accounts are
translated at historical rates except for beginning retained earnings, which are
carried forward from prior year’s balance. Dividends are translated at the rates
prevailing at the date of declaration. Profit and loss accounts are translated at
weighted-average rates of the year. The resulting translation differences are
included in “cumulative translation adjustments” under stockholders’ equity.
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3) Foreign currency transactions

A. The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries maintain their accounts in
New Taiwan dollars and their functional currencies, respectively.
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into New
Taiwan dollars and their functional currencies at the spot exchange rates
prevailing at the transaction dates. Exchange gain or losses due to the
difference between the exchange rate on the transaction date and the
exchange rate on the date of actual receipt and payment are recognized in
current year’s profit or loss.

B. Receivables, other monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the spot exchange rates prevailing at the balance
sheet date. Exchange gains or losses are recognized in profit or loss.

C. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognized directly in equity,
any exchange component of that gain or loss shall be recognized directly in
equity. Conversely, when a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognized
in profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain or loss shall be
recognized in profit or loss. However, non-monetary items that are
measured on a historical cost basis are translated using the exchange rate at
the date of the transaction.

4) Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

A) Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are recognized and derecognized using trade date accounting and are
recognized initially at fair value.

B) These financial instruments are subsequently remeasured and stated at fair
value, and the gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss. The fair value
of listed stocks, OTC stocks and convertible bonds is based on latest
quoted fair prices of the accounting period.

C) When a derivative is an ineffective hedging instrument and non-option
derivative, the fair value initially recognized is zero. And when a derivative
is an ineffective hedging instrument and option derivative, the fair value
initially recognized in trade date.

D) For call options, put options, resetting options and conversion options not
belonging to equity instrument, which are embedded in bonds payable,
please refer to Note 2(14).

E) Effective July 24, 2008, the Company had listed (TSE and OTC) stocks
which were originally recognized as “financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss” that were reclassified to “available-for-sale financial assets”,
based on the amended paragraph 104 of R.O.C. SFAS No. 34. “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”.
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5) Available-for-sale financial assets
A. Available-for-sale financial assets are recognized and derecognized using
trade date accounting and are recognized initially at its fair value plus
transaction costs that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset.

B. The financial assets are remeasured and stated at fair value, and the gain or
loss is recognized in equity. The fair value of listed stocks and OTC stocks
are based on latest quoted fair prices of the accounting period.

C. If there is any objective evidence that the financial asset is impaired, the
cumulative loss that had been recognized directly in equity shall be removed
from equity and recognized in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognized
previously in profit or loss for an investment in an equity instrument shall not
be reversed through profit or loss, and if, subsequently, the fair value of a
debt instrument increases and the increase can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized in profit or loss, the
impairment loss shall be reversed, with the amount of the reversal recognized
in profit or loss.

6) Financial assets carried at cost
A. Investment in unquoted equity instruments is recognized or derecognized
using trade date accounting and is recognized initially at its fair value plus
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset.

B. If there is any objective evidence that the financial asset is impaired, the
impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss. Such impairment loss cannot
be reversed.

7) Allowance for doubtful accounts
Allowance for doubtful accounts is provided according to an evaluation of the
collectibility of ending balances of notes and accounts receivable, receivables
from related parties and other receivables.

8) Inventories

The perpetual inventory system is adopted for inventory recognition. Inventories
are stated at cost. The cost is determined using the average method. At the end of
period, other than allowance for obsolescence, inventories are evaluated at the
lower of cost or net realizable value, and the individual item approach is used in
the comparison of cost and net realizable value. The calculation of net realizable
value should be based on the estimated selling price in the normal course of
business, net of estimated costs of completion and estimated selling expenses.
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9) Long-term equity investments accounted for under the equity method

A. Long-term equity investments in which the Group holds more than 20% of
the investee company’s voting shares or has the ability to exercise
significant influence on the investee’s operational decisions are accounted
for under the equity method. The excess of the initial investment cost
over the acquired net asset value of the investee attributable to goodwill is
no longer amortized, effective January 1, 2006. Retrospective adjustment of
the amount of goodwill amortized in previous years is not required. The
excess of acquired net asset value of investee over the initial investment
cost is allocated proportionately and applied as a reduction to the book
values of identifiable non-current assets, and any remaining amount of such
excess after this allocation is credited to extraordinary gains. However,
negative goodwill incurred prior to December 31, 2005 is continuously
amortized.

B. Exchange differences arising from translation of the financial statements of
overseas investee companies accounted for under the equity method are
recorded as “cumulative translation adjustments” under stockholders’
equity.

10) Property, plant and equipment

A. Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost except for certain land
which is carried at government indexed appraised value.

B. Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. Major
renewals and improvements are treated as capital expenditure and
depreciated accordingly.

C. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line method based on the service lives
prescribed by the Government. The estimated useful lives for the plant and
buildings are 2-55 years and for other fixed assets are 1-15 years.

D. Property, plant and equipment not used in operations are transferred to other
assets and are stated at the lower of book value or market price; the
depreciation expense are recorded in non-operating expenses in the current
year.

11) Intangible assets

Computer software expenditures are stated at cost and amortized on a straight-
line basis over 1 to 8 years.

12) Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets, mainly land use rights, are amortized on a straight-line
basis over 44 to 50 years.

-103- 



13) Deferred charges

Deferred charges, including the cost of patents , are stated at cost and amortized
on a average method over 1 to 10 years.

14) Convertible bonds

For the bonds payable embedded in conversion option, call option, put option
and resetting option issued after January 1, 2006, the issuer of a financial
instrument shall classify the instrument, or its component parts, on initial
recognition as a financial liability, a financial asset or an equity instrument in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement and the
definitions of a financial liability, a financial asset and an equity instrument.
These bonds are accounted for as follows:

A)The difference between the issue price and face value of convertible
corporate bonds is accounted for as premium or discount which is required
to be amortized over the period from the date of issuance to maturity date
using the straight line method and is recorded as “interest expense”.

B) The value of any derivative features (such as a call option, put option and
resetting option) embedded in the compound financial instrument is
recognized as “financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss”. These derivative features are subsequently remeasured and
stated at fair value on each balance sheet date, and the gain or loss is
recognized in “gain or loss on valuation of financial assets or financial
liabilities”.

C) A conversion option embedded in the bonds issued by the Company, which
is convertible to an equity instrument, is recognized in “capital reserve
from stock warrants”. When a bondholder exercises his/her conversion
rights, the liability component of the bonds (including corporate bonds and
embedded derivatives) shall be revalued, and the resulting difference shall
be recognized as “gain or loss” in the current period. The book value of
the common stock issued due to the conversion shall be based on the
adjusted book value of the above-mentioned liability component plus the
book value of the stock warrants.

D) Costs incurred on issuance of convertible bonds are proportionally charged
to the liabilities and equities of the underlying instruments based on initial
recognition costs.

15) Pension plan and pension cost

Under the defined benefit pension plan, net periodic pension costs are
recognized in accordance with the actuarial calculations. Net periodic pension
costs include service cost, interest cost, expected return on plan assets, and
amortization of unrecognized net transition obligation and gains or losses on
plan assets.
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16) Income taxes

A) Provision for income tax includes deferred income tax resulting from
temporary differences, investment tax credits and loss carryforward.
Valuation allowance on deferred tax assets is provided to the extent that it
is more likely than not that the tax benefit will not be realized. Over or
under provision of prior years’ income tax liabilities is included in current
year’s income tax. When a change in the tax laws is enacted, the deferred
tax liability or asset should be recomputed accordingly in the period of
change. The difference between the new amount and the original amount,
that is, the effect of changes in the deferred tax liability or asset, should be
recognized as an adjustment to income tax expense (benefit) for income
from continuing operations in the current period.

B) Investment tax credits arising from research and development are
recognized in the year the related expenditures are incurred.

C) An additional 10% tax is levied on the unappropriated retained earnings
and is recorded as income tax expense in the year the stockholders resolve
to retain the earnings.

17) Treasury stock

A. When a company acquires its outstanding shares as treasury stock, the
acquisition cost should be debited to the treasury stock account (a contra
account under stockholders’ equity) if the shares are purchased.

B. Treasury stocks transferred to employees on or after January 1, 2008 are
accounted for in accordance with R.O.C. SFAS No. 39, “Accounting for
Share-based Payment”.

C. When a company’s treasury stock is retired, the treasury stock account
should be credited, and the capital surplus- premium on stock account and
capital stock account should be debited proportionately according to the
share ratio. An excess of the carrying value of treasury stock over the sum of
its par value and premium on stock should first be offset against capital
surplus from the same class of treasury stock transactions, and the remainder,
if any, debited to retained earnings. An excess of the sum of the par value
and premium on stock of treasury stock over its carrying value should be
credited to capital surplus from the same class of treasury stock transactions.

D. The cost of treasury stock is determined by the weighted-average method.

E. The Company’s common stock owned by its subsidiaries is treated as
treasury stock.

F. Cash dividend from the Company which subsidiaries received should be
wrote off long-term investment revenue and adjusted to “additional paid-in
capital - treasury stock transactions”.
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18) Share-based payment –employee compensation plan

For the grant date of the share-based payment agreements set on or after
January 1, 2008, the Group shall measure the services received during the
vesting period by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments granted
and account for those amounts as payroll expenses during the period.

19) Employee’s bonuses and directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration

Effective January 1, 2008, pursuant to EITF 96-052 of the Accounting
Research and Development Foundation, R.O.C., dated March 16, 2007,
“Accounting for Employees’ Bonuses and Directors’ and Supervisors’
Remuneration”, the costs of employees’ bonuses and directors’ and
supervisors’ remuneration are accounted for as expenses and liabilities,
provided that such a recognition is required under legal or constructive
obligation and those amounts can be estimated reasonably. However, if the
accrued amounts for employees’ bonuses and directors’ and supervisors’
remuneration are significantly different from the actual distributed amounts
resolved by the stockholders at their annual stockholders’ meeting
subsequently, the differences shall be recognized as gain or loss in the
following year. In addition, according to EITF 97-127 of the Accounting
Research and Development Foundation, R.O.C., dated March 31, 2008,
“Criteria for Listed Companies in Calculating the Number of Shares of
Employees’ Stock Bonus”, the Company calculates the number of shares of
employees’ stock bonus based on the closing price of the Company's common
stock at the previous day of the stockholders’ meeting held in the year
following the financial reporting year, and after taking into account the effects
of ex-rights and ex-dividends.

20) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group recognizes impairment loss when there is indication that the
recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of the fair value less costs to sell and value in use. The fair
value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of the asset in an
arm’s length transaction after deducting any direct incremental disposal costs.
The value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows to be
derived from continuing use of the asset and from its disposal at the end of its
useful life. When the impairment no longer exists, the impairment loss
recognized in prior years shall be recovered.

The recoverable amount of goodwill, intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives and intangible assets which have not yet been available for use shall be
evaluated periodically. Impairment loss will be recognized whenever there is
indication that the recoverable amount of these assets is less than their
respective carrying amount. Impairment loss of goodwill recognized in prior
years is not recoverable in the following years.
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21) Revenue, cost and expenses

Revenue is recognized when the earning process is substantially completed and
they are realized or realizable. Costs and expenses are recognized as incurred.

22) Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those assumptions and estimates.

23) Classification of current and non-current items

A. Assets that meet one of the following criteria are classified as current assets;
otherwise they are classified as non-current assets:
a) Assets arising from operating activities that are expected to be realized
or consumed, or are intended to be sold within the normal operating
cycle;

b) Assets held mainly for trading purposes;

c) Assets that are expected to be realized within twelve months from the
balance sheet date;

d) Cash and cash equivalents, excluding restricted cash and cash
equivalents and those that are to be exchanged or used to pay off
liabilities more than twelve months after the balance sheet date.

B. Liabilities that meet one of the following criteria are classified as current
liabilities; otherwise they are classified as non-current liabilities:

a) Liabilities arising from operating activities that are expected to be paid
off within the normal operating cycle;

b) Liabilities arising mainly from trading activities;

c) Liabilities that are to be paid off within twelve months from the balance
sheet date;

d) Liabilities for which the repayment date cannot be extended
unconditionally to more than twelve months after the balance sheet date.

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES AND ESTIMATES

1) Changes in accounting principle- Inventory

Effective January 1, 2009, the Company adopted the amendments to R.O.C.
SFAS No. 10, Accounting for Inventories”. As a result of this change of
accounting principle, operating cost increased by $67,071, net income
decreased by $67,071 and earnings per share decreased by $0.12 (in dollars)
for the year ended December 31, 2009.
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2) Changes in accounting estimates- Estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

Effective January 1, 2009, the subsidiary-Hipro Electronics (Dong Guan) Co.,
Ltd. changed the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment
according to their future economic benefits. As a result of this change, post-
tax net income of Hipro Electronics (Dong Guan) Co., Ltd. increased by RMB
7,323,000. Recognized pro rata and using average exchange rate, the
Company’s post-tax net income increased by $24,860 and earnings per share
increased by $0.05 (in dollars) for the year ended December 31, 2009.

4. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTS

1) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

December 31,
2010 2009

Cash on hand
Time deposits
Checking and demand deposits

2) FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS-
CURRENT

December 31,
2010 2009

Financial assets held for trading
Derivatives:
Forward exchange contracts
SWAP
Total

Financial liabilities held for trading
Derivatives:
Forward exchange contracts
SWAP
Total

A) The Group recognized net gain of $259,363 and $172,604 for the years ended
December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
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B) The trading items and contract information of derivatives are as follows:

December 31, 2010
Contract Amount
(In thousands)

Contract Period

Forward exchange contract-E. Sun Bank
(5 items)
Forward exchange contract-DBS (4 items)
Forward exchange contract-China Citic
Bank (2 items)
Forward exchange contract-CCB (5 items)
Forward exchange contract-ICBC
Forward exchange contract-REDIT
AGRICOLE Corporate and Investment Bank
(3 items)
Forward exchange contract-HSBC
SWAP- Ta Chong Bank (5items)
SWAP- E. Sun Bank (3 items)
SWAP-Taiwan Cooperative Bank
SWAP-China Development Financial Bank
SWAP- Taiwan Business Bank
SWAP- First Bank

December 31, 2009
Contract Amount
(In thousands)

Contract Period

Forward exchange contract-DBS (2 items)
Forward exchange contract-Chinatrust
Commercial Bank(3 items)
Forward exchange contract-Ta Chong Bank
(5 items)
Forward exchange contract-Taishin Bank
(3 items)
Forward exchange contract-E. Sun Bank
(5items)
Forward exchange contract-Entie Bank
Forward exchange contract-Hua Nan Bank
Forward exchange contract-First Bank

The forward exchange of the Group is to hedge the change in foreign exchange
rates, but not adopting the hedging accounting because it does not conform to all
the condition indicated in R.O.C. SFAS No. 34.

C) Due to the financial meltdown in 2008, listed (TSE and OTC) stocks
amounting to $1,085,404 have been reclassified from “financial assets at fair
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value through profit or loss” to “available-for-sale financial assets” on July 24,
2008 in accordance with the amended paragraph 104 of R.O.C. SFAS No. 34.
“Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”. The following is the
relevant information:

(1)The balance of the above mentioned reclassified assets on December 31,
2010 and 2009 is as follows:

December 31, 2010 December 31, 2009
Listed (TSE or OTC) stocks
Convertible bonds

(2)The relevant information in fair value change of the reclassified financial
assets is as follows:

For the year ended
December 31, 2010

For the year ended
December 31, 2009

Gain or loss is
recognized
in equity

Gain or loss is
recognized
in equity

Listed (TSE or OTC) stocks
Convertible bonds

If the above financial assets were not classified to “available-for-sale
financial assets” on July 24, 2008, the Group would have recognized a net
gain (loss) as follows:

Amount
For the period from July 24, 2008 to December 31, 2008
For the year ended December 31, 2009
For the year ended December 31, 2010
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3) AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
December 31,

2010 2009
Current items:
Listed stocks
Convertible bonds
Beneficiary certificates
Subtotal
Adjustment of available-for-sale financial
assets
Total
Non-current items:
Listed stocks
Adjustment of available-for-sale financial
assets
Total

4) FINANCIAL ASSETS CARRIED AT COST – NON-CURRENT

December 31,
2010 2009

OTC stocks – Alcor Micro Corp.
Listed stocks – TPK Holding Co., Ltd.
Listed stocks – ShunOn Electronic Co., Ltd.
Listed stocks – Genesis Photonics Inc.
Unlisted stocks

A) For the year ended December 31, 2010, the above listed stocks and OTC
stocks were private placements:

1) The OTC stocks -Alcor Micro Corp. could not be sold until October,
2012, in accordance with the R.O.C. Securities Exchange Law.

2) The listed stocks - Genesis Photonics Inc. could not be sold until May,
2013, in accordance with the R.O.C. Securities Exchange Law.

3) The listed stocks - ShunOn Electronic Co., Ltd. could not be sold until
April, 2013, in accordance with the R.O.C. Securities Exchange Law.

B) The Company holds 1,099,879 shares of Alcor Micro Corp’s stock,
amounting to $ 60,000, that can be sold after October, 2010. Hence, the
stocks were transferred to available-for-sale financial assets – current.

C) The subsidiary of the Company obtained the listed stocks - TPK Holding Co.,
Ltd. in December, 2009, and TPK Holding Co., Ltd. has been listed in
October, 2010. As of the year ended December 31, 2010, this investment
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could still not be sold, so the Group recorded it as financial assets carried at
cost.

D) Other unlisted stocks were measured at cost since its fair value cannot be
measured reliably.

5) ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, NET - THIRD PARTIES
December 31,

2010 2009
Accounts receivable
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts

A.The Company factored its accounts receivable without recourse to various
banks. Under the contracts, the banks may retain part of the balance as
retention fund. The retention fund less fees and interests would be settled by
the banks when balances are collected in full.

B. As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the outstanding accounts receivable sold
were as follows:

December 31, 2010
Purchaser of
accounts
receivable

Accounts
receivable
sold Limit

Amount
advanced

Interest
rate

Amount
retained

Fubon Bank
SinoPac Bank
SMBC
Taishin Bank

December 31, 2009
Purchaser of
accounts
receivable

Accounts
receivable
sold Limit

Amount
advanced

Interest
rate

Amount
retained

Fubon Bank
SinoPac Bank
Taishin Bank

C. As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Group had issued promissory notes to
guarantee for the sales of accounts receivable, please see Note 7 (2).

-112- 



6) INVENTORIES, NET

December 31,
2010 2009

Raw materials and supplies
Work in process
Finished goods
Less: Allowance for price decline and

obsolescence

Inventory in transit

Expense and loss incurred on inventories for the years ended December 31, 2010
and 2009 were as follows:

For the years ended December 31
2010 2009

Cost of inventories sold
Loss on market price decline
Loss (gain) on physical inventory

7) LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS AT EQUITY

A. The breakdown of long-term investments:

December 31, 2010 2010

Investee company Amount

Percentage
Of

Ownership

Investment
Income/
(Loss)

Skanhex Technology Inc. (Skanhex)
Newmax Technology Co., Ltd.
(Newmax)
Sky Fine Investment Limited

December 31, 2009 2009

Investee company Amount

Percentage
Of

Ownership

Investment
Income/
(Loss)

Skanhex Technology Inc. (Skanhex)
Newmax Technology Co., Ltd.
(Newmax)
DigiLife Technologies Co., Ltd
Sky Fine Investment Limited

B. The investment income of these investee companies accounted for under the
equity method was audited by other auditors.
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8) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

December 31, 2010

Cost
Appraisal
increment

Accumulated
depreciation

Net
book value

Land
Plant and buildings
Machinery equipment
Tooling equipment
Test equipment
Transportation equipment
Leasehold improvements
Miscellaneous equipment
Prepayment for equipment

December 31, 2009

Cost
Appraisal
increment

Accumulated
depreciation

Net
book value

Land
Plant and buildings
Machinery equipment
Tooling equipment
Test equipment
Transportation equipment
Leasehold Improvements
Miscellaneous equipment
Prepayment for equipment

A. The revaluation increment of land and the reserve for land incremental tax was
$84,208 and $36,488, respectively. The net appreciation on revaluation of
$47,720 was transferred to capital reserve as of December 31, 1999. As of
December 31, 2010, the reserve for land incremental tax was $31,771.

B. No interest was capitalized in 2010 and 2009.

C. Effective January 1, 2009, the subsidiary-Hipro Electronics (Dong Guan) Co.,
Ltd. changed the estimated useful lives of its property, plant and equipment.
Please see Note 3(2) for detailed information.
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9) IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

For the years ended December 31,
2010 2009

Impairment loss-idle assets

10) INTANGIBLE ASSETS

December 31,
2010 2009

Land use rights
Less: accumulated amortization

11)DEFERRED CHARGES

December 31,
2010 2009

Trademarks
Patents
Others

12) SHORT-TERM LOANS

December 31,
2010 2009

Secured short-term bank loans
Unsecured short-term bank loans

Interest rates
As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Group had issued promissory notes to
guarantee the short-term loans, please see Notes 6 and 7(2).

13)BONDS PAYABLE

1) The Company issued unsecured convertible bonds in May, 2008. Except for
the early redemption and cancellation of the bonds amounting to $9,400, the
Company, as of November 18, 2009, had converted bonds totaling $990,600
(face value) to 19,889,118 shares of common stocks from treasury stocks.

2) The Company reversed Capital reserve- treasury stock amounting to
$179,681 and Capital reserve-stock warrants amounting to $54,740 due to
the above early redemption and cancellation of the bonds.
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14) LONG-TERM LOANS
Bank Period Interest December, 31, 2010

E Sun Bank(Series A)
E Sun Bank
(Series B)(Note)
E Sun Bank
(Series B)(Note)
SinoPac Bank
SinoPac Bank
Industrial Bank of
Taiwan
TCB BANK(Note)
TCB BANK(Note)
TCB BANK(Note)
Less: Current portion

Bank Period Interest December, 31, 2009
E Sun Bank(Series A)
E Sun Bank
(Series B)(Note)
E Sun Bank
(Series B)(Note)
SinoPac Bank
SinoPac Bank
TCB BANK(Note)
TCB BANK(Note)

Note: Revolving credit in three years starting from three and a half years after
the first drawdown, each credit period limited to 90 to 180 days.

A) As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Group had issued promissory notes
to guarantee the long-term loans, please see Notes 6 and 7(2).

B) A long-term syndicated construction loan facility amounting to $4,000,000
(Series A: $2,400,000, can finance in batches but credit revolvable; Series B:
$1,600,000, credit revolvable) for three years was signed by the Company,
with E. Sun Commercial Bank as the lead bank in January 2009. It is to be
used for medium term operating capital. Repayments will be in accordance
with contract requirements. As of December 31, 2010, $2,500,000 was
drawdown. The main contents of the contract are as follows:

a. Semi-annual and annual reports should maintain financial ratios as
follows:
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i) Current ratio is above 100%,
ii) Financial liabilities less cash and cash equivalents divided by net
tangible assets is under 140%,

iii) Time interest earned is above 300%,
iv) Net tangible assets are above $6,000,000,
v) Liability ratio is under 320% on June 30, 2009, December 31, 2009
and June 30, 2010; under 300% on December 31, 2010 and June 30,
2011; under 250% on December 31, 2011.

If the Company does not conform to the contract, the Company should
modify within nine month.

b. The Company should use the debts for its intended purpose (not for
treasury stock, capital expenditure, cash dividends and investments) and
prepare the appropriate books and records of outlay for examinations.
Lenders do not take responsibility for supervision.

c. If the Company needs additional operating capital, the Company should
issue stocks for cash, borrow from stockholders, or others. If the
borrower obtains capital from stockholders, the Company should get the
commitment from stockholders that the creditor's right is subordinated,
and the interest rate should not be over the lowest rate in the contract.

d. Parts of the credit rights of qualified accounts receivable of the Company
are transferred to the lead bank after the contract date. These qualified
accounts receivable plus the balance of the special-purpose bank account
should be over 100% of the facility of Series B.

C) A long-term syndicated construction loan facility amounting to $3,500,000
(credit revolvable) for three years was signed by CP, with Taiwan
Cooperative Bank as the lead bank in October 2009. It is to be used for
medium term operating capital. As of December 31, 2010, $1,572,210 is
drawdown and repayments will be in accordance with contract
requirements.. The main contents of the contract are as follows:

a. Annual consolidated financial reports should maintain financial ratios as
follows:

i) Current ratio is above 100%,
ii) Financial liabilities divided by net tangible asset is under 270%,
iii) Time interest earned is above 300%,
iv) Net tangible assets are above $2,000,000,

If CP does not conform to the contract, it should modify within nine
months.

b. The ratio of qualified accounts receivable plus the balance of the
special-purpose bank account dividend by the balance drawn down
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should be over 85% of the facility of Series B. The abovementioned
balance drawn down is the amount going to draw plus the amount hadn’t
been reimbursed. If CP does not conform to the contract, it should notify
the lead bank and take the following measures:

i) To provide other qualified accounts receivable agreed by lead bank; or
ii) To reimburse in advance; or
iii) To deposit to the special-purpose bank account.

c. CP should pay the commission fee every three months after six month
later than the first drawdown. The payment is 0.15% of the margin
between the balance drawn down and 60% of the facility.

d. The Company and affiliate companies should hold over 51% shares of CP,
and control the operating rights (have over 51% shares of the Board of
directors and supervisors) or follow “Taiwan Stock Exchange
Corporation Rules Governing the Collection of Securities Listing
Application Review Fees” and “GreTai Securities Market Regulations
Governing Review of Securities Traded on Over-the-Counter Markets”.

15)RESERVE FOR PENSION

A. The Company and its Taiwan subsidiaries have their own non-contributory
and funded defined benefit pension plan in accordance with the Labor
Standards Law, covering all regular employees hired before July 1, 2005.
The Company contributes monthly an amount equal to 2% of the employees’
monthly salaries and wages to the retirement fund deposited with Bank of
Taiwan, the trustee, under the name of the independent retirement fund
committee. The fund balance with the Bank of Taiwan was $214,048 and
$215,936 as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

B. The Company used December 31, 2010 and 2009 as the measurement date
for the pension actuary valuation and the related information are as follows:

2010 2009

Discount rate
Expected fund return rate
Expected salary increase rate
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C. Reconciliation of funded status:

December 31,
Benefit obligations: 2010 2009
Vested benefit obligation
Non-vested benefit obligation
Accumulated benefit obligation
Additional benefits based on future salaries
Projected benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets
Funded status
Unrecognized net transition obligation
Unrecognized gain
Accrued pension liabilities

D. Pension cost consisted of the following:

2010 2009
Service cost
Interest cost
Expected return on pension assets
Amortization of unrecognized net transition
obligation
Amortization of unrecognized pension gain
Gain or loss from curtailment or settlement
Net periodic pension cost

E. Effective July 1, 2005, the Company and its Taiwan subsidiaries established
their own funded defined contribution pension plan (the “New Plan”) under
the Labor Pension Act (the “Act”). Employees have the option to be covered
under the New Plan. Under the New Plan, the Company and its Taiwan
subsidiaries contribute monthly an amount based on 6% of the employees’
monthly salaries and wages to the employees’ individual pension accounts at
the Bureau of Labor Insurance. The benefits accrued are portable upon
termination of employment. The pension costs under the defined contribution
pension plan for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 amounted to
$44,700 and $40,051, respectively.

F. UNIKEY and the overseas subsidiaries of the Company have a funded
defined contribution plan. The pension costs under the defined contribution
pension plan for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 amounted to
$5,008 and $4,657, respectively.

G. The Company’s subsidiaries in Mainland China have a funded defined
contribution plan. Monthly contributions are based on the employees'
monthly salaries and wages to an independent fund administered by the
government in accordance with the pension regulations in the People’s
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Republic of China (PRC). The pension costs under the defined contribution
pension plan for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 amounted to
$199,017 and $122,909, respectively.

16) COMMON STOCK

A. As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the authorized common stock was
$7,000,000, with a par value of $10 (in dollars) per share. Additionally,
the paid-in capital was $6,256,144 and $5,912,778 and the outstanding
common stock was $625,614 and $591,278, respectively.

B. The stockholders at their meeting on June 9, 2010 had approved to issue
common stock dividends amounting to $290,633 and employees’ stock
bonus amounting to $363,335 (5,284,000 shares) at a price of $68.76 (in
dollars) based on the previous closing price of $75.5 (in dollars) at the day
of the stockholders’ meeting on June 8, 2010. This capitalization had
issued 34,347,000 shares and obtained a letter of approval from the
appropriate authorities. The issued date was set on July 24, 2010, and the
Company had completed related registration on August 3, 2010.

17) CAPITAL RESERVE

A. Under the ROC SFC regulations, the capital reserve resulting from paid-up
capital in excess of par value from the issuance of stock for cash and
donation income shall be used exclusively to cover losses, if legal reserve
is insufficient to cover such losses, or to increase capital within the
allowed limit of 10% of paid-in capital annually.

B. Please see Note 4(12) for detailed information of capital reserve from
stock warrants

18) RETAINED EARNINGS

A.Legal reserve

The Company Law requires the Company to set aside 10% of its annual
net income as legal reserve (less prior years' losses, if any) before it
declares any part of such net profits as dividends and/or bonuses, until the
legal reserve equals the total paid-in capital. This reserve shall be used
exclusively to cover losses or, if the balance of the reserve exceeds 50% of
paid-in capital, to increase capital not exceeding 50% of the reserve
balance.
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B.Special reserve

Under the R.O.C. SFC regulations, in addition to legal reserve and prior to
distribution of earnings, the Company should set aside a special reserve in
an amount equal to the net change in the reduction of the stockholders’
equity as of the prior year from its annual net income and undistributed
earnings of prior years, resulting from adjustments such as cumulative
foreign currency translation adjustment and unrealized loss on long-term
investment. Such special reserve is not available for dividend distribution.
In the subsequent year(s), if the year-end balances of the cumulative
foreign currency translation adjustment and unrealized loss on long-term
investment no longer result in a reduction in stockholders’ equity, the
special reserve previously set aside will then be available for distribution
as decided in the annual stockholders’ meeting.

C. Undistributed earnings

(1) According to the Articles of Incorporation, the Company's net income
(less income taxes and prior years' losses, if any) is appropriated in the
following order:

a) 10% for legal reserve, until the legal reserve equals the total capital
stock balance;

b) special reserve in accordance with Article 41 of the R.O.C. Security
Exchange Act and the related R.O.C. SFC’s regulations;

c) 1% as directors' and supervisors' remuneration;
d) 16% as employees' bonus;
e) The Board of Directors should present the distribution of the remaining
earnings for the approval of shareholders’ meeting.

(2) The Taiwan imputation tax system requires that any undistributed current
earnings, on tax basis, of a company derived on or after January 1, 1998
be subject to an additional 10% corporate income tax if the earnings are
not distributed before a specific time. This 10% additional tax on
undistributed earnings paid by the Company can be used as tax credit by
the shareholders, including foreign shareholders, against the withholding
tax on dividends. In addition, the domestic shareholders can claim a
proportionate share in the Company’s corporate income tax as tax credit
against its individual income tax liability effective 1998. The information
on these undistributed earnings and tax credits are as follows:
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December 31,
2010 2009

Undistributed retained earnings before 1998
Undistributed retained earnings in and after
1998
- Undistributed earnings subject to the
10% additional tax

- Undistributed earnings not subject to the
10% additional tax

(3) Tax Credit

As of December 31, 2010, the imputation tax credit account balance was
$240,250 and the estimated creditable tax ratio was 10.94%. The actual
creditable tax ratio of distributed earnings in 2009 was 8.49%.

(4) The appropriation of 2009 and 2008 earnings had been resolved at the
stockholders’ meeting on June 9, 2010 and June 10, 2009, respectively.
Details are summarized below:

2009 2008

Amount

Dividends
per share
(in dollars) Amount

Dividends
per share
(in dollars)

Legal reserve
Special reserve
Stock dividends
Cash dividends
Total

a. The above mentioned 2009 and 2008 earnings appropriation and
capitalization of capital reserve was approved by the Board of
Directors. In addition, due to the Company’s convertible bonds’
possible conversion to common stock which would result in a change
of outstanding common stock, the Board of Directors amended the
cash dividend ratio from $2.5 (in dollars) per share to $2.465 (in
dollars) per share, and common stock dividends ratio from 50 shares
per thousand shares to 49,307 shares per thousand shares on July 10,
2009.
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(5) On December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company estimated employees’
stock bonus and directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration as follows:

2010 2009
Employees’ stock bonus
Directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration
Total

The estimate was based on net income after tax and legal reserve during
this period using the contract’s ratio. The information regarding the
Board of Directors approval of earnings distribution will be posted to
the Market Observation Post System of Taiwan Stock Exchange
Corporation website when it is available.

(6)The above mentioned 2009 earnings appropriation and capitalization of
capital reserve was issued 5,284,000 shares at $68.76 (in dollars). The
employees’ stock bonus and directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration
recognized in the 2009 financial statements were $30,388 and $486,215,
respectively. There is no difference between the amount as resolved at
the stockholders’ meeting and the amount be recognized in the financial
statements.

19)TREASURY STOCK

For the year ended December 31, 2010

Purpose of reacquisition

Beginning
Shares (in
thousands) Additions Disposals

Ending
Shares (in
thousands)

To be reissued to employees 10,000 - - 10,000
To be transferred from Bonds 11 - ( 11) -

For the year ended December 31, 2009

Purpose of reacquisition

Beginning
Shares (in
thousands) Additions Disposals

Ending
Shares (in
thousands)

To be reissued to employees 10,000 - - 10,000
To be transferred from Bonds 15,000 4,900 ( 19,889) 11

A) According to the R.O.C. Security Exchange Law, treasury stocks shall not
exceed 10% of the total shares of common stocks issued by the Company.
The cost of outstanding treasury stocks should not exceed the total of
retained earnings, paid-in capital in excess of par value and realized capital
reserve. As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the amount of treasury stock
the Company bought back was $505,291 and $649,744, respectively.
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B) According to the R.O.C. Security Exchange Act, treasury stocks shall not be
pledged and cannot exercise the stockholders’ right until reissued.

C) According to the resolution by the Company’s Board of Directors on
January 18, 2008, the treasury stocks (15,000 thousand shares) which
originally had been reacquired for reissuance to employees were changed for
equity conversion with the issuance of convertible bonds. Pursuant to the
R.O.C. Securities and Exchange Law, the treasury stocks should be
transferred within three years from the date of buyback. The shares not
transferred within the three-year period shall be deemed as not issued by the
Company, and the amendment registration shall be processed. The
Company’s resolution as abovementioned had been approved by the relevant
Authority. On January 19, 2010, the Board of Directors had approved to
cancel 10,822 shares of treasury stock that had not been transferred by the
end of 2009. The amendment registration had been approved by the relevant
Authority on January 27, 2010.

D) Effective January 1, 2002, in accordance with R.O.C. SFAS No. 30
“Accounting for Treasury Stock”, the Company’s common stock owned by
it’s subsidiaries are treated as treasury stock. A summary of the Company’s
common stock owned by its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2010 and 2009
follows:

For the year ended December 31, 2010

Beginning balance
Stock
dividend Disposal Ending balance

Subsidiary
Shares (in
thousands)

Cost
value/share

Shares (in
thousands) Share

Selling
price/shares

Shares (in
thousands)

Market
value/share

UNIKEY
HEC

For the year ended December 31, 2009

Beginning balance
Stock
dividend Disposal Ending balance

Subsidiary
Shares (in
thousands)

Cost
value/share

Shares (in
thousands) Share

Selling
price/shares

Shares (in
thousands)

Market
value/share

UNIKEY
HEC

F) As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the total cost of the Company’s share
held by its subsidiaries, was as follows:

Subsidiary 2010 2009
UNIKEY
HEC
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20) INCOME TAX

Income tax expense and income tax payable are reconciled as follows:

2010 2009
Income tax payable
Adjustment of income tax payable
Over provision of prior year’s income tax
Prepaid tax
Current income tax expense
Net change of deferred income tax
Income tax expense

A. Pursuant to R.O.C. Income Tax Act, the 10% taxes on unappropriated
earnings were $71,377 and $97,369, respectively, for the years ended
December 31, 2009 and 2008.

B. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities:

December 31
2010 2009

Deferred income tax assets
Valuation allowance for deferred income tax assets
Deferred income tax liabilities
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C. Deferred income tax assets (liabilities) consist of the following:
December 31

2010 2009
Current deferred income tax assets Amount Tax effect Amount Tax effect

Unrealized exchange loss
Unrealized intercompany profit
Provision for inventory price
decline and obsolescence
Allowance for doubtful accounts in
excess of tax limit
Unrealized gain on disposal of fixed
assets
Tax benefit resulting from operating loss
carryforwards
Others
Unrealized gain on financial assets
Allowance on deferred income tax assets

Non-current deferred income tax assets
Unrealized gain on disposal of fixed
assets
Unfunded pension expense
Long-term investment loss
Tax benefit resulting from
operating loss carryforwards
Others
Investment tax credits
Allowance on deferred income tax assets

Non-current deferred income tax liabilities
Long-term investment gain etc.
Temporary differences of fixed assets for
tax and financial purposes

D. As of December 31, 2010, the Company's income tax returns for the years
through 2007 have been assessed and approved by the R.O.C Tax Authority.

E. As of December 31, 2010, the subsidiaries’ balance of tax benefits resulting
from operating loss carry forwards amounted to $148,084 with the final year
tax credits due in 2020.

F. Some of the Company’s subsidiaries were incorporated in an economic
development area of Mainland China. Based on the related laws, such
subsidiaries are entitled to an exemption from income taxes in the first and
second profit-making years and a 50% reduction during the third to fifth
profit-making years.
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21) EARNINGS PER SHARE

A) Basic earnings per share

For the year ended December 31, 2010
Amount Weighted-average

outstanding shares
(in thousands)

Earnings per share
Income before
income tax Net income

Income before
income tax Net income

Basic earnings per share: (in dollars)

Net income

Dilutive effect of common
stock equivalents
Employee bonus

Diluted earnings per share:

Net income plus dilutive
effect of common
stock equivalents

For the year ended December 31, 2009
Amount Weighted-average

outstanding shares
(in thousands)

Earnings per share
Income before
income tax Net income

Income before
income tax Net income

Basic earnings per share: (in dollars)

Net income

Dilutive effect of common
stock equivalents
Employee bonus

Diluted earnings per share:

Net income plus dilutive
effect of common
stock equivalents

The above weighted-average outstanding shares of common stock in 2010
and 2009 have been adjusted according to the earnings distribution approved
by the Board of Directors and stockholders.

Effective January 1, 2008, as employees’ bonus could be distributed in the
form of stock, the diluted EPS computation shall include those estimated
shares that would be increased from employees’ stock bonus issuance in the
weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the reporting
year, which take into account the dilutive effects of stock bonus on potential
common shares; whereas, basic EPS shall be calculated based on the
weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the reporting
year that include the shares of employees’ stock bonus for the appropriation
of prior year earnings, which have already been resolved at the stockholders’
meeting held in the reporting year. Since capitalization of employees’ bonus
no longer belongs to distribution of stock dividends (or retained earnings and
capital reserve capitalized), the calculation of basic EPS and diluted EPS for
all periods presented shall not be adjusted retroactively. However, the
accounting treatment for the appropriation of employees’ bonus for 2007
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earnings resolved at the stockholders’ meeting held in 2008 is still in
accordance with the regulations on capitalization of employees’ bonus under
paragraphs 19 and 39 of R.O.C. SFAS No. 24, “Earnings per Share”.

22) PERSONNEL, DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSES

For the years ended December 31,
2010 2009

Operating
cost

Operating
Expense Total Operating

cost
Operating
Expense Total

Personnel Expenses
Salaries and
wages
Insurance
Pension
Others
Depreciation
Amortization

5. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

1) Relationship with major related parties

Names of related parties Relationship with the Company
Clevo Co. (Clevo) Common Chairman
Newmax Technology Inc. (Newmax) Investee company accounted for under

the equity method of UNIKEY
Skanhex Technology Inc. (Skanhex) Investee company accounted for under

the equity method
Jim Yu Electronics (Wu Juang) Co., Ltd.
(Jim Yu)

Investee company accounted for under
the equity method of GFI

DigiLife Technologies Co., Ltd.
(DigiLife)

Investee company accounted for under
the equity method of UNIKEYand
Quansun before June, 2009.(Note )

Farwin Electronics Co., Ltd. (Farwin) Investee company accounted for under the
equity method of Sky-Fine

Kai Bo computer (Kunshan) Co., Ltd.
(Kai Bo Kunshan)

Investee company accounted for under the
equity method of Clevo

Note: UNIKEY and Quansun Investment Corp. Ltd. had sold all shares of DigiLife
at September, 2009.
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2) Significant related party transactions and balances

A. Sales to related parties

For the years ended December 31,
2010 2009

Amount
% of net
sales Amount

% of net
sales

Kai Bo Kunshan
Jim Yu
Clevo
DigiLife

The terms of the sales to related parties were the same as those to third
parties. In general, the collection periods ranged from 60 to 90 days.

B. Accounts receivable from related parties
December 31,

2010 2009

Amount

% of total
notes and
accounts
receivable Amount

% of total
notes and
accounts
receivable

Kai Bo Kunshan
Jim Yu

C. Purchases
For the years ended December 31,
2010 2009

Amount
% of net
purchases Amount

% of net
purchases

Newmax
Jim Yu
Farwin
DigiLife

All purchases were made in the normal course of business.
D. Payables to related parties

December 31,
2010 2009

Amount

% of total
accounts
payable Amount

% of total
accounts
payable

Newmax
Farwin
Jim Yu
Skanhex
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E) Salaries / rewards information of key management, such as directors,
supervisors, general manager, vice general manager, etc.

For the years ended December 31,
2010 2009

Salaries
Bonuses
Earnings assignment
Total

a)Salaries include regular wages, special responsibility allowances,
pensions, severance pay, etc.

b) Bonuses include various bonuses and rewards.

c)Service executive fees include travel allowances, special expenditures,
various allowances, dorms and vehicles benefits, etc.

d) Earnings assignment included directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration
and employee bonuses. (The earnings assignment of 2009 has been
adjusted base on actual information.)

e)The relevant information above was posted in the Company’s annual
report.

6. PLEDGED ASSETS

(1)The following assets were pledged to secure loans and other credit facilities:

December 31 Purpose
Assets 2010 2009

Pledged bank deposit (shown
as other financial assets-
noncurrent)

Guarantee for
tariff and loans

Fixed bank deposit (shown as
other financial assets-
current)

Guarantee for
tariff and social
insurance

Land, plant and equipment
and land use rights (shown
as other intangible assets)

Guarantee for
short-term and
long-term loans

Refundable deposits
Guarantee for
financial trading
and rental

(2) As of December 31, 2010, UNIKEY and HEC have pledged the Company’s
common stock (shown as “treasury stock”) amounting to 5,000,000 and
11,000,000 shares, respectively, as security for loans.
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7. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As of December 31, 2010, the Group had the following significant contingent
liabilities and commitments.

1) The Group had unused letters of credit for purchases of raw materials
approximating $19,320.

2) For financing forward exchange contracts and accounts receivable factoring
purposes, the Group provided standby promissory notes totaling $21,721,662 as
security.

3) The Company had issued contracts for acquisition of computer equipment and
software amounting to $3,112.

4) The subsidiaries, XAVi, CP, Mao-Ray, DongGuan Haderiiou Plastic
Corporation, CAI, CPSZ, QS and CPUS had leasing commitments amounting to
$592,440.

5) CEM2, Mao-Ray and Dong Guan Haderiou Plastic Corporation have aggregate
minimum commitments under the agreements with local government for leasing
land from 1998 to 2042. The related leasing and management fee each year is
$37,717.

8. MAJOR CATASTROPHE

None.

9. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

1) The Company and its subsidiary - Chicony Power Co., Ltd. participated in the
private placement of Genesis Photonics Inc. on March 1, 2011, obtaining
13,300,000 and 6,700,000 shares at a price of $63 (in dollars) per share,
respectively.

2) The Company intends to set up a plant in Chongqing, China by its subsidiary-
COI. The proposed investment is US $18,000 thousand. The Company’s
investment as above mentioned had been approved by the relevant Authority in
March, 2011.

3) The Company’s subsidiary-Chicony Power Co., Ltd. intends to set up a plant in
Chongqing, China by its subsidiary-Chicony Power Technology Hong Kong
Limited. The proposed investment is US $10,000 thousand. The Company’s
investment as above mentioned had been passed by its Board of Directors in
March, 2011.

10. OTHERS

1) Certain accounts in the 2009 financial statements have been reclassified to
conform with the presentation adopted in the 2010 financial statements.
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2) Fair value of financial instruments:
December 31, 2010

Fair value

Book value

Quotation in
an active
market

Estimated using
a valuation
technique

Non-derivative financial instruments
Assets
Financial assets with book value
equal to fair value
Available-for-sale financial assets
Financial assets carried at cost
Liabilities
Financial liabilities with book value
equal to fair value
Long-term loans
Derivative financial instruments
Assets
Forward exchange contracts
SWAP
Liabilities
Forward exchange contracts
SWAP

December 31, 2009
Fair value

Book value

Quotation in
an active
market

Estimated using
a valuation
technique

Non-derivative financial instruments
Assets
Financial assets with book value
equal to fair value
Available-for-sale financial assets
Financial assets carried at cost
Liabilities
Financial liabilities with book value
equal to fair value
Long-term loans
Derivative financial instruments
Assets
Forward exchange contracts
Liabilities
Forward exchange contracts

The methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair values of the above
financial instruments are summarized below:

A. For short-term instruments, the fair values were determined based on their
carrying values because of their short maturities. This method was applied to
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cash and cash equivalents, notes receivable, accounts receivable, other
receivables, other financial assets, short-term loans, notes payable, accounts
payable, accrued expenses and other payables.

B. The fair value of the investments in bonds without active markets are based on
their call value.

C. Available-for-sale financial instruments are regarded as quoted in an active
market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency, and those
prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s
length basis. If the market for a financial instrument is not active, an entity
establishes fair value by using a valuation technique. Valuation techniques
include using recent arm’s length market transactions between knowledgeable,
willing parties, if available, reference to the current fair value of another
instrument that is substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis and
option pricing model.

D. The fair value of long-term loans is estimated using discounted future cash
flows with a discount rate based on the interest rates of long-term loans
agreement with similar conditions.

E. For forward exchange contracts, the fair values were based on prices quoted in
an active market provided by financial institutions.

F. After January 1, 2006, the fair value of convertible bonds is based on the
discounted present value of predicted future cash flow. The discount rate is the
initial effective interest rate of the convertible bonds.

G. Financial instruments that have balance sheet credit risk: (Amount expressed
in thousands)

Guarantee Amount
December 31

2010 2009

Subsidiaries Contract value
(in thousands)

Contract value
(in thousands)

Guarantees for certain subsidiaries

The Company provided guarantees to its subsidiaries for certain loans.
The Company does not obtain collaterals for these guarantees due to their
familiarity with the subsidiaries’ credit standing. If the subsidiaries do not
fulfill the obligation in accordance with the agreements, the maximum
loss the Company would incur is equal to the amount of the loans to the
subsidiaries.

3) For available-for-sale financial assets, during the years ended December 31, 2010
and 2009, the amount of gain recognized directly in equity was $487,527 and
$734,572, respectively.

4) Procedure of financial risk control and hedge

The Group’s risk control and hedging strategy is influenced by its international
operations and investment and financing decisions. The Group communicates this
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strategy to every department which it believes is subject to implement this risk
management system. The internal audit department then monitors and coordinates
these activities to ensure internal control and to measure the market, credit and
operation risk effectively.

5) Derivative financial instruments

A. Market risk
The Group’s business involves some non-functional currencies which may
be affected by exchange rate fluctuations. These major foreign currency
denominated assets and foreign liabilities are disclosed as follows:

December 31
(Currency:
Functional
currency)

2010 2009

Financial Assets Currency Value Rate Currency Value Rate
Monetary items

USD:TWD
USD:RMB

Financial Liabilities
Monetary items

USD:RMB

B. Accounts receivable:

a) Market risk
The Group’s major import and export transactions are conducted in United
States dollars (USD). The change in fair value will be caused by foreign
exchange rate fluctuations. (Please see Note 10(5)A.) However, the
amounts and periods of the Group’s accounts receivable and accounts
payable are equivalent, so the market risk could be offset. No material
market risks are expected.

b) Credit risk
The Group has lower significant concentrations of credit risk. It has
policies in place to ensure that wholesale sales of products are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history. No material credit risks are
expected.

c) Liquidity risk
The accounts receivable are due in one year. The liquidity risk exposure is
low.

d) Cash flow risk
The accounts receivable are due in one year. The cash flow risk exposure
is low.

C. Financial instrument assets (liabilities) (Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, Available-for-sale financial assets and Financial assets carried
at cost)
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a) Market risk:
The Group has pre-set a “stop loss” amount to limit its market risk on
forward contracts, which would be affected by foreign exchange risk and
the financial assets with cost valuation, which cannot be measured reliably
would not be affected by foreign exchange risk.

b) Credit risk
The Group has lower significant concentrations of credit risk, due to
investments in company and financial bonds, whose credit ratings are high.
The maximum loss to the Group is the total amount of book value.

c) Liquidity risk
(i) The Group has prudent liquidity risk management which includes
maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability
of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities
and the ability to close out market positions.

(ii) Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, Group
Treasury aims to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping committed
credit lines available since it was not negotiable based on relating laws.

d) Cash flow risk
No significant interest rate related risks are expected because the Group
doesn’t undertake the derivative financial instruments, such as interest rate
swaps.

D. Financial instrument liabilities

a) Market risk
The Group’s financial liability instruments have fixed interest rates, so it
has market risk.

b) Credit risk
The Group has no credit risk for financial liability instruments.

c) Liquidity risk
As the Group has adequate operating capital, no significant liquidity risk is
expected.

d) Cash flow risk of interest
Because the Group’s financial liability instruments have fixed rates, it has
no cash flow risk due to interest rate change.

E. Accounts payable:

a) Market risk
The Group’s accounts payable are due in one year. No material market
risks are expected, please see Note 10(5)A.

b) Credit risk
The Group’s accounts payable are due in one year. No material credit risk
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is expected.
c) Liquidity risk
The Group’s accounts receivable are due in one year. The liquidity risk
exposure is low.

d) Cash flow risk
The Group’s accounts receivable are due in one year. The cash flow risk
exposure is low.

E. Loans:

a) Market risk

The Group’s short-term loans are due in one year.

Generally, the Group raises long-term borrowings at fixed rates. No
material market risk is expected.

b) Credit risk

No material credit risk is expected.

c) Liquidity risk

The Group’s short-term loans are due in one year, and the long-term loans
are due in two to three years. The liquidity risk exposure is low.

d) Cash flow risk

The Group’s loans are at fixed interest rate. The cash flow risk exposure is
low.
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12. SEGMENT FINANCIAL REPORTING

1) Financial information by industries: The Group is mainly engaged in the
manufacturing, processing and sale of peripheral computer equipment.

2) Financial information by geographic areas for the years ended December 31,
2010 and 2009 are as follows:

2010
ROC Asia America Europe Elimination Consolidated

Revenue from third parties $41,930,895 $ 15,163,559 $ 1,261,068 $2,081,794 $ - $64,437,316
Revenue from the Company
and its subsidiaries 1,326,261 60,405,591 33,479,623 5,522 ( 95,216,997) -
Total $43,257,156 $75,569,150 $34,740,691 $ 2,087,316 ($ 95,216,997) $64,437,316

Segment (loss) / income $ 1,655,527 $ 1,478,725 ($ 40,199) $ 63,265 ($ 12,131) $ 3,145,187

Company revenue 1,528,257
Company expense ( 224,568)
Investment gain accounted
under the equity method

86,138

Interest expense ( 113,102)

Net income before income tax $ 4,421,912

Identifiable assets $ 21,520,429 $28,906,116 $ 4,868,171 $ 766,594 ($ 19,938,336) $36,122,974

Long-term investments 573,503
Total assets $36,696,477

2009
ROC Asia America Europe Elimination Consolidated

Revenue from third parties $33,219,514 $ 14,918,602 $ 2,674,080 $ 3,135,712 $ - $53,947,908
Revenue from the Company
and its subsidiaries 1,801,044 51,300,362 18,203,068 3,116 ( 71,307,590) -
Total $35,020,558 $66,218,964 $20,877,148 $ 3,138,828 ($ 71,307,590) $53,947,908

Segment (loss) / income $ 2,156,560 $ 2,332,681 ($ 534,869) $ 36,485 $ 44,791 $ 4,035,648

Company revenue 438,951
Company expense ( 164,125)
Investment gain accounted
under the equity method

33,484

Interest expense ( 188,835)

Net income before income tax $ 4,155,123

Identifiable assets $ 19,093,675 $28,290,444 $ 7,786,973 $ 735,057 ($ 23,096,335) $32,809,814

Long-term investments 375,626
Total assets $33,185,440
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3) Information on export sales:

The details of the Group's export sales are as follows:

Areas 2010 2009

Asia $ 38,010,904 $ 34,048,170

America 10,912,728 7,305,529

Europe 8,536,101 7,905,682

Others 41,843 91,197

$ 57,501,576 $ 49,350,578

4) Information on major customers’ sales are as follows:

2010 2009

Amount % Amount %

Company A $ 5,433,953 9 $4,178,449 8

Company B 4,604,123 8 1,983,596 4

Company C 3,556,540 6 2,894,100 5

$13,594,616 23 $9,056,145 17
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6.5 Financial impact to the Company if any financial or cash flow difficulties incurred by 
the Company and its affiliated companies: None 
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7. Analysis and Review of Risks Relating to the 
Financial Status and Operating Results 

7.1 Financial Status: 

7.1.1 Analysis of changes in Assets, Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equities in the past two years  Unit: NT $000’s 
Variation in amount Year 

 
Item 2010 2009 Amount %  

Current Assets $7,542,579 $7,042,950 499,629 7   
Long-term 
Investments 

15,118,483 12,723,690 2,394,793 19  
 

Fixed Assets 1,774,608 1,676,522 98,086 6   
Other Assets 80,026 105,116 (25,090) (24) Detail (2)1 

Total Assets 24,555,208 21,591,120 2,964,088 14   
Current Liabilities 7,995,409 6,703,726 1,291,683 19   
Long-term Liabilities 2,530,000 2,800,000 (270,000) (10)  
Other Liabilities 30,970 41,992 (11,022) (26) Detail (2)2 

Total Liabilities 10,578,135 9,567,474 1,010,661 11   
Capital Stock 6,256,144 5,912,778 343,366 6   
Capital Reserves 1,189,030 547,067 641,963 117  Detail (2)3 
Retained Earnings 7,199,022 5,874,021 1,325,001 23  Detail (2)4 

Total Shareholders’ 
Equity 

13,977,073 12,023,646 1,953,427 16  
 

Note: Deviation over 20% and up to $10 million will be analyzed.  
7.1.2 Analysis & explanation: 

a. The relevant consultancy fee required by the ERP system from ongoing amortization resulted in a decrease of 
Deferred Expense.  

b. A decrease of Other Liabilities is mainly due to better operation for partial long-term investment from being 
recognized as positive under the equity method.     

c. An increase of capital reserves is mainly due to a stock premium on employee stock bonus issued this year. 
d. An increase in Retained Earnings is mainly due to an increase in net income. 
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7.2 Operating Results 

7.2.1 Comparison & analysis Unit: $thousands 
Year 

 
 

Item 

2010 2009 Increasing 
(decreasing
) Amount 

 

Deviation 
Ratio (%)

Analysis for 
the deviation 

of  
increasing 

(decreasing) 
ratio  

Sales  19,747,668  16,652,492 3,095,176  19  
Sales Returns (98,424) (64,964) 33,460  52 Detail (2) 1 
Sales Discounts (166,492) (115,959) 50,533  44 Detail (2) 2 
Net Sales   19,482,752 16,471,569 3,011,183  18  
Other Operating 
Revenues 

679,260  1,274,719 (595,459) (47) Detail (2) 3 

Total Sales  20,162,012 17,746,288 2,415,724  14  
Cost of Goods Sold (16,758,586) (13,883,383) 2,875,203  21 Detail (2) 4 
Gross Profit  3,403,426 3,862,905 (459,479) (12)  
Unrealized Gains from 
Intercompany 
Transactions 

0  575 (575) (100)  

Gross Profit , Net  3,403,426 3,863,480 (460,054) (12)  
Sales and Marketing 
Expenses 

(851,631) (916,044) (64,413) (7)  

General and 
Administrative 
Expenses 

(580,755) (566,101) 14,654  3  

Research and 
Development Expenses 

(667,178) (569,394) 97,784  17  

Total Operating 
Expenses 

 (2,099,564) (2,051,539) 48,025  2  

Operating Income  1,303,862 1,811,941 (508,079) (28) Detail (2) 5 
Interest Income 12,483  12,253 230  2  
Investment Income 
Recognized Under 
Equity Method 

2,415,813  1,790,439 625,374  35 Detail (2) 6 

Dividends Income 38,161  1,100 37,061  3,369 Detail (2) 7 
Gain on Disposal of 
Fixed Assets 

3,251  2,000 1,251  63  

Foreign Exchange Gain 9,565  16,319 (6,754) (41)  
Rent Income 3,490  7,288 (3,798) (52)  
Gain on Valuation of 
Financial Assets 

82,959  2,670 80,289  3,007 Detail (2) 8 

Gain on Valuation of 
Financial Liabilities 

0  5,400 (5,400) (100)  

Miscellaneous Income 49,721  104,346 (54,625) (52) Detail (2) 9 
Total non-Operating 
Income 

 2,615,443 1,941,815 673,628  35 Detail (2) 10

Interest Expenses (67,457) (76,503) (9,046) (12)  
Miscellaneous 
Expenses 

(1,733) (1,946) (213) (11)  

Total non-Operating 
Expenses 

 (69,190) (78,449) (9,259) (12)  

Continuing Operating 
Income before tax 

 3,850,115 3,675,307 174,808  5  
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Unit: $thousands

Year 
 
 

Item 

2010 2009 Increasing 
(decreasing
) Amount 

 

Deviation 
Ratio (%) 

Analysis for 
the deviation 

of  
increasing 

(decreasing) 
ratio  

Income Tax Expenses (200,047) (344,389) (144,342) (42) Detail (2) 11
Continuing Operating 
Income after tax 

 3,650,068 3,330,918 319,150  10   

Cumulative Effect of 
Changes in Accounting 
Principles 

 0 0 0  0   

Current net profit  3,650,068 3,330,918 319,150  10   
Note1: Analysis for deviation over 20% and amount up to NT$20,000 
Note 2: No significant change for the main operating business 
Note 3: Consolidated sales volume in this year is estimated as follows: computer peripheral equipment will be 22,711 in ten 
thousands units, and consumer electronic products and other electronic products will be 8,537 in ten thousands units.   
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7.2.2 Analysis of main reasons for deviation from each account balance: 
(a) An increase of customer’s sales returns 
(b)An increase of sales discount to meet operating strategy 
(c) A decrease in royalty and service charges collected from subsidiaries 
(d)An increase of sales and labor cost 
(e)A decrease in royalty and service charges collected from subsidiaries 
(f)An increase of profit growth from subsidiaries in 2010 
(g)Payout of Dividends from the Company’s short-term investments 
(h)An increase of profit from disposal of short-term investments as a result of 

recovering economy 
(i)A decrease in other income from pre-earned revenue 
(j)An increase of profit from disposal of short-term investments as a result of 

recovering economy 
(k)A supplementary payment was made in the first half year for previous years 

 
 

7.3 Cash Flow 

7.3.1 Analysis of Cash Flow in the Past Two Years 

 Year 

Item 

Dec.31st, 2010 Dec. 31st, 2009 Increase (decrease) ratio

Cash Flow Ratio 15.38% 47.71% -67.77%

Cash Flow Adequacy Ratio 113.57% 136.14% -16.58%

Cash Reinvestment Ratio -4.82% 12.44% 138.73%

Analysis for the deviation of increase (decrease) ratio 
a. Cash Flow Ratio decreased mainly due to a decrease of Cash Flow from operating activities and an increase of 

short-term loans as a result of an increase of Current Liabilities. 

b. Cash Reinvestment Ratio is negative mainly due to an increase of current short-term loans as a result of 

negative working capital. 

 
7.3.2 Analysis of Cash Flow in the following year Unit: $000’s 

Remedial Measure for Cash Deficit Beginning Cash 
Balance 

 
(1) 

Est. Annual Net 
Cash Flow from 

Operating 
Activities 

(2) 

Est. Annual 
Cash Outflows

(3) 

Est. Cash 
balance 

(insufficient)
(1)+(2)-(3) Investment 

Plan-Proceeds from 
New Issue 

Financing 
Plan-Increasing 
Long-term Bank 

Loans 
 

$121,394 $1,300,000 $1,221,394 $200,000 － －

a. Analysis for the deviation of Cash Flow: 
(I) Operating activities: increasing profit as a result of net Cash inflow due to focus on high value-added 

products.  
(II) Investment activities: Estimated there will be no significant investment activities this year. 
(III) Financing activities: Estimated payout of cash dividends as a result of net Cash outflows.  

b. Remedial measure and cash flow analysis for estimated cash deficit: None 
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7.4 Financial Impact to the Company of Significant Capital Expenditure 

Financial impact to the Company of significant capital expenditure: None 

 

7.5 Main Reasons and Improvement Plan for Reinvestment Policy and Earnings or 
Losses as well as the Investment Plan in the Following Year 

7.5.1 Reinvestment Policy 

The Company has three reinvestment policies as follows: 

a. Make investments to establish subsidiaries around the world to serve as production bases and provide 

sales and services, in order to reduce production cost, be in greater proximity to serve our customers, and 

take advantages of tax credits. 

b. Make investments in major raw material suppliers under the principle of minimum capital, in order to 

assure the supply source of main raw materials. 

c. Make strategic investments in synergistic products enhance the Company’s overall competitiveness and 

create the maximum advantage.  
7.5.2 Main Reasons and Improvement Plan for Reinvestment Policy and Earnings or Losses in Recent Years, as 
Well as the Future Investment Plan  
 

Unit: $000’s 
Invested 

Company 
Name 

Investment 
(Note 1) 

Purpose 2010 
Investment 

Income (loss)

Main Reasons for Income 
or Loss 

Improve-
ment Plan 

Future 
Investment 

Plan 

Chicony 
Overseas Inc. 

265,326 Holding 
company 

990,376 Increasing profit from 
invested companies 

None None 

Chicony 
Global Inc. 

33,027 Increasing 
operations 

328,884 Increasing sales weight for 
niche products, expanding 
operating size 

None None 

Chicony Power 
Technology 
Co., Ltd. 

1,522,180 Increasing 
product lines 
to enhance 
overall profit

363,287 Increasing sales weight for 
niche products, 
expanding operating sizes 
and R&D capabilities for 
upgrading production 
efficiencies 

None None 

Hipro 
Overseas 
(BVI)Inc. 

412,003 Holding 
company 
and 
increasing 
product 
lines to 
enhance 
overall 
profit 

63,355 Operating Profit, 
investment and 
Dividends Income during 
Jan. –Mar., 2010, no 
Operating Income as of 
1st April 2010 

None None 
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Invested 
Company 

Name 
 

Investment 
(Note 1)  

Purpose 2010 
Investment 

Income 
(loss) 

Main Reasons for 
Income or Loss  

Improve
-ment 
Plan  

Future 
Investment 

Plan 

Hipro 
Electronics 
Co., Ltd. 

2,3300 Holding 
company  

65,9845 Dividends Income  None None 

UniKey 
Electronics 
Co., Ltd. 

 150,00 Holding 
company  

92,409 Dividends Income  None  None 

Chicony Elec. 
(Thailand) Co., 
Ltd. 

33,920 Decreasing 
production 
cost 

0 Termination of operations Proceeding 
with legal 
business 
closure 
after 
disposal of 
own land 
and plants 

None 

Had Eri Iou 
Industrial Inc. 

212,139 Vertical 
integration  

(21,969) Sales was not as good as 
expected and write off 
inventory loss per Bulletin no. 
10 

Expanding 
operation 
scale 

None 

XAVi 
Technologies 
Corporation 

208,151 Increasing 
products for 
overall profit

33,487 Sales revenues increased and 
collection of accounts 
receivable which was 
recognized as loss on 
uncollected accounts in year 
2009. It was booked as Other 
Income in year 2010.  

Continuously 
update R&D 
capabilities, 
strengthen 
factory’s 
management 
for  more 
profit 

None 

Note: 1. The aforesaid investments are sum of direct and indirect investments. Investments in US$ can be 
converted from investment cost based on original exchange rate.  

2. The aforesaid table only lists direct reinvestment businesses. For individual companies for earnings or 
losses in indirect reinvestments, please refer to page 142-148 of this Annual Report.  

 

7.6 Analysis and Evaluation of Risk Issues 

In 2010 and as of 31st March, 2011, analysis and evaluation of risk issues are as follows: 
 
7.6.1 Influence of Changes in Interest Rate and Exchange Rates and Inflation on the 
 Company’s Profit and Loss and Future Responses/Measures 

a. Interest rate changes 
The Company’s consolidated bank loan balance increased approximately $1,437,254,000 from 
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year-end 2009 to year-end 2010,  and consolidated net interest expense decreased 
approximately $51,669,000, mainly due to the average interest rate for consolidated loans in 
decreasing by approximately 0.46% from year-end 2009 to year-end 2010. The average 
consolidated interest rate decreased by approximately 0.2% from 2010 to Q1, 2011, and the net 
interest expense increased by $9,311,000 from Q1, 2010. Based on the consolidated bank loan 
balance of $10,739,412,000 as at 31st March, 2011, every increase or decrease of 0.25% in the 
annual interest rate for the loans will have an effect on the Company’s annual interest expense 
of $26,848,000. 
The Company monitors information about trends in market interest rates to adjust the loan 
portfolio among various currencies, acquiring the most favorable loan interest rate to control 
overall receivable payment, inventory and fixed assets turn over rate, and increasing  the 
Company’s cash flow to minimize the influence of increasing interest rate on the Company. 

b. Exchange rate changes 
The Company’s and its subsidiaries’ exported products are quoted in US dollars which is also 
used as basis of importing goods. Thus, exchange rate fluctuations have less influence on gross 
profit, as they offset each other, resulting in net assets in US dollars. The Company monitors the 
international economic situation for net assets in US dollars and future possible flows, adapting 
hedge methods including loans in US dollars, foreign exchange forward, options and foreign 
exchange swaps or directly selling US dollars after referring to banks’ reports to decrease 
exchange rate fluctuations. The global consolidated foreign exchange gain in 2010 was 
$133,054,000, and Q1, 2011 was $19,137,000.  

c. Inflation 
Most of the products of the Company and subsidiaries are exported, so that domestic inflation 
has less influence on the Company’s profit and loss. However, most research reports show that 
inflation in the global market this year will possibly influence consumer’s ability and 
willingness to spend, and thus reduce market demand for consumer products, which may 
negatively influence the Company’s overall operating profit and loss. However, the impact of 
international inflation is comprehensive, affecting not only individual companies but also 
countries worldwide, and governments should be able to respond. The Company will remain 
devoted to developing and selling niche products and reducing production costs with specific 
prices which can stimulate consumer demand to maintain the Company’s operating income and 
reduce the negative influence of inflation on the Company’s profitability. 

 

7.6.2 The Main Reasons for Profit or Loss from Policies for High-risk and High-leverage 
 Investment, Loans to Others, Endorsements and Derivative Product Transactions, as 
 well as Future Response Measures 

a. A resolution from the Company’s Board Meeting stipulates that any total short-term 
investment made by the Company and subsidiaries must not exceed 25% of the consolidated 
net value amount. To reduce investment risk, objects of short-term investment of the 
Company and subsidiaries are mainly the Company’s affiliated companies and other 
electronic manufacturers. Investment details and profit or loss are reviewed at least once a 
month, enabling the Company to proceed with stop-loss if any unusual situations are found. In 
2010 and as of 31st March, 2011, the Company and subsidiaries did not produce any 
significant short-term investment loss.  

b. According to the policy of the Company and its subsidiaries for conducting loans and 
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endorsements to other parties, the object of any loans must be limited to subsidiaries in which 
the Company has a holding of over 50% from direct or indirect investment. In the event that a 
subsidiary requires funds to meet operating demands and faces difficulties in acquiring bank 
loans, the Company and subsidiaries will support with a loan or endorsement. In 2010 and as 
of 31st March, 2011, the Company and its subsidiaries did not produce any significant loss 
from loans or endorsements to others. 

c. According to the policies of the Company and its subsidiaries, derivatives transactions are 
limited to hedging transactions. Depending on foreign exchange holding positions, outflows 
and purchase demands for raw material, the Company and its subsidiaries will refer to banks’ 
reports to appropriately undertake long-term foreign exchange or options for hedging to 
decrease the impact of exchange rate fluctuations. 

 

7.6.3 Future R&D Plan and Estimated Investments for R&D  
The Company continuously invests in R&D for high-end computer output/input equipment, 
digital video products, computer peripherals, ultra-thin notebook keyboards, and tablet 
computer’s external keyboards to integrate with wireless communication, internet, multimedia 
and information appliances. Chicony Power Technology Co.,Ltd, an investment holding 
company, will focus on R&D in the field of high-power, LCD TV, printer power supply unit, 
LED lighting and PV inverter (solar power converter) energy-saving products. Estimated 
investment on R&D accounts for 2%~3% of sales revenues. 

 

7.6.4 Financial Impact to the Company of Important Domestic and International Policy 
 Changes, and Response Measures 

To ensure the tax income, each country’s government applies regulations for transfer pricing to 
require companies to give proof of legal transaction with affiliated companies. The Company 
has already assigned professional tax consulting agencies to offer consulting services for 
transfer pricing, to ensure compliance with laws and regulations and avoid duplicate taxation 
and reduce tax-related risk.  

 
7.6.5 Financial Impact to the Company of Technological and Industrial Changes, and 
 Response Measures 

In 2010 and as of 31st March, 2011, there was no significant financial impact to the Company 
from technological changes. However, high oil price, increasing costs of raw materials, labor 
shortages in China, the ongoing increase in labor costs and appreciation of the NT dollar and 
RMB, coupled with shrinking profit margins makes it difficult to increase prices, and the 
Company’s profitability could be affected. The Company will remain devoted to developing 
and selling niche products, reducing production cost, automating production, accelerating 
entry to the Chinese market, conduct vertical integration with main suppliers, and 
appropriately adjust prices to reduce the aforesaid negative influences and maintain the 
Company’s profitability. 
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7.6.6 Changes in the Company’s Corporate Image and Potential Impact on Crisis 
 Management, and Response Measures 

As of 31st March, 2011, the Company’s corporate image has not been affected by any crisis 
management.. 

 
7.6.7 Possible Risks and Expected Benefits from Merger, and Response Measures 

Not applicable; as of 31st March, 2011, the Company has no plans for mergers and acquisitions. 

 

7.6.8 Possible Risks and Expected Benefits from Plant Expansion, and Response Measures 
In 2010 and as of 31st March, 2011, the Company and subsidiaries did not undertake plant 
expansion except to increase capacity. The Company at its Board Meeting resolved that US$ 18 
million will be invested in Chicony Electronics (Chongquing) Co., Ltd through the holding 
company Chicony Overseas Inc.. This subsidiary is scheduled to start construction in Q2, 2011, 
with new plants built for the production of keyboards and digital image products.; Investment is 
estimated to total $700-800 million, accounting for 5% of net value as of 31st December, 2010. 
The new plants can expand capacity and reduce production costs; associated risks are relatively 
low. 

 

7.6.9 Risks Associated with Purchase or Sales Concentration, and Response-Measures 
As of 31st March, 2011, no single product in the Company’s product portfolio sold to a single 
end customer accounts for more than 10% of global consolidated sales revenues. The number of 
suppliers for each raw material is required to be more than two, and no single supplier accounts 
for more than 10% of global consolidated procurement amount. 

 

7.6.10 Potential Impact and Risk Associated with Sales of Significant Numbers of Shares 
 by the Company’s Directors, Supervisors, or Shareholders Who Hold 10% or More of 
 Total Outstanding Share 

In 2010 and as of 31st March, 2011, no sales of significant numbers of shares were made 
among director, supervisor or shareholder holds more than 10% of the shares in the 
Company.  
The 10th new directors and supervisors were elected at the Shareholders’ Meeting of 2010 
as follows: 

a. New director Mr. James Wei: the 9th legal representative director. 
b. New director Mr. Simon Tsai: was a director during the 9th Annual Board, but during the 

term on My 27, 2009 , his share transfers exceeded over 50%. As a result, his position as 
director was dismissed by Article 197 of the Company Law . 

c. New supervisor of Dong Ling Investment Co., Ltd: the 9th annual legal director 
d. Previous supervisor Ms. Ku , Chih -Hsuan: re-elected as the legal representative of new 

supervisor for Dong Ling Investment Co., Ltd 

 

7.6.11 Potential Impact and Risks from Changes in Management, and Response Measures 
In 2010 and as of 31st March, 2011, the Company has had no changes in management. 
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7.6.12  Risks Associated with Litigation and Response Measures 
a. Significant litigation, disputes, or administrative litigation that the Company has 

recognized: None 
b. For any lawsuits or litigations, a list of confirmed judgment of the Company’s directors, 
  Supervisors, president , personnel on charge or substantial shareholders who own more 
  Than 10% of outstanding shares, and the relevant associated companies involved needs  
  to be prepared. Lawsuits, legal and administrative litigations which create negative  
  impacts on shareholders’ interest and stock price:  

Defective products from raw material supplier Pan Jit International Inc. directly caused 
damages to Hipro Overseas (BVI) Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. On 
23rd March, 2007, Hipro Overseas (BVI) Inc. filed a lawsuit against Pan Jit International 
Inc. for indemnity of US$ 11,510,532 with 5% annual interest from day following receipt 
of such an indictment. 

 

7.6.13 Other Significant Risks and Response-Measures: None 
 

7.7 Other Important Matters: None 
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8. Special Recorded Items 
8.1 Declaration of Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated Enterprises 

 
Chicony Eletronics Co., Ltd 

Declaration of Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated Enterprises 

 

This is to certify that the company in the Affiliated Corporation’s Consolidated Financial Statement incorporated in 2010 

(Jan.1st, 2010 ~Dec.31st, 2010) according to “the Principle for Affiliated Corporation’s Consolidated Business Report, 

Consolidated Financial Statement and Relation Report” is the same as that in the Parent Company’s Consolidated 

Financial Statement according to Statements of Financial Accounting Standards No.7. The relevant information which 

shall be disclosed in the Affiliated Corporation’s Consolidated Financial Statement, without any further being prepared, 

has disclosed in the Parent Company’s Consolidated Financial Statement.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Company: Chicony Electronics Co., Ltd 

Chairman: Kent Hsu 

30th March, 2011 
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